

INDICATOR PASSPORT

WHO European Primary Health Care, Impact, Performance and Capacity Tool (PHC-IMPACT)



VERSION 1

WHO European Framework for Action on Integrated Health Services Delivery



REGIONAL OFFICE FOR Europe

Indicator passports

WHO European Primary Health Care Impact, Performance and Capacity Tool (PHC-IMPACT)

Series editors

Juan Tello, WHO Regional Office for Europe Erica Barbazza, University of Amsterdam Zhamin Yelgezekova, WHO European Centre for Primary Health Care Ioana Kruse, WHO European Centre for Primary Health Care Niek Klazinga, University of Amsterdam Dionne Kringos, University of Amsterdam

VERSION 1

WHO European Framework for Action on Integrated Health Services Delivery

Abstract

This document of indicator passports aims to provide a detailed technical description of indicators for use in the WHO European Primary Health Care Impact, Performance and Capacity Tool (PHC-IMPACT). PHC-IMPACT sets out to support the monitoring and improvement of primary health care in the European Region and measurement of progress towards the services delivery component of global universal health coverage targets. The framework underpinning PHC-IMPACT has been guided by the WHO European Framework for Integrated Health Services Delivery. For each indicator passport included here, the following details are specified: alignment to the framework (domain, subdomain, feature), indicator/question title, indicator/question definition, numerator/denominator or answer choices, unit of measurement, rationale, relevant definitions, disaggregation, known limitations and possible data sources. Key terms underlined in the passports are found an accompanied Glossary of terms – a resource providing clarifying definitions according to existing definitions and international classifications as far as possible.

Keywords

PRIMARY HEALTH CARE HEALTH SERVICES HEALTH CARE SYSTEMS HEALTH POLICY EUROPE

Address requests about publications of the WHO Regional Office for Europe to:

Publications WHO Regional Office for Europe UN City, Marmorvej 51 DK-2100 Copenhagen Ø Denmark

Alternatively, complete an online request form for documentation, health information, or for permission to quote or translate, on the Regional Office website (http://www.euro.who.int/pubrequest).

© World Health Organization 2019

All rights reserved. The Regional Office for Europe of the World Health Organization welcomes requests for permission to reproduce or translate its publications, in part or in full.

The designations employed and the presentation of the material in this publication do not imply the expression of any opinion whatsoever on the part of the World Health Organization concerning the legal status of any country, territory, city or area or of its authorities, or concerning the delimitation of its frontiers or boundaries. Dotted lines on maps represent approximate border lines for which there may not yet be full agreement.

The mention of specific companies or of certain manufacturers' products does not imply that they are endorsed or recommended by the World Health Organization in preference to others of a similar nature that are not mentioned. Errors and omissions excepted, the names of proprietary products are distinguished by initial capital letters.

All reasonable precautions have been taken by the World Health Organization to verify the information contained in this publication. However, the published material is being distributed without warranty of any kind, either express or implied. The responsibility for the interpretation and use of the material lies with the reader. In no event shall the World Health Organization be liable for damages arising from its use. The views expressed by authors, editors, or expert groups do not necessarily represent the decisions or the stated policy of the World Health Organization.

Cover photo: WHO

Contents

Acknowledgments	v
Preface	vii

What is PHC-IMPACT?	1
About this document	1
Technical notes	2

Capacity of primary care	11
Primary care structures	11
Model of care	43

Performance of primary care	
Care contact	71
Primary care outputs	89
Health system outcomes	99

Impact of primary care	105
Health outcomes	105
References	110

Acknowledgments

This document has been prepared by the WHO European Centre for Primary Health Care, Almaty, of the Division of Health Systems and Public Health and is part of a series of work related to the WHO European Primary Health Care Impact, Performance and Capacity Tool (PHC-IMPACT).

The review and development of the tool has benefited from close collaboration with Joao Breda, Serge Bychkov, Enrique Loyola and Ivo Rakovac (WHO European Office for the Prevention and Control of NCDs in Moscow, the Russian Federation). The series has also benefited from collaborations with the WHO Collaborating Centre on Primary Healthcare Systems at the University of Amsterdam.

The development of PHC-IMPACT has been supported throughout with the input of country-nominated focal points representing ministries of health, health insurance funds and centres on health services or similar from more than 30 countries in the Region providing comments through annual meetings of this network. A preliminary test of the tool and suite of indicators was conducted in Kazakhstan in 2018 with the support of the Ministry of Health, the Republican Centre for E-Health and Republican Centre for Health Development.

The development of PHC-IMPACT has also benefited from the valuable input in the form of contributions, peer reviews and suggestions received from the following individuals according to their affiliations at the time and thematic area of focus: Michael van den Berg (University of Amsterdam); Hans Kluge (WHO Regional Office for Europe); governance-Szabolcs Szigeti (WHO Country Office in Hungary); health workforce-Galina Perfilieva (WHO Regional Office for Europe); James Buchan (WHO Regional Office for Europe); Valentina Sarkisova (European Forum of National Nursing and Midwifery Associations); Cris Scotter (WHO Regional Office for Europe); medicines and technology-Hanne Bak Pedersen (WHO Regional Office for Europe); Kotoji Iwamoto (WHO Regional Office for Europe); Jane Robertson (WHO Regional Office for Europe); Jamie Wilkinson (Pharmaceutical Group of the European Union); quality of care-Charles Shaw; laboratories-Joanna Zwetyenga (WHO Regional Office for Europe); Caroline Brown (WHO Regional Office for Europe); model of care-Maria Luisa Vazquez (Health Policy and Health Services Research Group); Joao Sarmento (National School of Public Health, Nova University Lisbon); financing-Sarah Thomson (WHO Regional Office for Europe); Baktygul Akkazieva (WHO Regional Office for Europe); Tamas Evetovits (WHO Regional Office for Europe); Nathalie Vande Maele (WHO); civil society-Matthias Wismar European Observatory on Health Systems and Policies); health services management-Usman Khan (European Health Management Association); public health-Natasha Azzopardi-Muscat (European Public Health Association); Salman Rawaf (Imperial College London); social care- Islene Araujo de Carvalho (WHO); Manfred Huber (WHO Regional Office for Europe); Kai Leichsenring (European Centre for Social Welfare Policy); Stecy Yghemonos (Eurocarers); cardiovascular diseases/diabetes-Jill Farrington (WHO Regional Office for Europe); cancer-Marilys Corbex (WHO Regional Office for Europe); Michel Coleman London School of Hygiene and Tropical Medicine); tuberculosis-Andrei Dadu (WHO Regional Office for Europe); Masoud Dara (WHO Regional Office for Europe); Ihor Perehinets (WHO Regional Office for Europe); Anna Odone (Università Vita-Salute San Raffaele); mental health-Daniel Chisholm (WHO Regional Office for Europe); child health-Aigul Kuttumuratova (WHO Regional Office for Europe); Martin Weber (WHO Regional Office for Europe). The tool was also presented to members of WHO's European Primary

Health Care Advisory Group – a group of appointed experts to support the continued advancement of primary health care – at its inaugural meeting in June 2017.

Staff of the WHO European Centre for Primary Health Care provided important input, including reviews of terminology in English and Russian-language to ensure the relevance of measures for systems of the Commonwealth of Independent States. Contributors included: Assel Jabassova, Anne Johansen, Arnoldas Jurgutis, Margrieta Langins, Laurentino Marti, Aizhan Meirambayeva, Zulfiya Pirova, Altynai Satylganova and Evgeny Zheleznyakov.

This work has been made possible by the support of the Government of Kazakhstan through the WHO European Centre for Primary Health Care in Almaty, Kazakhstan.

Preface

The Primary Health Care Impact, Performance and Capacity Tool (PHC-IMPACT) series aims at leveraging primary health care's potential to accelerate universal health coverage through health performance intelligence.

At the 66th session of the WHO Regional Committee for Europe in 2016, Member States endorsed the WHO European Framework for Action on Integrated Health Services Delivery¹. The Framework sets out a shortlist of essential areas for transforming services delivery adopting a primary health care approach. Importantly, with the Framework's endorsement, Member States tasked the WHO Regional Office for Europe to monitor health services delivery transformations in the region through the intensified measurement of relevant indicators (EUR/RC66/R5).

The high-level political commitment

to prioritize services delivery strengthening has continued to gain momentum. In 2018, Member States from around the world signalled their commitment to invest in a primary health care approach with the endorsement of the Declaration of Astana². Over the course of 2019, the WHO European Regional Committee³, World Health Assembly⁴ and UN General Assembly⁵ members were each called to act on this commitment. Resolutions at these assemblies urged countries to take concrete measures to implement the Declaration of Astana and ensure progress towards the 2030 Sustainable Development Goal.

In order to work towards the 2030 targets at country-level, primary health care performance measurement has a fundamental role. Without primary health care performance measurement, countries often lack, in practice, the necessary information to monitor and evaluate their options for improvement.

The PHC-IMPACT series is the WHO Regional Office for Europe's response to increasing the availability of primary care performance data collected and analysed

¹ Strengthening people-centred health systems in the WHO European Region: framework for action on integrated health services delivery (2016). Regional Committee for Europe 66th session.

² Declaration of Astana (2018). Global Conference on Primary Health Care. Astana: Kazakhstan (https://www.who.int/docs/default-source/primary-health/declaration/gcphc-declaration.pdf).

³ Accelerating primary health care in the WHO European Region: organizational and technological

innovation in the context of the Declaration of Astana (2019). Regional Committee for Europe 69th session. ⁴ Primary health care WHA72.2 Agenda item 11.5 (2019). Seventy-second World Health Assembly. (http://apps.who.int/gb/ebwha/pdf_files/WHA72/A72_R2-en.pdf).

⁵ Moving together to build a healthier world (2019). UN high-level meeting on universal health coverage. New York: United States of America.

in an approach that is sensitive to European models, policy priorities and information systems. As part of this series, a range of resources, in English and Russian, are available to support the tailored use of the tool in countries.

.....

- Technical tools. The classification of primary care's impact, performance and capacity according to a set of core domains, features and indicators has been developed through a range of reviews guided by the approach of the WHO European Framework for Action on Integrated Health Services Delivery⁶. To support the standardized use of the indicators/questions, two key resources are available: i) individual indicator passports and ii) a glossary of terms. The development of these core technical tools has benefited from close engagement with country and technical experts, acknowledged in the respective publications.
- Data collection tools. To support data collection, instruments in the form of online surveys and excel-based data collection tools have been developed. These instruments are available on request for their adapted use in countries.
- Country reports. Individual country reports describe findings and policy recommendations following the use of PHC-IMPACT in countries. The reports follow a consistent structure to facilitate the comparability across studies, however, the areas of focus and scope of each country study may vary. Country reports are developed in collaboration with country experts and ministry appointed focal points. Each follows a standard process of data collection, triangulation of findings and expert consensus.

This work is led by the WHO European Centre for Primary Health Care, Almaty, Kazakhstan – the WHO Regional Office for Europe's technical hub and resource centre for countries on health services delivery. For more information and to continue to follow the work in this series, visit the WHO Regional Office for Europe's health services delivery web page (http://www.euro.who.int/en/health-topics/Health-systems/health-services-delivery) or contact the Almaty Centre at eurocphc@who.int.

⁶ A detailed description on this review process has been published elsewhere. See: Barbazza E, Kringos D, Kruse I, Klazinga NS, Tello JE (forthcoming). Creating performance intelligence for primary health care strengthening in Europe.

·.....

Overview

What is PHC-IMPACT?

The Primary Health Care Impact, Performance and Capacity Tool (PHC-IMPACT) is a resource for creating robust performance intelligence for primary health care strengthening in Europe. The development of the tool has been guided by the pursuit of a framework and suite of indicators that are sensitive to European models of primary care, policy priorities and information systems.

The broad suite of indicators mapped to the framework underpinning PHC-IMPACT is intentional in order to allow for the tailored use of the indicator set on the basis of a country's policy priorities. This customization is found an important feature to increase the tool's responsiveness to countries and transferability through a modular approach.

The suite of indicators draws from existing international databases, surveys and country reporting. In this way, the tool aims to consolidate available information and facilitate linkages for analysis purposes. Resources like this document of indicator passports are part of a series of tools available to support the use of PHC-IMPACT in countries for quality data collection processes.

About this document

This document provides detailed information on the full suite of indicators that make up PHC-IMPACT. A detailed review of the tool's development process, including the development of the taxonomy applied, section of tracer conditions and suite of indicators has been reported elsewhere (1).

The indicators and chapters of this document are organized in the framework underpinning the tool. The document is a living resource that continues to be updated to keep in alignment with existing measures and reporting. Future editions are therefore, foreseen, and comments, questions, clarifications or advice for future editions can be sent to eurocphc@who.int.

Related resources

It is suggested this document is used in combination with the following.

Glossary of terms: WHO European Primary Health Care Impact, Performance and Capacity Tool

The terms underlined in the indicator passports relate to an accompanied Glossary of terms (2). The glossary provides clarifying definitions related to PHC-IMPACT to

ensure the consistent application of the indicator set. The definitions included in the glossary draw from existing international classifications including the International Classification for Health Accounts, International Standard Classification of Occupations and International Standard Classification of Education.

Technical notes

Framework and suite of indicators

The framework underpinning the tool adopts the classical framework of Donabedian's structure-process-outcome logic model. These components are classified and sequenced as the capacity, performance, and impact of primary care. The taxonomy to describe these components from broad to specific is referred to as domains, subdomains, and features. Adopting the approach of people-centred systems, the framework begins with health outcomes. In this way, health outcomes are the lens through which capacity and performance are monitored as illustrated in figure 1.



Fig. 1. Framework underpinning PHC-IMPACT

Source: (1)

The tool includes a total of 139 indicators. Table 1 summarizes the breakdown of indicators in the taxonomy of the framework. In table 5, this breakdown is further described, noting the specific feature, indicator title and expected data sources by indicator.

Table 1. Overview of PHC-IMPA	CT suite of indicators
-------------------------------	------------------------

Subtotals across domains				Totals			
Domains	Health outcomes	Health system outcomes	Primary care outputs	Care contact	Model of primary care	Primary care structures	6
Subdomains	1	3	4	5	5	8	26
Features	2	4	6	11	21	19	63
Indicators	7	8	13	29	40	42	139

Tracer conditions

To tailor the tool to the European context, the method of tracer conditions is applied. A set of tracer conditions was pursued to inform the selection of indicators that – when analysed together – could serve to gauge the ability of primary care to respond to a range of health needs individually and concurrently as multimorbidities, while also measuring across population groups and life stages.

Current global and European health policies were reviewed as a proxy for priority health improvement areas. See (1) for full details on this review process. Table 2 summarizes the selected set of 12 conditions that span 7 clusters applied: reproductive, maternal, neonatal and child health; communicable diseases; cardiovascular diseases; diabetes; respiratory diseases; cancer; and mental health.

The tracer conditions have been incorporated into the indicator set to refine the selection and scope of areas investigated. In doing so, linkages across the framework's core components of impact, performance and capacity are established. For example, impact indicators on diabetes link to preceding diabetes-related performance indicators e.g. hospitalizations, managed insulin-levels, and capacity indicators e.g. prevention services for diabetes, existence of patient registries.

Clu	ster	Condition or services	Classification	Target population/ life-course ^a	Gender importance	Type of service ^b
1	Reproductive, maternal, neonatal and child health	post-natal care	service	infant; adolescents; adults	women and infants	Т, М
2	Communicable	influenza	vaccine- preventable	children older adults	both	P
		tuberculosis	chronic	all	both	P, D, T, M
3	Cardiovascular disease	hypertension	chronic	adults; older adults adults; older	both	P, D, T, M
		heart disease	chronic	adults	both	P, D, T, M
4	Diabetes	diabetes type 2	chronic	adults; older adults	both	P, D, T, M
5 Respiratory	chronic obstructive pulmonary disease	chronic	adults; older adults	both	P, D, T, M	
		asthma	chronic	childhood – onwards	both	P, D, T, M
6	Cancer	breast cervical	chronic vaccine- preventable	adults adolescents	women women	D, M P, D, M
		colorectal	chronic	older adults	men	D, M
7	Mental health	depression	chronic	adolescents – onwards	both	P, D, T, M

 Table 2. Tracer conditions applied

^a Life-course translated to age ranges: infant (0–1 year); children (1–10 years); adolescent (11–19 years); adults (20–59 years); older adults (60+ years).

^b Type of service – P: prevention; D: detection; T: treatment; M: management.

Indicators that measures conditions outside the scope of the selected tracer conditions have been excluded. Nonetheless, the framework is considered adjustable to accommodate other priority clusters or conditions that can be incorporated into the taxonomy of domains and features.

Sources of indicators

The selected indicator draw from a range of existing sources that were reviewed at the outset of this work (1). In table 3, the sources of indicator/ questions that have been drawn on are listed. These sources span WHO and other international databases, surveys, report series, assessment tools and/or guides, WHO strategies, action plans and recommendations, and scientific articles.

Table 3. Sources of indicators

Туре	Title
WHO databases	European Database on Human and Technical Resources for Health (HlthRes-DB) (3)
	Global Health Estimates Database (4)
	Global Health Expenditure Database (5)
	Global Health Observatory (6)
	Health 2020 Database (7)
	WHO antimicrobial medicines consumption network data (estimates on consumption) (8)
	European Detailed Mortality Database (DMDB) (9)
	Universal Health Coverage Data Portal (10)
	WHO Essential Medicines and Health Products Price and Availability Monitoring (WHO
	EMP MedMon) (11)
	Global reporting on tuberculosis (12)
	International Agency for Research on Cancer (GLOBOCAN) (13)
Other international	Eurostat Database (14)
ualabases	CONCORD global surveillance of cancer survival (15)
	European Commission European Core Health Indicators (EC-ECHI) (16)
	Global reporting on narcotic drugs of the International Narcotics Control Board (1/)
	Health Systems and Policy Monitor (HSPM) (18)
	OECD Health Statistics (20)
	Primary Health Care Performance Initiative (PHCPI) (21)
	World Population Prospects Database (22)
	Institute for Health Metrics and Evaluation. Global Burden of Disease (160)
WHO strategies action	Action plan for the prevention and control of pencempunicable diseases in the WHO
plans and	Furonean Region 2016–2025 (23)
recommendations	Global action plan for the prevention and control of noncommunicable diseases 2013-
	2020 (24)
	European mental health action plan 2013-2020 (25)
	Recommendations on mental health – duration of antidepressant treatment (26)
	Recommendations on postnatal care of the mother and new-born (27)
	Resolution WHA64.6 on health workforce strengthening (28)
	Resolution WHA69.19 on global strategy on human resources for health: workforce 2030
	(29)
Surveys	WHO global country capacity and response on noncommunicable diseases survey (30)
	Data scanning survey: health services delivery data in the WHO European Region (31)
	Country capacity for the prevention and control of noncommunicable disease in the WHO
	European region (32)
	European self-assessment tool for the evaluation of essential public health operations (33)
	Global survey on effeatth (34)
	STEPwise approach to surveillance survey (35)
	European Health Interview Survey 2015 (36)
	(37)
	OFCD survey on health systems characteristics (38)
	OECD strengthening health information infrastructure for health care quality governance
	(39)
	European Centre for Disease Prevention and Control and Vaccine European New
	Integrated Collaboration Effort survey on seasonal influenza vaccination (41)
	OECD survey on electronic health records system development and data use (42)
	Survey of the Pharmaceutical Pricing and Reimbursement Information Network (43)
	Quality and Costs of Primary Care in Europe survey (QUALICOPC) (44)
	Service availability and readiness assessment (45)

Report series,	NHO European country assessments on ambulatory care sensitive conditions (46)			
assessment guides and	WHO European country assessments on health systems strengthening for better NCD			
tools	butcomes (47)			
V	NHO European financial protection country reviews (48)			
ŀ	Health Systems in Transition series (49)			
١	NCD Risk Factor Collaboration (NCD-RisC) (50)			
ŀ	HEARTS Technical package for cardiovascular disease management in primary health			
c	care: systems for monitoring (51)			
ŀ	Human resources for health information system: minimum data set for health workforce registry (52)			
L	ist of medical devices by health care facility (53)			
N	Medical equipment maintenance programme overview. WHO medical device technical series (54)			
N	Monitoring the building blocks of health systems: a handbook of indicators and their neasurement strategies (55)			
1 s	Noncommunicable diseases global monitoring framework: indicator definitions and specifications (56)			
F	Package of essential noncommunicable (PEN) disease interventions for primary health care in low-resource settings (57)			
F ir	Planning, implementation and assessment: assessment of capacity (sample questionnaire) n Tools for implementing WHO PEN (Package of essential noncommunicable disease nterventions) (58)			
ι	JSAID: The health system assessment approach; a how-to manual 2.0 (59)			
ŀ	Health statistics. Definitions sources and methods. Cervical cancer screening, survey data and programme data (60)			
Articles /	Assessment of cardiovascular risk in primary care patients in France (61)			
E	Building primary care in a changing Europe (62)			
(Cardiovascular risk profile and risk stratification of hypertensive population attended by			
ç	general practitioners and specialists in Spain the CONTROLRISK study (63)			
E	European primary care monitor: structure, process and outcome indicators (64)			
Ν	Measuring attributes of primary care: development of a new instrument (65, 66)			
F	Providing integrated care for older people with complex needs: lessons from seven nternational case studies (67)			
F f	Rapid assessment of infrastructure of primary health care facilities - a relevant instrument for health care systems management (68)			
T	Fask shifting from physicians to nurses in primary care in 39 countries: a cross-country comparative study (69)			

Expected data sources

The measurability of each indicator has been prioritized throughout the development of the tool. By aligning to the sources noted in table 3, many of the indicators are already actively being reported on. Moreover, more than half of the indicators can be sourced from more than one type of data source, increasing the potential measurability across countries. The range of sources include the following. For each indicator passport, an expected source is listed.

- Databases and survey data. For indicator/questions that draw directly from an existing database or survey, this specific source is noted; these sources refer to those listed in table 3.
- Policies. Policies refer to ministerial laws, orders, policies, prikaz or similar that may offer guidance for specific indicators/questions. As the availability of policies varies by country, an alternative source is noted where this applies.

- **Reports**. These indicators draw from existing report series (studies, country assessments, or similar). As the availability of reports varies by country, an alternative source to reports is noted where this applies.
- Key informants. For questions that can be answered by key informants, diversified informant profiles are proposed. These profiles are expected to include experts on primary care policy, financing, health workforce, information systems as well as primary care managers and practitioners. An electronic survey is available upon request for the purposes of collecting key informant responses.
- Expert consensus. In instances where preferred databases or survey sources are not available, and the indicator cannot be answered by one informant, the method of expert consensus is proposed. This method is applicable for one quarter of the total indicator set. Drawing from established group-based methods, a Delphi technique followed by a consensus workshop should be used to generate estimates. The highly structured method preserves anonymity while capturing a range of perspectives.

Template of indicator passports

Each passport provides consistent information in the template described in table 4.

Domain	One of six core components of the framework, organized as health outcomes, health system outcomes, primary care outputs, care contact, model of primary care or primary care structures.
Subdomain	The second tier in the taxonomy and affiliated to specific domains. There are 26 subdomains.
Feature	The specific characteristic captured by the indicator/question. Multiple indicators may be used to measure the same feature. There are 63 features in total.
Indicator/question title	The indicator/question by key words. The related code refers to the accompanied data collection tools.
Indicator/question definition or question	This field states the specific indicator or question. Any underlined terms refer to those listed in the glossary.
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	For quantitative measures, this field lists the details of the numerator/denominator. For categorical questions, this field lists the specific answering categories.
Unit of measurement	Clarification on the unit of measurement (e.g. categorical, percent, rate, specific age groups, etc.)
Rationale	Description on the rationale and intended area of focus of the specific indicator. The rationale may also provide clarifying details on how this measure has been used previously.
Preferred data sources	The identified sources that are known or expected to report on the indicator. Where multiple sources may be available, these are listed. Sources range from: policies, reports, key informants, databases, surveys, expert consensus.
Disaggregation	Any relevant disaggregation for purposes of analysis (e.g. gender, age, rural/urban).
Limitations	Any known limitations or caveats for interpretation.

	•			
Domain	Subdomain	Feature	Indicator/question title	Expected data sources
Primary care	Primary care	GOV1. Primary care priorities	Primary care strategy	policy; key informant
structures	governance (GOV)	GOV2. Accountability	Primary care mandate	key informant
		arrangements	Primary care resources	key informant
			Public health services mandate	report; key informant
		GOV3. Stakeholder participation	Roles of professional associations of generalist medical practitioners	key informant
		and engagement	Roles of professional associations of nurses and midwives in primary care	key informant
			Roles of patient and/or consumer groups	report; survey; key informant
		GOV4. Quality assurance	Quality assurance of health professionals	policy; key informant
		mechanisms	Quality assurance of facilities	policy; key informant
			Development of primary care clinical practice guidelines	policy; survey; key informant
			Patient rights and choice	policy; report; key informant
	Primary care	FIN1. Primary care expenditure	Total primary health care expenditure as a share of total health expenditure	database
	financing (FIN)		Domestic primary health care expenditure	database
			Capital and recurrent expenditure arrangements	key informant
		FIN2. Payment methods in	Provider payments	report; survey; key informant
		primary care	Employment status and remuneration of generalist medical practitioners	survey; report; key informant
			Pay-for-performance	survey; key informant
			Support for caregivers/family carers	report; key informant
		FIN3. Benefit package	Services included in the health benefit package	report; survey; key informant
	Primary care	WRK1. Primary care workforce	Type of primary care health professionals	policy; key informant
	workforce (WRK)	planning	Scope of practice for primary care health professionals	policy; key informant
			Incentives for recruitment and retention in underserved areas	policy; key informant
			Retraining programme for specialist medical practitioners/narrow specialists	key informant; database
			Workforce registry with information on primary care professionals	survey; key informant
		WRK2. Financial status of general practitioners	Relative financial status of generalist medical practitioners	database
		WRK3. Primary care workforce availability	Age distribution of generalist medical practitioners	database
		WRK4. Academic status of	General practice/family medicine undergraduate/bachelor education	key informant
		primary care	General practice/family medicine postgraduate education	key informant
			General practice/family medicine postgraduate clinical practice	key informant
			General practice/family medicine specialization among medical students	database
			Nurses working in primary care undergraduate/bachelor and postgraduate	kev informant
			education	
			Professional journal on general practice/family medicine	key informant
	Primary care	INF1. Data capture	Electronic health records system	survey; key informant
	information		Electronic health record system linked to clinical systems	survey; key informant
	systems (INF)	INF2. Aggregation of data	Patient registries	survey; key informant
		INF3. Patient platforms	Use of mHealth in primary care	survey; key informant
	Primary care	MED1. Availability of medicines	Reimbursement eligibility scheme for outpatient medicines	policy; survey; key informant

Table 5. Overview of PHC-IMPACT indicators and data sources

Domain	Subdomain	Feature	Indicator/question title	Expected data sources
	medicines (MED)		Availability of essential medicines for primary care	survey; database; expert consensus
	Primary care	DGN1. Laboratory	Availability of laboratory tests in primary care	survey; database; expert consensus
	diagnostics (DGN)	DGN2. Imaging	Availability of diagnostic imaging in primary care	survey; database; expert consensus
	Primary care technologies (TCH)	TCH1. Basic technology	Availability of equipment in primary care	survey; database; expert consensus
	Primary care facility infrastructure (STR)	STR1. Amenities	General service readiness at facility-level	key informant
Model of	Primary care	SEL1. Identifying needs	Population stratification	key informant
primary care	selection of	SEL2. Preventive care	Counselling services	key informant
	services (SEL)		Population-based screening	key informant
			Individual risk assessments/stratification	key informant
			Vaccination services	survey; report; key informant
		SEL3. Diagnostic procedures	Diagnostic exams	key informant
			Final diagnosis in primary care	key informant
		SEL4. Treatment	Prescribing authority of generalist medical practitioners	policy; report; key informant
		SEL5. Management of diseases	Follow-up services in primary care	key informant
			Other services	key informant
		SEL6. Patient engagement	Self-management and health literacy in primary care	key informant
	Primary care	DES1. Referral system	Gatekeeping system	survey; report; key informant
	design (DES)		Referral protocol from primary care to higher levels of care	policy; survey; key informant
			Reply and discharge protocol from higher levels of care to primary care	policy; key informant
		DES2. Care pathways	Shared care pathways	report; policy; key informant
		DES3. Flexible access modes	Different access modes	survey; expert consensus
		DES4. Shared care plans	Developing shared care plans	survey; expert consensus
	Primary care	ORG1. Practice population	Choice of generalist medical practitioner	survey; report; key informant
	workforce		Patient list system	policy; report; key informant
	organization		Primary care health professionals' density	database; report
	(ORD)		Caseload of generalist medical practitioner	database; survey
		ORG2. Out-of-hours care	Opening hours in primary care	report; policy; key informant
			Out-of-hours in primary care	survey; key informant
		ORG3. Primary care teams	Types of primary care facilities	policy; key informant
			Shared practices in primary care	policy; report; database
			Coordination within primary care	policy; survey; report; expert consensus
			Existence of care coordinator	policy; survey; report; expert consensus
		ORG4. Collaboration of primary	Cooperation with specialist medical practitioners	survey; expert consensus
		care with other professionals	Coordination across sectors	policy; survey; report; expert consensus
	Primary care	MAN1. Primary care staffing	Autonomy in staffing of medical staff	key informant
	services	MAN2. Managing primary care	Degree of autonomy in budgeting	key informant
	management	facilities	Health care technology management	survey; key informant

Domain	Subdomain	Feature	Indicator/question title	Expected data sources
	(MAN)	MAN3. Strategic planning	Population health management	key informant
	Primary care	IMP1. National or regional	Accountability for performance	policy; survey; report; key informant
	quality	primary care performance	Patient experience measures	policy; survey; report; key informant
	improvement	assessment	Job satisfaction	survey; key informant
	(IMP)	IMP2. Practice-level quality	Quality of care processes	policy; report; key informant
		improvement mechanisms	Safety incidents reporting	policy; report; key informant
		IMP3. External accountability	External accountability for quality of care delivered by generalist medical	key informant
		for quality of care	practitioners	
		IMP4. Continuous professional development	Continuous professional development opportunities	database; expert consensus
Care contact	Utilization (UTL)	UTL1. Consultation rate	Overall utilization of primary care services	database; survey
		UTL2. Preventive care and	Influenza vaccination coverage	database; report; expert consensus
		diagnostic services	HPV vaccination coverage	database; survey; expert consensus
			Diabetic education	database; survey; expert consensus
			Counselling services for tobacco cessation	survey
			National cancer screening programmes targeting the general population	database; survey; expert consensus
			Individual risk assessments	database; expert consensus
			Tuberculosis preventive care and diagnostic services	database
			WHO recommended rapid test as the initial diagnostic test for tuberculosis	database
	Continuity of	CON1. Treatment	Hypertension treatment coverage	database; survey; expert consensus
	primary care		Tuberculosis treatment coverage	database
	(CON)		Depression treatment coverage	database; expert consensus
		CON2. Follow-up care	Hypertension follow-up	database; survey; expert consensus
			Diabetes monitoring	database; expert consensus
			Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease follow-up	database; expert consensus
			Post-natal care	database; expert consensus
			Depression treatment follow-up	database; expert consensus
		CON3. Longitudinal continuity of	Stability of patient-generalist medical practitioner relationship	survey
		care		
		CON4. Informational continuity of care	Medical record keeping	survey; expert consensus
			Incoming clinical information procedures	survey; expert consensus
			Generalist-specialist medical practitioner communication	survey; expert consensus
			Generalist medical practitioner-social services	survey; expert consensus
	Coordination of	COR1. Transition management	Referral feedback to primary care	survey; expert consensus
	care across settings (COR)			
	Comprehensiven	COP1. Resolution capacity of	General medical practitioner consultations without referral	database; expert consensus
	ess of primary care (COP)	generalist medical practitioners		
	People-	PCC1. Patient experience	Patient satisfaction	report; survey
	centredness of	PCC2. Shared decision-making	Care and treatment shared decision-making	database; survey; report
	primary care	PCC3. Patient engagement	Patient reporting opportunity to ask questions	database; survey; report

Domain	Subdomain	Feature	Indicator/guestion title	Expected data sources
	(PCC)		Patient reporting enough time with doctor	database; survey; report
			Patient reporting easy to understand explanations	database; survey; report
Primary care	Access to primary	ACC1. Availability and	Same day appointments	survey
outputs	care services (ACC)	affordability of primary care services	Waiting time for appointment	survey; report
			Access barriers due to treatment costs	database; survey; report
			Access to medicines	database
		ACC2. Acceptability	Patient reported acceptability of primary care services	survey
	Responsiveness	RES1. Resolving capacity of	Composite measure	database; survey; report; key informant
	of primary care (RES)	primary care		
	Safety of primary	SAF1. Medical errors	Correct diagnosis	reports; expert consensus
	care (SAF)		Incident reporting	reports; expert consensus
		SAF2. Medicine safety	Overall volume of antibiotics prescribed	database
			Medication review	survey; expert consensus
	Effectiveness of	EFF1. Effective management and	Control of blood pressure among people treated for hypertension	database; expert consensus
	primary care	control of diseases	Control of blood glucose among people treated for diabetes	database; expert consensus
	services (EFF)		Tuberculosis detection and treatment	database
			Cancer survival rates	database
Health system	Quality (QLY)	QLY1. Quality of care for chronic	Hospital admissions for chronic conditions	database
outcomes		conditions	Avoidable complications	database
			Notified tuberculosis cases lost to follow-up	report
			Stage at diagnosis for cancer	database
		QLY2. Prescribing in primary care	Secondary prevention/high-risk control	survey; expert consensus
			Tuberculosis and rifampicin/multidrug resistant tuberculosis treatment in	datahase
			primary care	
			Access to palliative care	report; database
	Equity (EQT)	EQT1. Equitable delivery of	Composite measure	database; survey; report; key informant
		primary care services		
	Efficiency (EFC)	EFC1. Unnecessary procedures	Unnecessary duplication of medical tests	survey; expert consensus
Health	Health status and	HSW1. Burden of disease and risk	Risk factors – smoking	database
outcomes	well-being (HSW)	factors	Risk factors – alcohol	database
			Risk factors – overweight and obesity	database
			Morbidity	database; survey
			Disability adjusted life years	database
		HSW2. Mortality	Standardized death rates	database
			Premature mortality	database

Capacity of primary care

Primary care structures

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care governance
Feature	Primary care priorities
Indicator/question title	Primary care strategy (gov1q1)
Indicator/question definition or question	a. Is there a national primary care <u>strategy</u> ? (select all that apply)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 yes, already published as part of an overall health <u>strategy</u> yes, already published as a stand-alone <u>strategy</u> yes, under development as part of an overall health <u>strategy</u> yes, under development as a stand-alone <u>strategy</u> no, does not exist or cannot be assessed (exclusive choice) do not know (exclusive choice)
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition or question	b. If it has been already published, please provide the weblink and/ or upload the relevant document.
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	• weblink
Unit of measurement	document upload
Indicator/question definition or question	c. If it has already been published, are the goals and targets set out in the strategy being monitored? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 yes no do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	Formulating national policies and strategies is a basic function of governments. The task of formulating and implementing a health policy falls within the remit of the ministry of health. An explicit primary care strategy signals if primary care is high on the political agenda. It defines a vision for the future and should outline priorities and the expected roles of different actors, inform and build consensus, and estimate the resources required to achieve goals and priorities. Primary care supportive governmental policies are positively associated with access, continuity and coordination of care, the delivery of a wide range of services (in particular preventive care), and better overall health outcomes (55).
Preferred data sources	review of national health policieskey informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	The indicator evaluates whether a policy has been formulated, but not its implementation and/or effectiveness.

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care governance
Feature	Accountability arrangements
Indicator/question title	Primary care mandate (gov2q2)
Indicator/question definition or question	a. Is there a national <u>actor</u> exclusively mandated to support the development of primary care? (select all that apply)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 yes, a unit/department within the ministry of health (specify name in comments) yes, a national centre (specify name in comments) yes, a unit/department within a national centre (specify name in comments) no (exclusive choice) do not know (exclusive choice) comments and clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition or question	 b. Are there subnational actors mandated to support the development of primary care? regional/oblast level (select one) district level (select one) municipal level (select one) other, please specify (select one)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 yes no not applicable do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	The creation of a separate primary care unit/department within the ministry of health contributes to a clear mandate for primary care within the ministry nationally and other levels of the health system. Assigning a clear mandate is recognized as a core component of accountability arrangements (72). Strengthening accountability arrangements nationally can give primary care priority within the ministry, improve relations with other ministries and provide a more systematic and integrated working arrangement (64).
Preferred data sources	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	The indicator evaluates whether a unit/department exists but not its impact.

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care governance
Feature	Accountability arrangements
Indicator/question title	Primary care resources (gov2q3)
Indicator/question definition or question	a. At the national level, does primary care have a budget that can be distinguished from other levels of care, such as specialist care? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 yes no do not know comments and clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical

Indicator/question definition or question	b. Do subnational levels have discretion over budgetary decisions/allocations for primary care? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 yes, at the regional/oblast level yes, at the district level yes, at the municipal level yes, other arrangement, please specify no do not know comments and clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	The process of accountability has also been defined beyond the delegation of authority, to include the allocation of resources to carry out the assigned task (73). The indicator evaluates whether there is local autonomy in terms of authority and financial responsibility for health services (64).
Preferred data sources	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	The indicator evaluates whether decentralization is in place however, decentralization pertains to the country's political situation and varies to a great extent on the country's size.

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care governance
Feature	Accountability arrangements
Indicator/question title	Public health services mandate (gov2q4)
Indicator/question definition or question	 Is there an institute/agency to carry out the following public health functions? surveillance of population health and wellbeing (select one) monitoring and response to health hazards and emergencies (select one) health protection including environmental occupational, food safety and others (select one) health promotion including action to address social determinants and health inequity (select one) disease prevention, including early detection of illness (select one) advocacy communication and social mobilization for health (select one) advancing public health research to inform policy and practice (select one)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 yes, name of agency/institute no do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	These are core components of the Essential Public Health Operations of the WHO European Action Plan for Strengthening Public Health Capacities and Services (74).
Preferred data sources	WHO Essential Public Health Operationskey informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	The indicator assesses only the scope of the intended core functions but not their actual implementation.

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care governance
Feature	Stakeholder participation and engagement
Indicator/guestion title	Roles of professional associations of generalist medical practitioners
	(qov3q5)
Indicator/guestion definition	a. Do legally recognized health professional associations specifically for
or question	generalist medical practitioners/family medicine/primary care doctors exist?
	(select one)
Numerator/denominator or	• ves
answer choices	• no
	do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/guestion definition	b. If yes, please provide the name(s) of the association(s), specify at which level
or question	the association is active and provide the approximate number of generalist
	medical practitioners who are members in each of them
	Note: if there is more than one association, please answer this question for the
	three largest
Numerator/denominator or	name(s) of association
answer choices	
answer choices	 active at which lovel: control/federal or state/local?
	active at which level, central/lederal of state/local:
Unit of moscurement	
Unit of measurement	a Ware any of these associations involved in the following estivities during the
Indicator/question definition	c. Were any of these associations involved in the following activities during the
or question	previous year?
	national health policy development (select one)
	 negotiations on pay and working conditions of members (select one)
	<u>continuous professional development</u> (select one)
	 development of <u>undergraduate/bachelor's education</u> curricula (select
	one)
	 development of <u>post-graduate education</u> curricula (select one)
	 development of clinical practice guidelines and protocols for primary
	care (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	• yes
answer choices	• no
	not applicable
	do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	The existence of organized associations of primary care health professionals
	(generalist medical practitioners and nurses) is important to advance the
	development of the profession, to set standards for the quality of services
	delivery and to safeguard the financial and material interests of the primary care
	health professionals (75). Importantly, professional associations refer here to
	those organizations that represent the interest of health professionals. This is
	distinguished from health professional regulators representing the interests of
	patients. To achieve a broad acceptance of primary care reforms, it is important
	to involve stakeholders in to the policy process and its implementation (64).
Preferred data sources	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	There are in many countries a multitude of professional associations that deliver
	different functions and have different legal status. This measure is limited to
	legally recognized associations to capture the role of those most prominent in
	the country.

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care governance
Feature	Stakeholder participation and engagement
Indicator/question title	Roles of professional associations of nurses and midwives in primary care
	(gov3q6)
Indicator/question definition	a. Do <u>legally recognized health professional associations</u> specifically for nurses
or question	and midwives exist? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	 yes, specifically for nurses and midwives in primary care
answer choices	 yes, nurses and midwives in general
	• yes, both
	• no
	do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition	b. If yes, please provide the name(s) of the association(s), and approximate
or question	number of nurses who are members in each of them.
	<i>Note</i> : if there is more than one association, please answer this question for the
	three largest ones
Numerator/denominator or	name(s) of association(s)
answer choices	• weblink
	approximate number of members
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition	c. Were any of these associations involved in the following activities during the
or question	previous year?
	 health policy development (select one)
	 negotiations on pay and working conditions of members (select one)
	 continuous professional development (select one)
	 development of <u>undergraduate/bachelor's education</u> curricula (select
	one)
	 development of <u>post-graduate education</u> curricula (select one)
	 development of <u>clinical practice guidelines</u> and <u>clinical protocols</u> for
	primary care (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	• yes
answer choices	• no
	not applicable
	• do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	The existence of organized associations or colleges of primary care health
	professionals (generalist medical practitioners and nurses) is important to
	advance the development of the profession, to set standards for the quality of
	health services delivery and to safeguard the financial and material interests of
	the primary care health professionals (75). To achieve a broad acceptance of
	primary care reforms, it is important to involve stakeholders in to the policy
	process and its implementation (64).
Preferred data sources	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	There are in many countries a multitude of professional associations that deliver
	different functions and have different legal status. This measure is limited to
	legally recognized associations to capture the role of those most prominent in
	the country.

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care governance
Feature	Stakeholder participation and engagement
Indicator/question title	Roles of patient and/or consumer groups (gov3q7)
Indicator/question definition or question	 a. Do any of the following <u>patient</u> and/or <u>consumer health-related groups</u> (associations/organizations) exist as <u>legally recognized</u> entities? general health-related <u>patient group</u> (select one) heart disease-specific <u>patient group</u> (select one) cancer-specific <u>patient group</u> (select one) diabetes-specific <u>patient group</u> (select one) tuberculosis-specific <u>patient group</u> (select one) mental health specific <u>patient group</u> (select one) consumer health-related group (select one)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	yesnodo not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition or question	 b. Is there a formal role for citizen or patient representatives in the following areas? <u>health needs assessment</u> and priority setting (select one) health policy discourse and debate (select one) licensing of pharmaceuticals (select one) health technology assessment (select one) trainings for patients (select one) membership in primary care advisory boards at the community level (e.g. council boards) (select one) membership in supervisory boards of primary care facilities (select one)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 yes no do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	Patient engagement is increasingly recognized as an integral part of health services and a critical component of people-centred care. Engaged patients are better able to make informed decisions about their care options. When organized, patients and families can effectively engage in: i) the design and development of patient-centred processes and system; ii) the development and dissemination of tools, information and educational materials; and iii) research as a source of data, or co-researchers while contributing to research design or the planning and execution of research (76).
Preferred data sources	 European Patients' Forum International Alliance of Patients' Organizations OECD Health Systems Characteristics Survey key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	This indicator measures the existence and intended role but not the actual involvement of patient or consumer associations/organizations/coalitions.

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care governance
Feature	Quality assurance mechanisms
Indicator/question title	Quality assurance of health professionals (gov4q8)
Indicator/question definition	a. Who issues licenses/entry to practice for primary care health professionals?
or question	 generalist medical practitioners (select one)

	nurses (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	government
answer choices	university
	 professional regulatory group/body
	no mandatory licensure exists
	do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition	b. How often is the <u>license</u> renewed?
or question	 generalist medical practitioners (select one)
	nurses (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	number of years, please specify
answer choices	 it is not time bound
	do not know
	comments or clarifications
Unit of measurement	number of years
Indicator/question definition	c. If licensure is time bound, which of the following is a requirement for renewal?
or question	 generalist medical practitioners (select all that apply)
	 nurses (select all that apply)
Numerator/denominator or	 continuous professional development, please specify number of credit
answer choices	hours in comments
	 test/examination, please specify frequency in comments
	other, please specify
	do not know (exclusive choice)
	comments or clarifications
Rationale	Recruiting a health workforce based on competencies ensures the selection of
	candidates with the optimal potential to continuously meet desired
	competencies and ultimately, the delivery of quality services. Licenses to practice
	are widely recognized as a mechanism for ensuring quality and strengthening
	health workforce competencies (75). For health professionals, it offers a
	systematic incentive to keep up pre-defined standards of quality, while for the
	population it provides assurance of health professionals' competence to practice
	(64).
Preferred data sources	review of national health policies
	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	The indicator provides information on the existence of professional licensing but
	not on the standards of such schemes.

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care governance
Feature	Quality assurance mechanisms
Indicator/question title	Quality assurance of facilities (gov4q9)
Indicator/question definition or question Numerator/denominator or answer choices	Do the following mechanisms exist for primary care facilities to operate?
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	Licensure, accreditation and certification schemes are key mechanisms for quality improvement of a health system. For the health facilities, they offer a

	defined minimum standard of quality, while for the population they provide assurance that these minimum standards have been met (64).
Preferred data sources	review of national health policies
	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	The indicator provides information on the existence of licensure, accreditation and certification but not on the standards of such schemes or their implementation.

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care governance
Feature	Quality assurance mechanisms
Indicator/question title	Development of primary care clinical practice guidelines (gov4q10)
Indicator/question definition	a. Are evidence-based national <u>clinical practice guidelines/clinical</u>
of question	the following conditions through a primary health care approach
	recognized/approved by government or competent authorities?
	cardiovascular disease (select one)
	 diabatas (salact ana)
	cancer (select one)
	chronic respiratory disease (select one)
	 tuberculosis and latent tuberculosis infection (select one)
	 mental health condition (select one)
Numerator/denominator.or	
answer choices	• no
	• do not know
Unit of measurement	
Indicator/question definition	b. Where clinical practice quidelines/clinical protocols/standards are available
or question	please indicate whether they contain standard criteria for the referral/referral
	guidelines from primary care to a higher level of care (secondary/tertiary)?
	cardiovascular disease (select one)
	 diabetes (select one)
	cancer (select one)
	chronic respiratory disease (select one)
	 tuberculosis (select one)
	 mental health conditions (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	• yes
answer choices	• no
	do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	Clinical protocols and guidelines are systematically developed, evidence-based
	recommendations that support health professionals and patients to make
	decisions about the most appropriate, efficient care in specific clinical
	circumstances (57). Developing standards and guidelines to support generalist
	medical practitioners is one of the crucial tools in achieving quality primary care.
	Guidelines are more likely to be appropriately applied when they are the product
	of one's own profession (64).
Preferred data sources	Country Capacity and Response Survey on Noncommunicable Diseases
	review of national health policies
	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	The indicator provides information on the existence of clinical practice guidelines
	but not on the quality of such guidelines or their use.

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care governance
Feature	Quality assurance mechanisms
Indicator/question title	Patient rights and choice (gov4q11)
Indicator/question definition or question	a. Is there a formal definition of patients' rights at the national level? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 yes no do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition or question	 b. Does the definition include the following rights? to consent to or to refuse treatment (select one) to the confidentiality of medical information (select one) to be informed about relevant risk of medical procedures (select one) to a second medical opinion (select one) to access to own medical files (select one) to raise patient complaints in primary care facilities (select one)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 yes no do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition or question	c. If yes, please provide the weblink and/or the relevant document:
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	• weblink
Unit of measurement	document upload
Rationale	Legislation regarding patients' rights is important to protect individuals and communities from harm and to safeguard an agreed level of service quality (64). Patients' rights vary by country and in different jurisdictions, often depending upon prevailing cultural and social norms. Different models of the patient-physician relationship, which can also represent the citizen-state relationship, have been developed, and these have informed the rights to which patients are entitled. There is growing international consensus that all patients have a fundamental right to privacy, to the confidentiality of their medical information, to consent to or to refuse treatment, and to be informed about relevant risk to them of medical procedures (77).
Preferred data sources	OECD Health Care Quality Indicators
	review of national health policieskey informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	The indicator is not specific to primary care, but the assumption is that patients' rights are universal to the health system and thus, across levels of care.

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care financing
Feature	Primary care expenditure
Indicator/question title	Total primary health care expenditure as a share of total health expenditure
	(fin1q12)
Indicator/question definition	Primary health care expenditure as percent current health expenditure
or question	
Numerator/denominator or	As reported in the Global Health Expenditure Database, WHO
answer choices	PHC%CHE

	 The numerator includes government and non-government health expenditures, and it is the sum of: general outpatient curative care, HC.1.3.1 dental outpatient curative care, HC.1.3.2 outpatient curative care, not specified, HC.1.3.nec home-based curative care, HC.1.4 outpatient long-term health care, HC.3.3 home-based long-term health care, HC.3.4 preventive care, HC.6 medical goods, HC.5 – 80% governance, and health system and financing administration HC.7 – 80%
Unit of measurement	percent
Rationale	As a core indicator of health financing systems, this indicator contributes to an
	understanding of the prioritization in health financing (78).
Preferred data sources	Global Health Expenditure Database (GHED)
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	The System of Health Accounts 2011 standards were not designed to explicitly collect primary health care expenditure information and there is no primary health care expenditure category in its data set. Thus, the estimates are based on the definition for primary health care expenditure based on the System of Health Accounts 2011 expenditure codes of health care functions used in the WHO Global Health Expenditure Database and the limitations of this definition are detailed in that indicator passport. According to the System of Health Accounts 2011, total health expenditure is split into current and capital expenditures. The focus is given to total current expenditures for the purpose of comparison because the capacity to have capital investments varies across countries. Therefore, for this indicator, total current health expenditure is proposed to use for denominator.

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care financing
Feature	Primary care expenditure
Indicator/question title	Domestic primary health care expenditure (fin1q13)
Indicator/question definition	a. Domestic general government expenditure on primary health care as a share
or question	of overall primary health care expenditure
Numerator/denominator or	As reported in the Global Health Expenditure Database, WHO
answer choices	GGHE-D_PHC%PHC
	The numerator covers expenditure by all domestic public and compulsory sources on primary health care. Spending on primary care is calculated as the sum of: - general outpatient curative care, HC.1.3.1 - dental outpatient curative care, HC.1.3.2 - outpatient curative care, not specified, HC.1.nec - home-based curative care, HC.1.4 - outpatient long-term health care, HC.3.3 - home-based long-term health care, HC.3.4 - preventive care, HC.6 - medical goods, HC.5 – 80% - governance, and health system and financing administration HC.7 – 80% The denominator is the overall primary health care spending.

Unit of measurement	percent
Indicator/question definition	b. Domestic general government expenditure on primary health care as a share
or question	of domestic general government health expenditure
Numerator/denominator or	as reported in the Global Health Expenditure Database, WHO
answer choices	GGHE-D_PHC%GGHE-D
	 The indicator covers expenditure by all domestic public and compulsory sources on primary health care. The numerator is the sum of: general outpatient curative care, HC.1.3.1 dental outpatient curative care, HC.1.3.2 outpatient curative care, not specified, HC.1.3.nec home-based curative care, HC.1.4 outpatient long-term health care, HC.3.3 home-based long-term health care, HC.3.4 preventive care, HC.6 medical goods, HC.5 – 80% governance, and health system and financing administration, HC.7– 80% The denominator is the overall domestic general government expenditure on health
Unit of measurement	percent
Rationale	Poor financial investment is an impediment to the delivery of primary care (64). This core health financing indicator reflects a government's investment in and commitment to primary health care and enables increased accountability of governments to primary health care (78). It contributes to understanding government prioritization of and commitment to primary health care.
Preferred data sources	System of Health Accounts
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	The System of Health Accounts 2011 standards were not designed to explicitly collect primary health care expenditure information and there is no primary health care expenditure category in its data set. In effect, the estimates generated are based on the definition for primary health care expenditure defined in the System of Health Accounts 2011 expenditure codes of health care functions used in the WHO Global Health Expenditure Database. The limitations this definition are detailed in the indicator passport for the measure: Total primary health care expenditure as a share of total health expenditure (fin1q12).

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care financing
Feature	Primary care expenditure
Indicator/question title	Capital and recurrent expenditure arrangements (fin1q14)
Indicator/question definition	a. Are there dedicated budget lines for the following type of expenditures?
or question	 <u>capital expenditure</u> for primary care (select one)
	 recurrent expenditure: operations and maintenance for primary care
	(select one)
Numerator/denominator or	• yes
answer choices	• no
	do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition	b. What is the level of spending authority for each of the following budget lines?
or question	 <u>capital expenditure</u> for primary care (select all that apply)
	 recurrent expenditure (operations and maintenance for primary care)
	(select all that apply)

Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 central government regional/oblast government district government municipal government facility other do not know (exclusive choice)
	comments or clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition	c. Are these allocations earmarked/ring-fenced?
or question	 <u>capital expenditure</u> for primary care (select one)
	 recurrent expenditure: operations and maintenance for primary care
	(select one)
Numerator/denominator or	 yes, for the purchase of specific goods/services
answer choices	 yes, within specific categories of expenditure
	 no, funds can be (re)allocated without constraint
	 no, funds can be (re)allocated within certain limits
	do not know (exclusive choice)
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	Equipping the system with the optimal resources is central to ensuring basic
	infrastructure, settings, and channels essential to the provision of services are
	available (79). The services delivery function relies on the system to support both
	long-term assets (e.g. facilities, equipment) and short-term operating costs
	including ordinary repair and maintenance. The availability of these resources is
	an enabler to the managerial capacity of the services delivery function (80).
Preferred data sources	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care financing
Feature	Payment methods in primary care
Indicator/question title	Provider payments (fin2q15)
Indicator/question definition or question	a. In which type of <u>settings</u> are primary care services predominantly provided? (select one) <i>Note:</i> please select only one answer. A similar set of questions follows for the second significant form of services provision, if needed.
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 public <u>nurse and midwife office</u> (e.g. health post) public office of a generalist medical practitioner public ambulatory generalist practitioners group practice public ambulatory multi-profile group practice (e.g. polyclinic) outpatient departments of public hospitals private <u>nurse and midwife office</u> (e.g. health post) private office of a generalist medical practitioner private ambulatory generalist practitioners group practice private ambulatory generalist practitioners group practice private ambulatory multi-profile group practice (e.g. polyclinic) outpatient departments of private hospitals other, please specify
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition or question	 b. Do <u>purchasers</u> pay these providers through the following means? <u>capitation</u> (select one) <u>fee-for-service</u> (select one) <u>pay-for-performance</u> (select one) <u>global budget</u> (select one) <u>bundled payments</u> (linked to conditions) (select one) other, please specify in comments (select one)

Numerator/denominator or answer choices Unit of measurement Indicator/question definition	 yes, country-wide yes, in some regions (please specify in comments) yes, is only being piloted no do not know comments or clarifications categorical c. If <u>capitation</u> is one component of payment, are the following risk factors used
or question	 for adjustment? age (select one) gender (select one) health status (e.g. measured by prevalence of specific conditions) (select one) prior use of services (select one) it is not adjusted (select one) other, please specify in comments
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 yes, country-wide yes, in some regions (please specify in comments) yes, is only being piloted no do not know comments or clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition	d. Please indicate the second most predominant form of services provision:
or question	(select one)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 public <u>nurse and midwife office</u> (e.g. health post) public office of a generalist medical practitioner public ambulatory generalist practitioners group practice public ambulatory multi-profile group practice (e.g. polyclinic) outpatient departments of public hospitals private <u>nurse and midwife office</u> (e.g. health post) private office of a generalist medical practitioner private ambulatory generalist practitioners group practice private ambulatory generalist practitioners group practice private ambulatory multi-profile group practice (e.g. polyclinic) outpatient departments of private hospitals
	other, please specify
	there is no second significant form of service provision
Indicator/question definition or question	e. Do <u>purchasers</u> pay these providers through the following means?
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 yes, country-wide yes, in some regions (please specify) yes, is only being piloted no do not know comments or clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical

Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition or question	 f. If <u>capitation</u> is one component of payment, are the following risk factors used for adjustment? age (select one) gender (select one) health status (e.g. measured by prevalence of specific conditions) (select one) prior use of services (select one) it is not adjusted (select one) other, please specify in comments
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 yes, country-wide yes, in some regions (please specify) yes, is only being piloted no do not know comments or clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	The organisation of health services resources has the potential to influence the accessibility of health services, their effectiveness, efficiency and quality, as well as health professionals' and patients' satisfaction. Generally, group practices are deemed to increase patient accessibility and professional working conditions, as well as the effectiveness and efficiency of health care delivery as several health professionals work together in collaboration. Furthermore, the public/private mix of institutions delivering health services is often considered to be an important feature of the health systems since: i) they respond to different motivations and face distinct constrains leading to variations in efficiency in the delivery of care; and ii) integrated public health services may be more receptive to command-and-control regulation from public authorities (<i>81</i>). Flexible blended payment methods produce a desirable mix of incentives that can change professional behaviour, improve the quality of care and reduce inequalities in the delivery of services (<i>64</i>).
Preferred data sources	OECD Health Systems Characteristics Survey
	Health Systems in Transition serieskey informant
Disaggregation	• rural/urban
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care financing
Feature	Payment methods in primary care
Indicator/question title	Employment status and remuneration of generalist medical practitioners (fin2q16)
Indicator/question definition or question	a. What is the predominant employment status of the generalist medical practitioners supplying primary care services? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 self-employed employed in the public sector privately employed do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition or question	b. How are these generalist medical practitioners remunerated? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	salaryfee-for-services

	 capitation mix of salary and <u>capitation</u> mix of fee-for-service and capitation mix of <u>fee-for-service</u> and salary mix of salary, fee-for-service and capitation do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	Flexible blended payment methods produce a desirable mix of incentives that can change professional behaviour, improve the quality of care and reduce inequalities in delivery of services (64). Provider payment arrangements affect the quantity, quality and efficiency of health services, each payment scheme providing specific incentives. For example, fee-for-services favours both quantity and quality, but can lead to supplier-induced demand. Whereas, prospective payments and capitation can lead providers to reduce their effort, select healthier patients and over-refer to other sectors of care (81-82).
Preferred data sources	 OECD Health Systems Characteristics Survey Health Systems in Transition series key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care financing
Feature	Payment methods in primary care
Indicator/question title	Pay-for-performance (fin2q17)
Indicator/question definition or question	a. Can primary care providers (health professionals or practices) get a bonus payment for achieving targets (<u>pay-for-performance</u>)? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 yes, country-wide yes, in some regions (please specify) yes, is only being piloted no do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition or question	If yes, please provide information for the largest pay-for-performance scheme for items b-e:
Indicator/question definition or question	b. Is participation mandatory or voluntary? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 mandatory for all primary care providers country-wide mandatory for subset of primary care providers (e.g. a region, rural, pilot) voluntary and open to all primary care providers voluntary but subject to some conditions (e.g. accreditation, practice size, geography) do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition or question	c. For those providers participating in the programme(s), if targets apply to receive bonus/payment, please specify the criteria (e.g. targets for screening or vaccination rate, the follow-up of individuals with chronic diseases, referral rates below a certain level, patient satisfaction, share of generics in prescriptions, etc.)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	comment

Unit of measurement	free answer
Indicator/question definition or question	d. Who is the bonus/payment normally paid to? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 directly to individual health professionals provider institutions, which then have a large degree of freedom to determine how payments are used (primary care facility) other, please specify do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	While rigorous systematic reviews of pay-for-performance programmes show that pay-for-performance does not lead to 'breakthrough' quality improvements, and measures and other key building blocks of the programmes can be highly inadequate, pay-for-performance can have a boarder role serving as an instrument for improving health system governance and strategic health purchasing, and an impact on the relationship between purchasers and providers by supporting discussion of provider payment reform, quality measurement, and accountability for outcomes (<i>83</i>).
Preferred data sources	OECD Health Systems Characteristics Surveykey informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care financing
Feature	Payment methods in primary care
Indicator/question title	Support for caregivers/family carers (informal sector) (fin2q18)
Indicator/question definition or question	 Is the following support available for <u>carers/family carers</u>? in cash (e.g. care allowance, paid care leave, attendance allowance) (select one) in kind (e.g. vouchers, respite services, social insurance contributions, unpaid care leave, day/night care services, community care services in general) (select one)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 yes, country-wide yes, in some regions (please specify) yes, is only being piloted no do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	Putting an appropriate mix of services in place, including support for informal care, is key to making health and long-term care systems sustainable in the future. Supporting informal caregivers, including providing training and protecting their physical and mental well-being contributes positively to outcomes for the health of caregivers and the people for whom they care. Financial support and social security benefits to these caregivers have been recognized as a means to support carers/family carers (83), (84).
Preferred data sources	Health Systems in Transition serieskey informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	Comparability across settings may be challenging if, for example, monetary benefits and reimbursement schemes vary widely, so some unit of standardisation might be needed. The indicator assesses on some of the known mechanisms to support informal caregivers/family carers.
Domain	Primary care structures
--	---
Subdomain	Primary care coverage of services
Feature	Benefit package
Indicator/question title	Services included in the health benefit package (fin3q19)
Indicator/question definition or question	 a. Are the following services included in the health benefit package? <u>outpatient consultations/visits</u>: generalist medical practitioners office consultations/visits (select one) <u>outpatient consultations/visits</u>: generalist medical practitioners home consultations/visits (select one) <u>outpatient consultations/visits</u>: allied health professionals (select one) <u>outpatient consultations/visits</u>: specialist medical practitioners (select one) diagnostic tests: laboratory tests (select one) diagnostic tests: imaging (select one) outpatient prescription medicines – prescribed in primary care (select one)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 yes, free at the point of care yes, subject to a fixed <u>co-payment</u> per service yes, subject to a <u>co-payment</u> as a percentage of the price of the service no, are not part of the benefit package do not know comments or clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition	b. If the service is not free at the point of care, for which of the following
	 <u>outpatient consultations/visits</u>: generalist medical practitioners office consultations/visits (select all that apply) <u>outpatient consultations/visits</u>: generalist medical practitioners home consultations/visits (select all that apply) <u>outpatient consultations/visits</u>: allied health professionals (select all that apply) <u>outpatient consultations/visits</u>: specialist medical practitioners (select all that apply) <u>outpatient consultations/visits</u>: specialist medical practitioners (select all that apply) <u>outpatient consultations/visits</u>: specialist medical practitioners (select all that apply) <u>diagnostic tests</u>: laboratory tests (select all that apply) <u>diagnostic tests</u>: imaging (select all that apply) <u>outpatient prescription medicines – prescribed in primary care (select all that apply)</u>
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 those with certain medical conditions those with disabilities low-income people beneficiaries of social benefits seniors children under a specific age, please specify pregnant women unemployed, please specify conditions families of unemployed, please specify conditions others, please specify
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	Formulating a service package and defining entitlements is a basic process of the health services delivery function (85). The exercise of specifying a core package of entitlements is a value-laden process, looking to decision-makers and system stewards to establish a strategic policy position and equitable framework for protected access to health services when faced with competing priorities.
Preferred data sources	 OECD Health Systems Characteristics Survey WHO Regional Office for Europe: Can people afford to pay for health care?

	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care workforce
Feature	Primary care workforce planning
Indicator/question title	Type of primary care health professionals (wrk1q20)
Indicator/question definition	a. Does a regulation specifying the health professionals working in primary health
or question	care exist? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	• yes, please specify name, number, weblink in comments
answer choices	• no
	do not know
	comments or clarifications
Unit of measure	categorical
Indicator/question definition	b. According to this regulation, do the following health professionals work in
or question	primary care? If there is no regulation in place, please specify in general.
	 general medical practitioner/family medicine doctor (select one)
	district therapeutist (select one)
	• district paediatric doctor (as a generalist medical practitioner) (select one)
	• <u>feldscher</u> (select one)
	 midwife (health professional / associate professional) (select one)
	 nurse (health professional / associate professional) (select one) (please
	specify)
	<u>social worker</u> (select one)
	 psychologist (select one)
	narrow specialist (select one)
	paediatrician (specialist) (select one)
	 specialist medical practitioner (select one) (please specify)
	 <u>physiotherapist</u> in ambulatory settings (select one)
	dietician and nutritionist (select one)
	occupational therapist (select one)
	• speech therapist (select one)
	• <u>dentist</u> (select one)
	• <u>pharmacist</u> (select one)
	• <u>public health professional</u> (please specify) (select one)
	• other (select one) (please specify)
	comments or clarifications (please specify if in practice, not bound by regulation,
Numerater/deneminator.or	any other health professionals work in primary care)
numerator/denominator or	• yes
answer choices	• do not know
Unit of mossurement	
Pationalo	Having a general medical practitioner rather than a specialist medical practitioner
Rationale	as a regular source of care has been associated with better health outcomes and
	lower health care costs. Greater supply of specialty physicians is consistently
	associated with better health outcomes. Nursing disciplines and allied health
	professionals perform services that address health risk behaviours more often than
	physicians (64).
Preferred data sources	review of national health policies
	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	The indicator does not provide information on the exact duties outlined for
	primary care health professionals.

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care workforce
Feature	Primary care workforce planning
Indicator/question title	Scope of practice for primary care health professionals (wrk1q21)
Indicator/question definition	a. Have tasks/duties been formally defined, by the government or professional
or question	bodies, for the following primary care health professionals?
	 generalist medical practitioner (select one)
	 nurse (health professional) (select one)
	 nurse (associate professional) (select one)
	 feldscher/paramedical practitioner (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	• yes
answer choices	• no
	not applicable
	• do not know
	comments or clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition	b. If yes, please provide the weblink and/or upload the relevant document.
or question	
Numerator/denominator or	weblink
answer choices	
Unit of measurement	document upload
Rationale	Legal reference to the tasks/duties of generalist medical practitioners gives formal
	recognition to the profession as a specific discipline and influences the position it
	takes in a health system (64).
Preferred data sources	review of national health policies
	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	The indicator does not provide information on the exact duties outlined for
	primary care health professionals.

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care workforce
Feature	Primary care workforce planning
Indicator/question title	Incentives for recruitment and retention in underserved areas (wrk1q22)
Indicator/question definition or question	 a. Do the following mechanisms to encourage generalist medical practitioners to work in underserved, remote and/or rural areas exist? compulsory service requirements in rural and remote areas (select one) scholarships, bursaries or other education subsidies with enforceable agreements of return of service in rural or remote areas (select one) financial <u>incentives</u> (e.g. hardship allowances, grants for housing, free transportation, paid vacation, grants for education of dependents) to outweigh the opportunity costs associated with working in rural areas (select one) other, please specify in comments
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 yes, country-wide yes, in some regions (please specify) yes, is only being piloted no do not know comments or clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition or question	b. Do the following mechanisms to encourage nurses with a post-graduate degree (practicing in primary care) to work in underserved, remote and/or rural areas exist?

	 compulsory service requirements in rural and remote areas (select one) scholarships, bursaries or other education subsidies with enforceable agreements of return of service in rural or remote areas (select one) financial <u>incentives</u> (e.g. hardship allowances, grants for housing, free transportation, paid vacation, grants for education of dependents) to outweigh the opportunity costs associated with working in rural areas (select one) other, please specify in comments
Numerator/denominator or	yes, country-wide
answer choices	 yes, in some regions (please specify)
	 yes, is only being piloted
	• no
	• do not know
	comments or clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	One of the most consistent policy characteristics in countries with a strong primary
	care system is the government's attempts to distribute resources equitably (64).
	Resolution WHA64.6 calls "to develop strategies and policies to increase the
	availability of motivated and skilled health professionals in remote and rural areas,
	with reference to WHO global policy recommendations on increasing access to
	health professionals in remote and rural areas through improved retention of the
	health workforce" (28). These are a set of evidence-based WHO recommendations
	on how to improve the recruitment and retention of health professionals in
	underserved areas (86).
Preferred data sources	review of national health policies
	key informant
Disaggregation	This indicator is part of the equity component.
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care workforce
Feature	Primary care workforce planning
Indicator/question title	Retraining programme for specialist medical practitioners/narrow specialists
	(wrk1q23)
Indicator/question definition	a. Is there a retraining programme for specialist medical practitioners/narrow
or question	specialists to work as generalist medical practitioners? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	 yes, part of a regular program
answer choices	 yes, according to assessments/needs/planning
	• no
	• do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition	b. If yes, how long is the retraining programme (full-time equivalent)?
or question	
Numerator/denominator or	number of months
answer choices	do not know
Unit of measurement	number of months
Indicator/question definition	c. If yes, how many specialist medical practitioners have been retrained into
or question	generalist medical practitioners in the most recent year?
Numerator/denominator or	number of physicians
answer choices	do not know
Unit of measurement	number of physicians
Rationale	A health workforce in sufficient quantity and equipped with adequate
	competencies is critical for improving outcomes for patients and populations (87).
	Health workforce planning and forecasting and training programmes are an
	integral process for anticipating a workforce capable of performing tasks that
	meet future health demands (88).

Preferred data sources	key informantdatabase
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care workforce
Feature	Primary care workforce planning
Indicator/question title	Workforce registry with information on primary care professionals (wrk1q24)
Indicator/question definition	Do <u>health workforce registries</u> currently exist with information specifically for:
or question	 generalist medical practitioners? (select one)
	 nurses specifically working in primary care? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	yes, electronic
answer choices	• yes, paper
	• no
	 do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	A workforce registry contributes accurate and timely health workforce data which
	is crucial for health workforce planning, training, improving regulation of practice,
	quality of care and easy access to information on the production, distribution and
	utilization of health professionals (52). The global strategy on human resources for
	health: Workforce 2030 calls for all Member States to have health professional
	registers by year 2030 (29).
Preferred data sources	Availability of national health services delivery data across the WHO
	European Region: scanning survey results
	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	The indicator measures the existence of a registry and not its quality regarding
	accuracy, completion etc.

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care workforce
Feature	Financial status of generalist medical practitioners
Indicator/question title	Relative financial status of generalist medical practitioners (wrk2q25)
Indicator/question definition	a. Relative financial status of generalist medical practitioners vs. average gross
or question	annual income of employees in the economy
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: average gross annual income (full-time equivalent) of generalist
answer choices	medical practitioners including social security contributions and income taxes
	payable by the employee (exclude practice expenses for self-employed doctors)
	Denominator: average gross annual income (<u>full-time equivalent</u>) of employees
	in the economy in local currency
Unit of measurement	ratio
Indicator/question definition	b. Relative financial status of generalist medical practitioners vs. specialist medical
or question	practitioners
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: average gross annual income (full-time equivalent, in local currency)
answer choices	of generalist medical practitioners including social security contributions and
	income taxes payable by the employee (exclude practice expenses for self-
	employed doctors)
	Denominator: average gross annual income (full-time equivalent, in local
	currency) of specialist medical practitioner/cardiologist, including social security
	contributions and income taxes payable by the employee (exclude practice
	expenses for self-employed doctors
Unit of measurement	ratio

Rationale	The ratio of average gross annual income of generalist medical practitioner to i)
	average wage of full-time employees in all sectors in the country, and ii) specialist
	medical practitioner, can be used to evaluate the financial attractiveness of a
	generalist medical practitioner. In many countries, governments influence the
	level and structure of physician remuneration by being one of the main employers
	of physicians or purchaser of their services, or by regulating their fees (89). Poor
	financial investment and discouraging health professional salaries are among the
	impediments to delivery of primary care.
Preferred data sources	International Labour Organization for average gross annual income of
	employees in the economy
	 OECD – StatHealth (13 countries, dataset: health care resources,
	remuneration of general practitioners, remuneration of specialists, no
	disaggregation)
	 national database – human resources
Disaggregation	• rural-urban
	• gender
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care workforce
Feature	Primary care workforce availability
Indicator/question title	Age distribution of generalist medical practitioners (wrk3q26)
Indicator/question definition	Age distribution of practising generalist medical practitioners
or question	
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: number of practising generalist medical practitioners with a given
answer choices	characteristic:
	≥34
	35-44
	45-54
	55-64
	≥65
	Denominator: total number of practising generalist medical practitioners (the
	number should be at the end of the calendar year)
	Note: the data should be provided for practising generalist medical practitioners,
	if not possible the data can be reported for professionally active generalist
	medical practitioners or generalist medical practitioners licensed to practise.
Unit of measurement	percent
Rationale	The key to maintaining a sufficient workforce, in the face of the impending
	retirement of the 'baby boom' generation, is to educate, recruit and retain young
	practitioners while reinvesting in a mature workforce (64). This indicator is
	included among core health workforce indicators of the framework 'Monitoring
	the Building Blocks of Health Systems' (55).
Preferred data sources	registries of health professionals
	health facility staffing routine data
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care workforce
Feature	Academic status of primary care
Indicator/question title	General practice/family medicine undergraduate/bachelor education
	(wrk4q27)
Indicator/question definition	Is there a mandatory full course on general practice/family medicine as part of
or question	the <u>undergraduate/bachelor's</u> medical education curriculum for all students?
	(select one)
Numerator/denominator or	yes, please specify number of hours
answer choices	• no
	do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	Despite the well-recognized importance of general practice/family medicine in
	medical education, undergraduate training remains widely based on disciplines
	other than general practice/family medicine (90-91). Increasing training in
	undergraduate medical education on general practice/family medicine ensures
	the exposure of students to the discipline and ultimately, contributes to the
	availability of skilled and qualified health professionals (64).
Preferred data sources	availability of skilled and qualified health professionals (64).key informant
Preferred data sources Disaggregation	availability of skilled and qualified health professionals (64). key informant none specified
Preferred data sources Disaggregation Limitations	 availability of skilled and qualified health professionals (64). key informant none specified This indicator determines the existence of training and its length but does not

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care workforce
Feature	Academic status of primary care
Indicator/question title	General practice/family medicine postgraduate education (wrk4q28)
Indicator/question definition	Is there a postgraduate specialization (specialty) in general practice/family
or question	medicine? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	 yes, please specify the duration of the programme in years
answer choices	• no
	 do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	The establishment of general practice/family medicine postgraduate training
	works to strengthen the position of general practice/family medicine in
	academics and the overall development of the discipline (64). To this end,
	international standards for postgraduate general practice/family medicine
	education have been developed (92).
Preferred data sources	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	This indicator determines the existence of training and its length but does not
	consider the actual contents or quality of the training provided.

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care workforce
Feature	Academic status of primary care
Indicator/question title	General practice/family medicine postgraduate clinical practice (wrk4q29)
Indicator/question definition	Do general practice/family medicine trainees spend time practicing in a primary
or question	care facility during postgraduate education programme? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	 yes, please specify the duration of the practice in hours
answer choices	• no
	• do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	During initial education, students should apply the competencies that they will
	be required use in clinical settings. It is well recognized that while students learn

	by abstraction and through lectures, they should also practice in clinical settings
	under the supervision of certified and practicing health professionals (75). This
	exposure and evaluation of required competencies during initial education
	should be an important criterion for certification and professional registration
	prior to entering the workforce.
Preferred data sources	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care workforce
Feature	Academic status of primary care
Indicator/question title	General practice/family medicine specialization among medical students
	(wrk4q30)
Indicator/question definition	Percent of students graduating from an undergraduate/bachelor's programme in
or question	medicine that enrol in general practice/family medicine specialization
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: number of individuals in the denominator that choose a general
answer choices	practice/family medicine specialization
	Denominator: total number of students graduating from an
	undergraduate/bachelor's programme in a reference year
Unit of measurement	percent
Rationale	A greater supply of primary care providers, as opposed to a greater supply of
	specialty physicians, is consistently associated with better health outcomes (64).
Preferred data sources	 routine administrative records of education institutions
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care workforce
Feature	Academic status of primary care
Indicator/question title	Nurses working in primary care undergraduate/bachelor and postgraduate
	education (wrk4q31)
Indicator/question definition	a. Do the following degree programmes exist for nurses?
or question	 vocational training (select one)
	 undergraduate/bachelor's programme (select one)
	 undergraduate/bachelor's programme (select one)
	 undergraduate/bachelor's programme (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	• yes
answer choices	• no
	do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition	b. If yes, can students specialize in primary care during the following education
or question	programmes? (select one)
	 vocational training (select one)
	 undergraduate/bachelor's programme (select one)
	• undergraduate/bachelor's programme + 1 year postgraduate education
	programme (select one)
	• undergraduate/bachelor's programme + 2 years or more postgraduate
	education programme (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	• yes
answer choices	• no
	• do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical

Rationale	The existence of a undergraduate and post-graduate programme in nursing/midwifery contributes to the availability of skilled and qualified health care providers which is a key quality determinant (64). Appropriately educated nurses working in advanced practice have been shown to provide services of equal quality to physicians (69).
Preferred data sources	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care workforce
Feature	Academic status of primary care
Indicator/question title	Professional journal on general practice/family medicine (wrk4q32)
Indicator/question definition	Is there a peer-reviewed journal on general practice/family medicine/primary
or question	health care, recognized as a scientific journal in the country and being published
	in one of your country's official languages? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	 yes, name and weblink
answer choices	• no
	• do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	The existence of a peer reviewed journal is an important contributor to the
	successful scientific progress of primary care (64).
Preferred data sources	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care information systems
Feature	Data capture
Indicator/question title	Electronic health records system (inf1q33)
Indicator/question definition	a. Does the <u>health information system</u> contain individual records for primary care
or question	services? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	yes, currently electronic
answer choices	 yes, currently in transition from paper-based to electronic
	 yes, currently paper-based
	• no
	do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition	b. Do individual records contain information on socio-economic determinants?
or question	(e.g. education, employment status, family status, etc.) (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	• yes
answer choices	• no
	• do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition	c. Is a unique patient identification number used in primary care? (select one)
or question	
Numerator/denominator or	• yes
answer choices	• no
	do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical

Rationale	Electronic health record systems can enable individuals to have an electronic
	record of their key characteristics and health concerns, as well as their history of
	encounters with the health system and the treatments that they have received
	from a variety of health providers. This record can then be shared with health
	providers to support the provision of the most appropriate care. The existence of
	such records opens a promising new frontier for advancing patient care, in the
	same way that advancements in the use of information technologies have
	revolutionised most other industries. Unique patient identifiers are crucial to the
	development of longitudinal electronic health records, to ensure that the data
	within the record is complete and accurate, as patients move among health care
	providers, health insurers, and regions within their country and over time. They
	are also important for statistical purposes to identify unique patients and to
	conduct, where approved, linkages of data across more than one data source
	(93).
Preferred data sources	Strengthening health information infrastructure for health care quality
	governance
	Availability of national health services delivery data across the WHO
	European Region: scanning survey results
	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care information systems
Feature	Data capture
Indicator/question title	Electronic health record system linked to clinical systems (inf1q34)
Indicator/question definition	Do <u>electronic health records</u> link to any of the following?
or question	 automatic vaccination alerting systems (select one)
	 pathology information systems (select one)
	 picture archiving and communication systems (select one)
	 pharmacy information systems (select one)
	 laboratory information systems (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	 yes, country-wide
answer choices	 yes, in some regions (please specify)
	yes, in some facilities
	 yes, is only being piloted
	• no
	• do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	Computerization of practices is becoming increasingly important in primary care
	for the practice of evidence-based medicine, learning and knowledge
	management and quality improvement processes. Effective use of
	computerization applications is beneficial for the efficiency and quality of care
	(64).
Preferred data sources	WHO global survey on eHealth (34)
	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care information systems
Feature	Aggregation of data
Indicator/question title	Patient registries (inf2q35)
Indicator/question definition	a. Do the following national <u>patient registries</u> exist?
or question	cardiovascular disease (select one)
	cancer (select one)
	diabetes (select one)
	respiratory disease (select one)
	tuberculosis (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	yes, electronic
answer choices	 yes, paper-based
	• no
	• do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition	b. Do individual records contain information on socio-economic determinants?
or question	(e.g. education, employment status, family status, etc.)
	cardiovascular disease (select one)
	cancer (select one)
	diabetes (select one)
	respiratory disease (select one)
	tuberculosis (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	• yes
answer choices	• no
	do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition	c. Is a unique patient identification number used in registries?
or question	cardiovascular disease (select one)
	• cancer (select one)
	diabetes (select one)
	respiratory disease (select one)
	tuberculosis (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	• yes
answer choices	• no
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	Information technology is commanding an increasingly important role in the
	nealth care arena. Electronic patient registries can signal and update the
	workforce about care plans, remind them of outreach enorts, and help monitor
	can serve the same basic functions as sophisticated systems by monitoring the
	incidence and prevalence of conditions in the clinical population, monitoring
	individual patients' treatment and outcomes and reminding providers about
	care plans (94)
Preferred data sources	WHO Global Country Capacity and Response Survey on
	Noncommunicable Diseases Survey 2017
	Availability of national health services delivery data across the WHO
	European Region: scanning survey results
	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	The indicator determines the existence of patient registries in general and
	therefore is not specific to primary care.

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care information systems
Feature	Patient platforms
Indicator/question title	Use of mHealth in primary care (inf3q36)
Indicator/question definition	Are the following mobile health (<u>mHealth</u>) services used in primary care?
or question	medication reminders (select one)
	 appointment reminders (select one)
	 patient monitoring (select one)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 yes, the programme is established (the programme has been running for at least two years, and is expected to continue for at least another two years) yes, the programme is a pilot (the programme is tested and evaluated in specific situations) yes, the programme exists at an informal level (there is an early adoption in the country, but no formal processes or policies are available) no do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	mHealth facilitates patients' engagement in their health care and allows for
	better coordination of care. mHealth offers the ability to actively engage
	individuals in health care in ways that previously have not been possible (95).
Preferred data sources	WHO global survey on eHealth
	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	The indicator does not provide information on whether patients use these
	platforms.

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care medicines
Feature	Availability of medicines
Indicator/question title	Reimbursement eligibility scheme for outpatient medicines (med1q37)
Indicator/question definition	a. Which is the key scheme for <u>eligibility for reimbursement coverage</u> for
or question	pharmaceuticals? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	product-specific reimbursement
answer choices	• <u>disease-specific</u>
	population-groups-specific
	• <u>consumption-based</u>
	no information
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition	b. Are there any other supplementary schemes for eligibility for pharmaceutical
or question	b. Are there any other supplementary schemes for eligibility for pharmaceutical reimbursement? (select all that apply)
Indicator/question definition or question Numerator/denominator or	 b. Are there any other supplementary schemes for eligibility for pharmaceutical reimbursement? (select all that apply) <u>product-specific</u>
Indicator/question definition or question Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 b. Are there any other supplementary schemes for eligibility for pharmaceutical reimbursement? (select all that apply) <u>product-specific</u> <u>disease-specific</u>
Indicator/question definition or question Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 b. Are there any other supplementary schemes for eligibility for pharmaceutical reimbursement? (select all that apply) <u>product-specific</u> <u>disease-specific</u> <u>population-groups-specific</u>
Indicator/question definition or question Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 b. Are there any other supplementary schemes for eligibility for pharmaceutical reimbursement? (select all that apply) product-specific disease-specific population-groups-specific consumption-based
Indicator/question definition or question Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 b. Are there any other supplementary schemes for eligibility for pharmaceutical reimbursement? (select all that apply) product-specific disease-specific population-groups-specific consumption-based no other scheme
Indicator/question definition or question Numerator/denominator or answer choices	b. Are there any other supplementary schemes for eligibility for pharmaceutical reimbursement? (select all that apply) product-specific disease-specific population-groups-specific consumption-based no other scheme no information
Indicator/question definition or question Numerator/denominator or answer choices Unit of measurement	 b. Are there any other supplementary schemes for eligibility for pharmaceutical reimbursement? (select all that apply) product-specific disease-specific population-groups-specific consumption-based no other scheme no information categorical
Indicator/question definition or question Numerator/denominator or answer choices Unit of measurement Rationale	 b. Are there any other supplementary schemes for eligibility for pharmaceutical reimbursement? (select all that apply) product-specific disease-specific population-groups-specific consumption-based no other scheme no information categorical Eligibility for reimbursement coverage contributes to the understanding of

	Development Goal. The supply and prescription of primary care medicines must
	reflect appropriate evidence-based standards. Limits and imperfections in the
	system of medicine supply and financing can disrupt access to quality medicines
	(96).
Proformed data sources	• WHO survey of the Pharmacoutical Priving and Paimhursement
Treferred data sources	• WHO survey of the Fharmaceutical Fricing and Reimbursement
	Information Network
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	non specified

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care medicines
Feature	Availability of medicines in primary care
Indicator/question title	Availability of essential medicines for primary care (med1q156)
Indicator/question definition	Proportion of health facilities that have a core set of relevant essential medicines
or question	available on a sustainable basis
Numerator/Denominator or	As calculated for the reporting on SDG 3.b.3 indicator which captures not only
answer choices	the availability but also the affordability of a basket of essential medicines.
	For detailed computation method and methodology please refer to the
	metadata of indicator SDG 3.b.3 (97).
Unit of measurement	percent
Rationale	This is indicator is part of the SDG 3.b.3 which evaluates the access to medicines at health facilities and a detailed rational can be found in its metadata (97). Access to medicines is an integral part of the universal health coverage movement and indispensable to the delivery of quality health care. Measuring and monitoring access to medicines is integral to understanding whether essential medicines are available and affordable. While the accessibility indicator combines both dimensions, availability and affordability, into a single evaluation, understanding only whether the basket of medicines is available at the facility level is important in evaluating the gaps in delivery of services.
Preferred data sources	 as reported to the SDG monitoring (Health Action International Project supported by the WHO, the Service Availability and Readiness Assessment survey or the WHO Medicines Price and Availability Monitoring mobile application)
Disaggregation	As reported to the SDG; the calculation proposed for the SDG 3.b.3 allows for the following disaggregation: public/private facilities geography – rural/urban areas therapeutic group facility type (pharmacy/hospital) medicine
Limitations	The calculation for availability alone may not be readily available as the SDG 3.b.3 indicator combines availability and affordability. The 28 medicines identified for the SDG indicator cover tracers conditions relevant to the PHC-IMPACT (non-communicable diseases, mental health conditions, palliative care and anti-infective) as well as mother and child health, and antiretroviral, therefore a disaggregation by therapeutic group, if available, should be reported. For further limitations to this indicator please refer to the metadata of SDG 3.b.3 (97).

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care diagnostics
Feature	Laboratory
Indicator/question title	Availability of laboratory tests in primary care (dgn1q38)
Indicator/question definition	Is laboratory medical equipment available in primary care facilities to carry out
or question	the following tests?
	blood glucose measurement
	oral glucose tolerance test
	HbA1c, diabetes testing
	urine test glucose/sugar
	urine test ketone bodies
	total cholesterol measurement
	urine strips for albumin assay
	fecal occult blood test
	PAP smear (cervical cytology)
	HPV test
	• rapid tuberculosis diagnosis using WHO recommended rapid test such
	as Xpert MTB/RIF
	 rapid streptococcal test for throat swap
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: number of facilities in the denominator that have available and
answer choices	functional the medical equipment on-site or the specimen can be collected at the
	facility and sent out by the staff
	Denominator: number of primary care facilities surveyed
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	 generally available (in 50% or more facilities)
	 generally not available (in less than 50% of facilities)
	not available
Unit of measurement	category
Unit of measurement Rationale	category The availability of timely diagnostic testing following screening and prevention
Unit of measurement Rationale	category The availability of timely diagnostic testing following screening and prevention services, as well as appropriate treatment as needed, have been recognized to
Unit of measurement Rationale	category The availability of timely diagnostic testing following screening and prevention services, as well as appropriate treatment as needed, have been recognized to contribute to the comprehensive delivery of services in primary care (80). New
Unit of measurement Rationale	category The availability of timely diagnostic testing following screening and prevention services, as well as appropriate treatment as needed, have been recognized to contribute to the comprehensive delivery of services in primary care (80). New technologies and testing processes can help to identify those in need of
Unit of measurement Rationale	category The availability of timely diagnostic testing following screening and prevention services, as well as appropriate treatment as needed, have been recognized to contribute to the comprehensive delivery of services in primary care (80). New technologies and testing processes can help to identify those in need of treatment early in the disease process (98). A wide array of laboratory tests is
Unit of measurement Rationale	category The availability of timely diagnostic testing following screening and prevention services, as well as appropriate treatment as needed, have been recognized to contribute to the comprehensive delivery of services in primary care (80). New technologies and testing processes can help to identify those in need of treatment early in the disease process (98). A wide array of laboratory tests is utilized for the management of noncommunicable diseases. Selecting the
Unit of measurement Rationale	category The availability of timely diagnostic testing following screening and prevention services, as well as appropriate treatment as needed, have been recognized to contribute to the comprehensive delivery of services in primary care (80). New technologies and testing processes can help to identify those in need of treatment early in the disease process (98). A wide array of laboratory tests is utilized for the management of noncommunicable diseases. Selecting the appropriate mix of the most cost-effective technological applications is
Unit of measurement Rationale	category The availability of timely diagnostic testing following screening and prevention services, as well as appropriate treatment as needed, have been recognized to contribute to the comprehensive delivery of services in primary care (80). New technologies and testing processes can help to identify those in need of treatment early in the disease process (98). A wide array of laboratory tests is utilized for the management of noncommunicable diseases. Selecting the appropriate mix of the most cost-effective technological applications is particularly challenging when investment is inadequate (57-58). For tuberculosis,
Unit of measurement Rationale	category The availability of timely diagnostic testing following screening and prevention services, as well as appropriate treatment as needed, have been recognized to contribute to the comprehensive delivery of services in primary care (80). New technologies and testing processes can help to identify those in need of treatment early in the disease process (98). A wide array of laboratory tests is utilized for the management of noncommunicable diseases. Selecting the appropriate mix of the most cost-effective technological applications is particularly challenging when investment is inadequate (57-58). For tuberculosis, this indicator is in line with the objective of increasing access to rapid and
Unit of measurement Rationale	category The availability of timely diagnostic testing following screening and prevention services, as well as appropriate treatment as needed, have been recognized to contribute to the comprehensive delivery of services in primary care (80). New technologies and testing processes can help to identify those in need of treatment early in the disease process (98). A wide array of laboratory tests is utilized for the management of noncommunicable diseases. Selecting the appropriate mix of the most cost-effective technological applications is particularly challenging when investment is inadequate (57-58). For tuberculosis, this indicator is in line with the objective of increasing access to rapid and accurate WHO recommended rapid tests, and monitors whether countries aim to
Unit of measurement Rationale	category The availability of timely diagnostic testing following screening and prevention services, as well as appropriate treatment as needed, have been recognized to contribute to the comprehensive delivery of services in primary care (80). New technologies and testing processes can help to identify those in need of treatment early in the disease process (98). A wide array of laboratory tests is utilized for the management of noncommunicable diseases. Selecting the appropriate mix of the most cost-effective technological applications is particularly challenging when investment is inadequate (57-58). For tuberculosis, this indicator is in line with the objective of increasing access to rapid and accurate WHO recommended rapid tests, and monitors whether countries aim to phase out microscopy as an initial diagnostic test which should be done by no
Unit of measurement Rationale	category The availability of timely diagnostic testing following screening and prevention services, as well as appropriate treatment as needed, have been recognized to contribute to the comprehensive delivery of services in primary care (80). New technologies and testing processes can help to identify those in need of treatment early in the disease process (98). A wide array of laboratory tests is utilized for the management of noncommunicable diseases. Selecting the appropriate mix of the most cost-effective technological applications is particularly challenging when investment is inadequate (57-58). For tuberculosis, this indicator is in line with the objective of increasing access to rapid and accurate WHO recommended rapid tests, and monitors whether countries aim to phase out microscopy as an initial diagnostic test which should be done by no later than 2025. Countries should not invest in establishing additional microscopy
Unit of measurement Rationale	category The availability of timely diagnostic testing following screening and prevention services, as well as appropriate treatment as needed, have been recognized to contribute to the comprehensive delivery of services in primary care (80). New technologies and testing processes can help to identify those in need of treatment early in the disease process (98). A wide array of laboratory tests is utilized for the management of noncommunicable diseases. Selecting the appropriate mix of the most cost-effective technological applications is particularly challenging when investment is inadequate (57-58). For tuberculosis, this indicator is in line with the objective of increasing access to rapid and accurate WHO recommended rapid tests, and monitors whether countries aim to phase out microscopy as an initial diagnostic test which should be done by no later than 2025. Countries should not invest in establishing additional microscopy facilities. Countries that have positioned a WHO recommended rapid test as the
Unit of measurement Rationale	category The availability of timely diagnostic testing following screening and prevention services, as well as appropriate treatment as needed, have been recognized to contribute to the comprehensive delivery of services in primary care (80). New technologies and testing processes can help to identify those in need of treatment early in the disease process (98). A wide array of laboratory tests is utilized for the management of noncommunicable diseases. Selecting the appropriate mix of the most cost-effective technological applications is particularly challenging when investment is inadequate (57-58). For tuberculosis, this indicator is in line with the objective of increasing access to rapid and accurate WHO recommended rapid tests, and monitors whether countries aim to phase out microscopy as an initial diagnostic test which should be done by no later than 2025. Countries should not invest in establishing additional microscopy facilities. Countries that have positioned a WHO recommended rapid test as the initial diagnostic test for all people with signs and symptoms of tuberculosis and
Unit of measurement Rationale	category The availability of timely diagnostic testing following screening and prevention services, as well as appropriate treatment as needed, have been recognized to contribute to the comprehensive delivery of services in primary care (80). New technologies and testing processes can help to identify those in need of treatment early in the disease process (98). A wide array of laboratory tests is utilized for the management of noncommunicable diseases. Selecting the appropriate mix of the most cost-effective technological applications is particularly challenging when investment is inadequate (57-58). For tuberculosis, this indicator is in line with the objective of increasing access to rapid and accurate WHO recommended rapid tests, and monitors whether countries aim to phase out microscopy as an initial diagnostic test which should be done by no later than 2025. Countries should not invest in establishing additional microscopy facilities. Countries that have positioned a WHO recommended rapid test as the initial diagnostic test for all people with signs and symptoms of tuberculosis and that have established reliable WHO recommended rapid tests supply systems
Unit of measurement Rationale	category The availability of timely diagnostic testing following screening and prevention services, as well as appropriate treatment as needed, have been recognized to contribute to the comprehensive delivery of services in primary care (80). New technologies and testing processes can help to identify those in need of treatment early in the disease process (98). A wide array of laboratory tests is utilized for the management of noncommunicable diseases. Selecting the appropriate mix of the most cost-effective technological applications is particularly challenging when investment is inadequate (57-58). For tuberculosis, this indicator is in line with the objective of increasing access to rapid and accurate WHO recommended rapid tests, and monitors whether countries aim to phase out microscopy as an initial diagnostic test which should be done by no later than 2025. Countries should not invest in establishing additional microscopy facilities. Countries that have positioned a WHO recommended rapid test as the initial diagnostic test for all people with signs and symptoms of tuberculosis and that have established reliable WHO recommended rapid tests supply systems and specimen referral systems, may create referral hubs for microscopy for
Unit of measurement Rationale	category The availability of timely diagnostic testing following screening and prevention services, as well as appropriate treatment as needed, have been recognized to contribute to the comprehensive delivery of services in primary care (80). New technologies and testing processes can help to identify those in need of treatment early in the disease process (98). A wide array of laboratory tests is utilized for the management of noncommunicable diseases. Selecting the appropriate mix of the most cost-effective technological applications is particularly challenging when investment is inadequate (57-58). For tuberculosis, this indicator is in line with the objective of increasing access to rapid and accurate WHO recommended rapid tests, and monitors whether countries aim to phase out microscopy as an initial diagnostic test which should be done by no later than 2025. Countries should not invest in establishing additional microscopy facilities. Countries that have positioned a WHO recommended rapid test as the initial diagnostic test for all people with signs and symptoms of tuberculosis and that have established reliable WHO recommended rapid tests supply systems and specimen referral systems, may create referral hubs for microscopy for treatment monitoring (99).
Unit of measurement Rationale	category The availability of timely diagnostic testing following screening and prevention services, as well as appropriate treatment as needed, have been recognized to contribute to the comprehensive delivery of services in primary care (80). New technologies and testing processes can help to identify those in need of treatment early in the disease process (98). A wide array of laboratory tests is utilized for the management of noncommunicable diseases. Selecting the appropriate mix of the most cost-effective technological applications is particularly challenging when investment is inadequate (57-58). For tuberculosis, this indicator is in line with the objective of increasing access to rapid and accurate WHO recommended rapid tests, and monitors whether countries aim to phase out microscopy as an initial diagnostic test which should be done by no later than 2025. Countries should not invest in establishing additional microscopy facilities. Countries that have positioned a WHO recommended rapid tests as the initial diagnostic test for all people with signs and symptoms of tuberculosis and that have established reliable WHO recommended rapid tests supply systems and specimen referral systems, may create referral hubs for microscopy for treatment monitoring (99). • WHO Global Country Capacity and Response Survey on
Unit of measurement Rationale	 category The availability of timely diagnostic testing following screening and prevention services, as well as appropriate treatment as needed, have been recognized to contribute to the comprehensive delivery of services in primary care (80). New technologies and testing processes can help to identify those in need of treatment early in the disease process (98). A wide array of laboratory tests is utilized for the management of noncommunicable diseases. Selecting the appropriate mix of the most cost-effective technological applications is particularly challenging when investment is inadequate (57-58). For tuberculosis, this indicator is in line with the objective of increasing access to rapid and accurate WHO recommended rapid tests, and monitors whether countries aim to phase out microscopy as an initial diagnostic test which should be done by no later than 2025. Countries should not invest in establishing additional microscopy facilities. Countries that have positioned a WHO recommended rapid tests as the initial diagnostic test for all people with signs and symptoms of tuberculosis and that have established reliable WHO recommended rapid tests supply systems and specimen referral systems, may create referral hubs for microscopy for treatment monitoring (99). WHO Global Country Capacity and Response Survey on Noncommunicable Diseases Survey 2017
Unit of measurement Rationale	 category The availability of timely diagnostic testing following screening and prevention services, as well as appropriate treatment as needed, have been recognized to contribute to the comprehensive delivery of services in primary care (80). New technologies and testing processes can help to identify those in need of treatment early in the disease process (98). A wide array of laboratory tests is utilized for the management of noncommunicable diseases. Selecting the appropriate mix of the most cost-effective technological applications is particularly challenging when investment is inadequate (57-58). For tuberculosis, this indicator is in line with the objective of increasing access to rapid and accurate WHO recommended rapid tests, and monitors whether countries aim to phase out microscopy as an initial diagnostic test which should be done by no later than 2025. Countries should not invest in establishing additional microscopy facilities. Countries that have positioned a WHO recommended rapid tests as the initial diagnostic test for all people with signs and symptoms of tuberculosis and that have established reliable WHO recommended rapid tests supply systems and specimen referral systems, may create referral hubs for microscopy for treatment monitoring (99). WHO Global Country Capacity and Response Survey on Noncommunicable Diseases Survey 2017 health facility database
Unit of measurement Rationale	 category The availability of timely diagnostic testing following screening and prevention services, as well as appropriate treatment as needed, have been recognized to contribute to the comprehensive delivery of services in primary care (80). New technologies and testing processes can help to identify those in need of treatment early in the disease process (98). A wide array of laboratory tests is utilized for the management of noncommunicable diseases. Selecting the appropriate mix of the most cost-effective technological applications is particularly challenging when investment is inadequate (57-58). For tuberculosis, this indicator is in line with the objective of increasing access to rapid and accurate WHO recommended rapid tests, and monitors whether countries aim to phase out microscopy as an initial diagnostic test which should be done by no later than 2025. Countries should not invest in establishing additional microscopy facilities. Countries that have positioned a WHO recommended rapid tests supply systems and specimen referral systems, may create referral hubs for microscopy for treatment monitoring (99). WHO Global Country Capacity and Response Survey on Noncommunicable Diseases Survey 2017 health facility database expert consensus
Unit of measurement Rationale Preferred data sources Disaggregation	 category The availability of timely diagnostic testing following screening and prevention services, as well as appropriate treatment as needed, have been recognized to contribute to the comprehensive delivery of services in primary care (80). New technologies and testing processes can help to identify those in need of treatment early in the disease process (98). A wide array of laboratory tests is utilized for the management of noncommunicable diseases. Selecting the appropriate mix of the most cost-effective technological applications is particularly challenging when investment is inadequate (57-58). For tuberculosis, this indicator is in line with the objective of increasing access to rapid and accurate WHO recommended rapid tests, and monitors whether countries aim to phase out microscopy as an initial diagnostic test which should be done by no later than 2025. Countries should not invest in establishing additional microscopy facilities. Countries that have positioned a WHO recommended rapid test as the initial diagnostic test for all people with signs and symptoms of tuberculosis and that have established reliable WHO recommended rapid tests supply systems and specimen referral systems, may create referral hubs for microscopy for treatment monitoring (99). WHO Global Country Capacity and Response Survey on Noncommunicable Diseases Survey 2017 health facility database expert consensus public/private

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care diagnostics
Feature	Imaging
Indicator/question title	Availability of diagnostic imaging in primary care (dgn2q39)
Indicator/question definition	Is <u>medical equipment</u> available in <u>primary care facilities</u> to carry out the following
or question	diagnostic imaging?
	• x-ray
	electrocardiography
	regular ultrasound
	 Doppler ultrasound (for foot vascular status)
	• sigmoidoscopy
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: number of facilities in the denominator that have available and
answer choices	functional all the medical equipment on-site
	Denominator: number of primary care facilities surveyed
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	 generally available (in 50% or more facilities)
	 generally not available (in less than 50% of facilities)
	not available
Unit of measurement	category
Rationale	New technologies and testing processes can help to identify those in need of
	treatment early in the disease process and facilitate self-management (98). The
	availability of timely diagnostic testing following screening and prevention
	services, as well as appropriate treatment as needed, have been recognized to
	contribute to the comprehensive delivery of services in primary care (80).
Preferred data sources	 WHO Global Country Capacity and Response Survey on
	Noncommunicable Diseases Survey 2017
	health facility database
	expert consensus
Disaggregation	public/private
Limitations	Availability of laboratory equipment/technology does not indicate that the
	services are necessarily being offered in primary care. The data source for these
	structures question is the WHO country capacity survey which does not
	distinguish between availability of technology, and offer of services (100).

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care technologies
Feature	Basic technology
Indicator/question title	Availability of equipment in primary care (tch1q40)
Indicator/question definition or question	Are the following <u>medical devices/equipment</u> available in <u>primary care facilities</u> ? bag valve mask for manual resuscitation (e.g. Ambu bag) blood pressure instruments defibrillator height scale ophthalmoscope peak flow meter/spirometer tuning fork weighing machine
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	Numerator: number of facilities in the denominator that have available and functional all the medical devices/equipment on-site Denominator: number of primary care facilities surveyed Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available: • generally available (in 50% or more facilities) • generally not available (in less than 50% of facilities) • not available

Unit of measurement	exact percent if available, otherwise categorical
Rationale	To effectively provide essential health services, facilities must have a minimum
	level of essential technologies available. Inadequate equipment and supplies are
	one of the impediments to the delivery of primary care services (78). The list of
	medical devices by health care facility type is available from WHO (53). In
	addition, in the Package of Essential Noncommunicable Diseases Interventions
	for Primary Health Care a minimum level of essential technologies were identified
	to effectively provide essential health services (57). The indicator/question draws
	from the Noncommunicable Diseases Global Monitoring Framework (56).
Preferred data sources	 WHO Global Country Capacity and Response Survey on
	Noncommunicable Diseases Survey 2017
	health facility database
	expert consensus
Disaggregation	public/private
Limitations	The availability of laboratory equipment/technology does not indicate that the
	services are necessarily being offered in primary care. The data source for these
	structures question is the WHO country capacity survey which does not
	distinguish between availability of technology, and offer of services (101).

Domain	Primary care structures
Subdomain	Primary care facility infrastructure
Feature	Amenities
Indicator/question title	General service readiness at facility level (str1q42)
Indicator/question definition	a. Is facility improvement planned by the following levels of government?
or question	central government (select one)
	 regional/oblast government (select one)
	 local government (municipal/district) (select one)
	communities (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	• yes
answer choices	• no
	 do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition	b. If the facility improvement plan exists, does it include the following
or question	considerations?
	 accessibility for persons with disability (select one)
	IT infrastructure (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	• yes
answer choices	• no
	not applicable
	 do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	An accessible environment is necessary for an effective and functional health
	services delivery system and a key predictor of accessibility (68).
Preferred data sources	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Model of care

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care selection of services
Feature	Identifying needs
Indicator/question title	Population stratification (sel1q43)
Indicator/question	Is the selection of services informed by population stratification? (select one)
definition or question	
Numerator/denominator or	 yes, by population risk
answer choices	yes, by vulnerable status
	• yes, by both
	• no
	do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	The assessment of health needs for a given population, stratifying for
	epidemiological, demographic or geographic variables is acknowledged as a
	precursor for the planning and targeting of services to manage needs and to
	proactively address known risk factors (85). This focus on population health
	ensures, among other planning considerations such as financial resources, staff,
	medicines and supplies that the package of services is tailored to a defined
	population.
Preferred data sources	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care selection of services
Feature	Preventive care
Indicator/question title	Counselling services (sel1q44)
Indicator/question	If the following counselling services are provided in primary care please select
definition or question	those health professional that provide these services. Please answer according
	to regulation. If no regulation is in place, please specify in general.
	tobacco (select all that apply)
	physical activity (select all that apply)
	 intake of salt (select all that apply)
	 consumption of fruits and vegetables (select all that apply)
	 use of alcohol (select all that apply)
	 bodyweight (select all that apply)
	 family planning services (select all that apply)
	 psychological counselling for mental disorders (select all that apply)
Numerator/denominator or	generalist medical practitioner
answer choices	 nurse/midwife/feldscher/paramedical practitioner
	narrow specialist
	• specialist
	• other working in primary care (specify)
	public health professional (specify)
	 not provided in primary care (exclusive choice)
	do not know (exclusive choice)
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	A minimum set of interventions can be delivered by generalist medical
	practitioners, narrow specialists (in countries of the Commonwealth of

	Independent States), and non-physician health professionals in primary care. If
	effectively integrated into primary care they can make a significant contribution
	to the reduction of morbidity and premature mortality from major
	noncommunicable diseases. In general, the provision of a wide range of
	services provided in primary care is associated with better health outcomes at
	lower costs (56-57, 64).
Preferred data sources	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care selection of services
Feature	Preventive care
Indicator/question title	Population-based screenings (sel1q45)
Indicator/question	a. How are the following screening programmes delivered?
definition or question	cervical cancer screening (select one)
	breast cancer screening (select one)
	colon cancer screening (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	integrated into primary care
answer choices	 in primary care but organized as a vertical programme
	as a vertical programme
	 other (please specify)
	does not exist
	do not know
	comments and clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question	b. Is there <u>dispensarization</u> in primary care for the following conditions?
definition or question	cardiovascular disease (select one)
	 diabetes type 2 (select one)
	respiratory disease (select one)
	cancer (select one)
	tuberculosis (select one)
	mental health (select one)
	Note: skip if not country of the Commonwealth of Independent States.
Numerator/denominator or	• yes
answer choices	• no
	do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	Core individual services for early detection of priority diseases ensure people-
	centered primary health care. Priority interventions reflect those cost-effective
	services corresponding to effective approaches to reduce burden of
	noncommunicable diseases as identified in the Package of Essential
	Noncommunicable Disease Interventions for Primary Health Care (30, 57, 102).
Preferred data sources	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care selection of services
Feature	Preventive care
Indicator/question title	Individual risk assessments/stratification (sel2q46)
Indicator/question	If the following services are provided in primary care select those health
definition or question	professionals that provide these services. Please answer according to
	regulation. If no regulation is in place, please specify in general.
	 annual physical exam/health evaluation (select all that apply)
	 cardiovascular disease risk assessment (using WHO/ISH risk charts) (select all that apply)
	 cardiovascular disease risk stratification for the management of
	individuals at high risk for heart attack and stroke (select all that apply)
	• detection of hypertension using a risk prediction chart (select all that
	apply)
	 detection of diabetes type 2 using total risk approach (select all that
	apply)
	• tuberculosis symptoms detection for at risk populations (select all that
	apply)
	• mental health risk assessment (select all that apply)
	<u>HEADSS assessment</u> for adolescents (select all that apply)
Numerator/denominator or	generalist medical practitioner
answer choices	nurse/mowife/feloscher/paramedical practitioner narrow specialist
	specialist
	 other working in primary care (specify)
	 not provided in primary care (exclusive choice)
	 not provided in the country (exclusive choice)
	• do not know (exclusive choice)
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	A minimum set of preventive interventions can be delivered by generalist
	medical practitioners, narrow specialists (in countries of the Commonwealth of
	Independent States) and non-physician health workers in primary care. If
	effectively integrated into primary care, these preventive services can make a
	significant contribution to the reduction of morbidity and premature mortality
	trom major noncommunicable diseases. First contact care by primary care
	health professionals is essential to address the wide variety and often very basic
Professed data assurant	needs existing in the community (64, 102).
Freierred data sources	• Key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care selection of services
Feature	Preventive care
Indicator/question title	Vaccination services (sel2q47)
Indicator/question definition or question	 Are the following vaccination services available in primary care? HPV vaccination for girls (select one) HPV vaccination for boys (select one) influenza vaccination for at risk population (elderly, pregnant women etc.) (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	• yes
	do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical

Rationale	The HPV vaccination indicator is a core measure of the global monitoring
	framework for noncommunicable diseases which will track the implementation
	of the noncommunicable diseases action plan through monitoring and
	reporting on the attainment of the global targets in 2015–2020. The 25 indicators and the 9 voluntary global targets of the framework provide overall
	direction and the action plan provides a roadmap for reaching the targets (56).
	Vaccination services are a core component of health promotion and disease
	prevention – key to the delivery of a broad range of services across stages of
	the lifespan in primary health care.
Preferred data sources	WHO Global Country Capacity and Response Survey on
	Noncommunicable Diseases Survey
	Seasonal influenza vaccination in Europe technical report
	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care selection of services
Feature	Diagnostic procedures
Indicator/question title	Diagnostic exams (sel3q48)
Indicator/question definition or question	If the following exams are provided in primary care please select those health professionals that provide these services. Please answer according to regulation. If no regulation is in place, please specify in general. dilated fundus examination (select all that apply) Doppler ultrasound for foot vascular status (select all that apply) electrocardiography (select all that apply) peak flow measurement (select all that apply) pulse oximetry (select all that apply) pulse oximetry (select all that apply) regular ultrasound (select all that apply) sigmoidoscopy (select all that apply) spirometry (select all that apply) x-ray (select all that apply) Note: the indicator seeks information on the availability of each diagnostic exam in primary care. An evaluation of medical equipment necessary for these tests was sought in Primary Care Structures
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 generalist medical practitioner nurse/midwife/feldscher/paramedical practitioner narrow specialist specialist other working in primary care (specify) not provided in primary care (exclusive choice) do not know (exclusive choice)
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	The delivery of a wide range of interventions in primary care is associated to better health outcomes. When effectively integrated into primary care these services can significantly contribute to the reduction of morbidity and premature mortality from major noncommunicable diseases at lower costs (30, 58, 64).
Preferred data sources	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	Data from WHO Country Capacity Survey is used to inform questions under the domain of primary care structures. To answer this indicator, which seeks to understand the interventions integrated into primary care, a key informant must be approached.

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care selection of services
Feature	Diagnostic procedures
Indicator/question title	Final diagnosis in primary care (sel3q49)
Indicator/question definition or question	 Which primary care health professionals can make the <u>final diagnosis</u> in primary care for the following conditions? Please answer according to regulation. If no regulation is in place, please specify in general. hypertension (select all that apply) ischemic heart disease (select all that apply) diabetes type 2 (select all that apply) asthma (select all that apply) chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (select all that apply) tuberculosis (select all that apply)
	latent tuberculosis infection (select all that apply)depression (select all that apply)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 generalist medical practitioner nurse/midwife/feldscher/paramedical practitioner narrow specialist specialist other working in primary care (specify) not provided in primary care (exclusive choice) do not know (exclusive choice)
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	Hierarchical processes in services delivery can perpetuate specialist-driven processes to diagnose and treat conditions that could be managed in primary care (104). The International Classification of Primary Care recognizes the above reasons for patient encounters as problems/diagnosis that can be managed in primary care (105).
Preferred data sources	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care selection of services
Feature	Treatment
Indicator/question title	Prescribing authority of generalist medical practitioner (sel4q50)
Indicator/question definition or question	 Can generalist medical practitioners prescribe/refill the following medicine? statin as secondary prevention for those individuals with prior CVD (heart attacks, strokes, and peripheral vascular disease) (select one) statin as secondary prevention for individuals, 40+ years, registered for treatment with diabetes type 2 (select one) penicillin as secondary prophylaxis for rheumatic fever and rheumatic heart disease (select one) aspirin as secondary prevention for individuals diagnose with ischemic heart disease (select one) angiotensin-converting enzyme inhibitor (ACE-I) (select one) beta-blocker (select one) calcium channel blockers (CCB) (ex. amlodipine) (select one) thiazide or thiazide-like diuretic (select one) metformin (select one) sulphonylurea (e.g. glibenclamide) (select one) bronchodilators (e.g. oral short-acting b2 agonists, inhaled short-acting b2 agonists) (select one) inhaled steroids (select one)

 oral morphine (select one) treatment for drug-susceptible tuberculosis: isoniazid, rifampicin, pyrazinamide, ethambutol (first line treatment: 2HRZE/4HR) (select one) antipsychotics for psychotic disorders (chlorpromazine, fluphenazine, haloperidol, risperidone) (select one) antioepressants for depression and anxiety disorders (amitriptyline, fluoxetine) (select one) anxiolytics and tranquilizers for anxiety disorders and sleep disorders (diazepam) (select one) anticonvulsant medicine and mood stabilizers for bipolar disorder (carbamazepine, lithium carbonate, valporic acid) (select one) anticonvulsant medicine and mood stabilizers for bipolar disorder (carbamazepine, lithium carbonate, valporic acid) (select one) anticonvulsant medicine and mood stabilizers for bipolar disorder (carbamazepine, lithium carbonate, valporic acid) (select one) answer choices can prescribe/refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist. can prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe but can refill with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe/refill not applicable do not know Unit of measurement categorical Rationale This indicator measures the potential for essential drugs to be accessed through primary care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence. Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). While prescribing restrictons can contribute t
 treatment for drug-susceptible tuberculosis: isoniazid, rifampicin, pyrazinamide, ethambutol (first line treatment: 2HRZE/4HR) (select one) antipsychotics for psychotic disorders (chlorpromazine, fluphenazine, haloperidol, risperidone) (select one) antidepressants for depression and anxiety disorders (amitriptyline, fluoxetine) (select one) antiolytics and tranquilizers for anxiety disorders and sleep disorders (diazepam) (select one) anticonvulsant medicine and mood stabilizers for bipolar disorder (carbamazepine, lithium carbonate, valporic acid) (select one) anticonvulsant medicine and mood stabilizers for bipolar disorder (carbamazepine, lithium carbonate, valporic acid) (select one) can prescribe/refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist, but can refill without recommendation can prescribe/refill only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist. cannot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe but can refill with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe but can refill with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe/refill not applicable do not know Unit of measurement categorical Rationale This indicator measures the potential for essential drugs to be accessed through primary care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence. Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). While prescribing restrictions can contribute to improved quality of health services through the recommend and sef use of pharmaceuticals and improve cont efforth unear of pharmaceuticals and improve cont efforth unear of phar
pyrazinamide, ethambutol (first line treatment: 2HRZE/4HR) (select one) • antipsychotics for psychotic disorders (chlorpromazine, fluphenazine, haloperidol, risperidone) (select one) • antidepressants for depression and anxiety disorders (amitriptyline, fluoxetine) (select one) • anxiolytics and tranquilizers for anxiety disorders and sleep disorders (diazepam) (select one) • anxiolytics and tranquilizers for anxiety disorders and sleep disorders (diazepam) (select one) • anxiolytics and tranquilizers for bipolar disorder (carbamazepine, lithium carbonate, valporic acid) (select one) • numerator/denominator or answer choices • can prescribe/refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist, but can refill without recommendation • can prescribe/refill only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist • cannot prescribe/refill only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist • cannot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist • cannot prescribe/refill • not applicable • do not know Unit of measurement categorical Rationale This indicator measures the potential for essential drugs to be accessed through primary care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence. Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). While prescribing restrictions can contribute to i
one) antipsychotics for psychotic disorders (chlorpromazine, fluphenazine, haloperidd), risperidone) (select one) antidepressants for depression and anxiety disorders (amitriptyline, fluoxetine) (select one) anxiolytics and tranquilizers for anxiety disorders and sleep disorders (diazepam) (select one) anxiolytics and tranquilizers for anxiety disorders and sleep disorder (carbamazepine, lithium carbonate, valporic acid) (select one) Numerator/denominator or answer choices can prescribe/refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist can prescribe/refill only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist, but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe/refill only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe/refill only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe/refill ot on typescribe/refill ot ont prescribe/refill not applicable do not know Unit of measurement categorical Rationale This indicator measures the potential for essential drugs to be accessed through primary care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence. Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). W
• antipsychotics for psychotic disorders (chlorpromazine, fluphenazine, haloperidol, risperidone) (select one) • antidepressants for depression and anxiety disorders (amitriptyline, fluoxetine) (select one) • anxiolytics and tranquilizers for anxiety disorders and sleep disorders (diazepam) (select one) • anxiolytics and tranquilizers for anxiety disorders and sleep disorder (carbamazepine, lithium carbonate, valporic acid) (select one) • Numerator/denominator or answer choices • can prescribe/refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist, but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist • can prescribe only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist • can prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist • cannot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist • cannot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist • cannot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist • cannot prescribe/refill • not applicable • do not know • do not know Unit of measurement categorical This indicator measures the potential for essential drugs to be accessed through primary care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence. Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). While prescribing restrictions can cont
haloperidol, risperidone) (select one)• antidepressants for depression and anxiety disorders (amitriptyline, fluoxetine) (select one)• anxiolytics and tranquilizers for anxiety disorders and sleep disorders (diazepam) (select one)• anxiolytics and tranquilizers for anxiety disorders and sleep disorder (carbamazepine, lithium carbonate, valporic acid) (select one)Numerator/denominator or answer choices• can prescribe/refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist, but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist• can prescribe/refill only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist• can prescribe/refill only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist• cannot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist• cannot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist• cannot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist• cannot prescribe/refill • not applicable • do not knowUnit of measurementCategoricalRationaleThis indicator measures the potential for essential drugs to be accessed through primary care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence. Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). While prescribing restrictions can contribute to improved quality of health services through effective and asfe use of pharmaceuticals and improve rest effortivenes of hoalth services through thecorement and efficient une
Interpretents
InterpretationInterpretationfluoxetine)(select one)anxiolytics and tranquilizers for anxiety disorders and sleep disorders (diazepam) (select one)Numerator/denominator or answer choices• can prescribe/refil without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist, but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist, but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist• can prescribe/refill only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist• can prescribe/refill only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist• can prescribe/refill only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist• cannot prescribe/but can refill without recommendation from specialist• cannot prescribe/but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist• cannot prescribe/but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist• cannot prescribe/but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist • cannot prescribe/but can refill with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist • cannot prescribe/refill • not applicable • do not knowUnit of measurementcategoricalRationaleThis indicator measures the potential for essential drugs to be accessed through primary care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence. Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). While prescribing restrictions can contribute to improved quality
Initial productionsanxiolytics and traquilizers for anxiety disorders and sleep disorders (diazepam) (select one)Numerator/denominator or answer choicesanswer choicescan prescribe/refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist, but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialistcan prescribe only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialistcan prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialistcanot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialistcanot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialistcanot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialistcanot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialistcanot prescribe/refill not applicable do not knowUnit of measurementRationaleThis indicator measures the potential for essential drugs to be accessed through primary care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence. Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). While prescribing restrictions can contribute to improved quality of health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve rest of fortuners or floated through the ocenaries and officient use of
International and an end of the second state of th
Initial constructionInitial construc
Numerator/denominator or answer choices• can prescribe/refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist• can prescribe only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist, but can refill without recommendation • can prescribe/refill only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist• can prescribe/refill only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist • can prescribe/refill only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist • cannot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist • cannot prescribe but can refill with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist • cannot prescribe/refill • not applicable • do not knowUnit of measurementcategoricalRationaleThis indicator measures the potential for essential drugs to be accessed through primary care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence. Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). While prescribing restrictions can contribute to improved quality of health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve or cot of foctiveneses of health exprises through the originat une of
Numerator/denominator or answer choices can prescribe/refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist can prescribe only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist, but can refill without recommendation can prescribe/refill only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe but can refill with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe but can refill with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe/refill not applicable do not know Unit of measurement categorical Rationale This indicator measures the potential for essential drugs to be accessed through primary care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence. Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). While prescribing restrictions can contribute to improved quality of health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve care offectiving and effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve
Autherator/denominator of answer choices answer choices can prescribe/refin writout recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist, but can refill without recommendation answer choices can prescribe only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist, but can refill without recommendation can prescribe/refill only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist can or prescribe/refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist cannot prescribe but can refill with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe but can refill with recommendation from specialist cannot prescribe/refill cannot prescribe/refill cannot prescribe/refill not applicable do not know Unit of measurement categorical Rationale This indicator measures the potential for essential drugs to be accessed through primary care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence. Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). While prescribing restrictions can contribute to improved quality of health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve
 can prescribe only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist, but can refill without recommendation can prescribe/refill only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe but can refill with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe/refill not applicable do not know Unit of measurement Categorical Rationale This indicator measures the potential for essential drugs to be accessed through primary care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence. Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). While prescribing restrictions can contribute to improved quality of health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve cast offortiveness of hapith cancing through the acenomic and efficient use of the patient enterment and the proved cast offortiveness of hapith cancing through the acenomic and efficient use of the patient enterment and the proved cast offortiveness of hapith cancing through the acenomic and efficient use of the patient enterment officient use of the patient enterment and the proved cast offortiveness of hapith cancing through the acenomic and efficient use of the patient enterment and the proved cast offortiveness of hapith cancing through the acenomic and efficient use of the patient enterment and the proved cast offortiveness of hapith cancing through the acenomic and efficient use of the patient entermine and efficient use of the patien
Image: Call prescribe only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist, but can refill without recommendation Image: Call prescribe/refill only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist Image: Call prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist Image: Call prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist Image: Call prescribe but can refill with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist Image: Call prescribe but can refill with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist Image: Call prescribe but can refill with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist Image: Call prescribe but can refill with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist Image: Call prescribe/refill Image: Call prescribe/refill Image: Call prescribe/refill Image: Call primery care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence. Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). While prescribing restrictions can contribute to improved quality of health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve patient thread effects and final turn or for thread thread thread effects and safe use of pharmaceuticals and efficient use of for thread thre
 can prescribe/refill only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe but can refill with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe but can refill with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe/refill not applicable do not know Unit of measurement categorical This indicator measures the potential for essential drugs to be accessed through primary care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence. Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). While prescribing restrictions can contribute to improved quality of health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve cost offectiveness of health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and efficient use of the services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and efficient use of the services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and efficient use of the services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and efficient use of the services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and efficient use of the services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and efficient use of the services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and efficient use of the services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and efficient use of the services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and efficient use of the services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and efficient use of the services through effective and safe u
 Can prescribe/refill only with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe but can refill with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe but can refill with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe/refill not applicable do not know Unit of measurement categorical This indicator measures the potential for essential drugs to be accessed through primary care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence. Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). While prescribing restrictions can contribute to improved quality of health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve case of fact the particular set of participant up of health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve case of fact the participant up of health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve case of fact the participant up of health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve case of fact the participant up of the participant up of the primery patternet primery of the patternet patt
Image: practitioner/narrow specialist• cannot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist• cannot prescribe but can refill with recommendation from specialist• cannot prescribe but can refill with recommendation from specialist• cannot prescribe but can refill with recommendation from specialist• cannot prescribe/refill• not applicable• do not knowUnit of measurementCategoricalRationaleThis indicator measures the potential for essential drugs to be accessed through primary care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence. Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). While prescribing restrictions can contribute to improved quality of health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve cast effectiveness of health captions through the accenterion and efficient use of
 cannot prescribe but can refill without recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe but can refill with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe/refill not applicable do not know Unit of measurement categorical This indicator measures the potential for essential drugs to be accessed through primary care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence. Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). While prescribing restrictions can contribute to improved quality of health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve cost offectiveness of health services through the economic and officient use of the services through the economic and the services through the economic and the service
medical practitioner/narrow specialistcannot prescribe but can refill with recommendation from specialistmedical practitioner/narrow specialistmedical practitioner/narrow specialistcannot prescribe/refillnot applicabledo not knowUnit of measurementcategoricalRationaleThis indicator measures the potential for essential drugs to be accessedthrough primary care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence.Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects(106). While prescribing restrictions can contribute to improved quality of health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve cent effort upprove of health convises through the occupation and efficient use of
 cannot prescribe but can refill with recommendation from specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe/refill not applicable do not know Unit of measurement categorical This indicator measures the potential for essential drugs to be accessed through primary care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence. Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). While prescribing restrictions can contribute to improved quality of health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve cost affectiveness of health convises through the accessed services through the accessed services through the accessed services through the accessed services and efficient use of
medical practitioner/narrow specialist cannot prescribe/refill not applicable do not know Unit of measurement categorical Rationale This indicator measures the potential for essential drugs to be accessed through primary care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence. Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). While prescribing restrictions can contribute to improved quality of health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve cert effectiveness of health convises through the occupation and efficient use of
• cannot prescribe/refill • not applicable • do not know Unit of measurement Categorical Rationale This indicator measures the potential for essential drugs to be accessed through primary care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence. Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). While prescribing restrictions can contribute to improved quality of health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve cent effectiveness of health convises through the occupation and efficient use of
 not applicable do not know Unit of measurement categorical Rationale This indicator measures the potential for essential drugs to be accessed through primary care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence. Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). While prescribing restrictions can contribute to improved quality of health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve cost effortiveness of health convises through the economic and efficient use of
do not know Unit of measurement Categorical This indicator measures the potential for essential drugs to be accessed through primary care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence. Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). While prescribing restrictions can contribute to improved quality of health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve cept effectiveness of health convises through the occupation and efficient use of
Unit of measurement categorical Rationale This indicator measures the potential for essential drugs to be accessed through primary care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence. Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). While prescribing restrictions can contribute to improved quality of health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve cost effectiveness of health convises through the economic and efficient use of
Rationale This indicator measures the potential for essential drugs to be accessed through primary care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence. Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). While prescribing restrictions can contribute to improved quality of health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve cost effectiveness of health convises through the economic and efficient use of
through primary care that in turn can improve patient treatment adherence. Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). While prescribing restrictions can contribute to improved quality of health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve cost effectiveness of health convises through the economic and efficient use of
Prescribing restrictions for essential medicines can have unintended effects (106). While prescribing restrictions can contribute to improved quality of health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve cost effectiveness of health services through the essential services and efficient use of
(106). While prescribing restrictions can contribute to improved quality of health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve cost effectiveness of health convises through the economic and efficient use of
health services through effective and safe use of pharmaceuticals and improve
cost official transferred to a service through the economic and efficient use of
cost-effectiveness of health services through the economic and efficient use of
pharmaceuticals, it can also negatively affect the accessibility of medicine to the
population. Improving access to quality medicines for noncommunicable
diseases is one of the 15 health system challenges and opportunities to scale up
core noncommunicable diseases interventions and services (107). The
cardiovascular and diabetes drugs in this list are core drugs listed in the
HEARTS technical package (51). Effective secondary prevention in primary
health care is recognized as a core component in strengthening health systems
responding to noncommunicable diseases (107). Tuberculosis treatment should
be in accordance with the guidelines for treatment of drug-susceptible
tuberculosis and patient care (108) and fall in line with the Tuberculosis
Regional Eastern European and Central Asian Project (109). The authorized
maximum duration of one prescription of strong opioids is an indication of
access to morphine and development of primary care in a country.
Preferred data sources • Health Systems in Transition series
 policy and programme documents
key informant
Disaggregation none specified
Limitations Tuberculosis auidelines are country specific. For drug susceptible tuberculosis
some initial specialist medical practitioner's involvement in prescribing drugs
may be needed, for drug resistant tuberculosis, and particularly multi- and
extensively-drug resistant tuberculosis, this is common in most countries.

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care selection of services
Feature	Management of diseases
Indicator/question title	Follow-up services in primary care (sel5q51)
Indicator/question definition or question	If the below conditions are well controlled, who manages the patient in primary care? Please answer according to regulation. If no regulation is in place, please specify in general. hypertension (select all that apply) ischemic heart disease (select all that apply) diabetes type 2 (select all that apply) asthma (select all that apply) chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (select all that apply) cancer – breast (select all that apply) cancer – cervical (select all that apply) cancer – colorectal (select all that apply) tuberculosis and latent tuberculosis infection (treatment management) (select all that apply) depression (select all that apply)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 generalist medical practitioner nurse/midwife/feldscher/paramedical practitioner narrow specialist specialist other working in primary care (specify) not provided in primary care (exclusive choice)
	do not know (exclusive choice)
Unit of measurement Rationale	categorical Improving the coordination of services is central to delivering quality, integrated health services. The coordination of care is not only about the coordination across service providers, but also about coordinating care over time, through improved information flows and maintaining relationships with providers. Primary care driven follow-up offers a gateway to coordinated service provision and the delivery of services that are provided in close communication between generalist and specialist providers (98).
Preferred data sources	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care selection of services
Feature	Management of diseases
Indicator/question title	Other services (sel5q52)
Indicator/question	Who provides the following services in primary care? Please answer according
definition or question	to regulation. If no regulation is in place, please specify in general.
	 administration of intravenous fluids/drips (select all that apply)
	 administration of oxygen (mask or tube) (select all that apply)
	 cardiopulmonary resuscitation (select all that apply)
	 <u>foot vibration perception by tuning fork</u> (select all that apply)
	 intramuscular/subcutaneous injection (select all that apply)
	 intravenous injection (select all that apply)
	 manual ventilation with a bag valve mask resuscitator (ambu-bag)
	(select all that apply)
	 ophthalmoscopy (select all that apply)
	 <u>post-natal care check</u> of mother (select all that apply)

	 visual acuity examination (select all that apply)
	 visual inspection and examination of diabetic individuals' feet for the
	detection of risk factors for ulceration (select all that apply)
Numerator/denominator or	generalist medical practitioner
answer choices	 nurse/midwife/feldscher/paramedical practitioner
	narrow specialist
	• specialist
	 other working in primary care (specify)
	 not provided in primary care (exclusive choice)
	do not know (exclusive choice)
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	A minimum set of interventions can be delivered by generalist medical
	practitioners, narrow specialists (in countries of the Commonwealth of
	Independent States) and non-physician primary care health professionals. If
	effectively integrated into primary care they can make a significant contribution
	to the reduction of morbidity and premature mortality from major
	noncommunicable diseases. Preventive health services are cost-effective in the
	primary care setting and result in improved levels of population health. In
	general, the provision of a wide range of services provided by primary care
	providers is associated with better health outcomes at lower costs
	(30, 57 - 58, 64)
Preferred data sources	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	Data from WHO Country Capacity Survey is used to inform questions under the
	domain of primary care structures. To answer this indicator, which seeks to
	understand the interventions integrated into primary care, a key informant must
	be approached.

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care selection of services
Feature	Patient engagement
Indicator/question title	Self-management and health literacy in primary care (sel6q54)
Indicator/question definition or question	 To enhance patient <u>self-management</u> and <u>health literacy</u>, do the following exist in primary care? telephone-based services (select one) computer-based programmes (e.g. internet-based chat rooms, virtual support group) (select one) printed resources (e.g. pictograms, pamphlets, brochures, etc.) (select one) in-home electronic aids (e.g. blood pressure cuff, blood glucose device etc.) (select one) one-on-one patient education (e.g. nurse and patient) (select one) patients school (select one)
Numerater/denominator.or	peer support groups (select one)
answer choices	 yes, country-wide yes, in some regions (please specify) yes, is only being piloted no do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical

Detionale	Conservations in a backlet Provide a second back and be a second structure to be a laboration of the
Rationale	Strengthening health literacy enables people to make important health services
	decisions and to communicate, assert and enact these decisions (110).
	Strengthened health literacy improves health outcomes, the effective use of
	health services and reduces health inequities (111). Low levels of health literacy
	are associated with unhealthy choices and lifestyle and riskier behaviours (112).
	Self-management has been associated with improved health outcomes,
	reductions in service use, improved treatment adherence, increased access and
	convenience for patients, reduced hospitalisations, reduced emergency visits,
	fewer preventable hospitalisations, high patient and physician satisfaction and
	fewer unmet needs for getting around. An important part of patient education
	is increasing their awareness about the importance of disease prevention and
	health promotion as patients with certain co-morbidities are at increased risk
	for other related conditions (113-114). Services that work to link patients with
	peers can increase access to expert advice about how to manage both clinical
	and social aspects of a condition. It can also help to overcome feelings of
	isolation (98).
Preferred data sources	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care design
Feature	Referral system
Indicator/question title	Gatekeeping system (des1q55)
Indicator/question definition or question	a. Do generalist medical practitioners act as a <u>gatekeeper</u> to services offered by specialist medical practitioners and other health professionals? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 yes, a generalist medical practitioner's referral is compulsory to access most types of specialist care (except in case of emergency) no, but individuals have financial <u>incentives</u> to obtain a generalist medical practitioner's referral (e.g. reduced co-payments), but direct access is always possible no, there is no need and no incentive to obtain the generalist medical practitioner's referral do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question definition or question	b. If yes, please specify for which type of specialist medical practitioner/narrow specialist (if any) referral is not compulsory.
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	open answer
Unit of measurement	open answer
Rationale	Gatekeeping systems have multiple positive effects on health services delivery. Most importantly, gatekeeping has been associated with cost containment, increased responsiveness to patients' needs and enhanced quality of care (64). First contact care by primary care providers is essential to address the wide variety and often very basic needs existing in the community. Having a generalist medical practitioner rather than a specialist medical practitioner as a regular source of care has been associated with better health outcomes and lower health care costs.
Preferred data sources	 OECD Health Systems Characteristics Survey policy and programme documents Health Systems in Transitions series key informant
Disaggregation	rural/urban
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care design
Feature	Referral system
Indicator/question title	Referral protocol from primary care to higher levels of care (des1q56)
Indicator/question	a. Is there a structured referral letter required when a generalist medical
definition or question	practitioner refers an individual to a higher level of care? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	 yes, country-wide
answer choices	 yes, in some regions (please specify)
	 yes, is only being piloted
	• no
	do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question	b. If a structured <u>referral letter</u> is required, is the following information
definition or question	included?
	individual's identification information (select one)
	• reason for referral (e.g. investigation, diagnosis, treatment,
	reassurance etc.) (select one)
	• Information related to illness (e.g. history, findings etc.) (select one)
	 Information related to relevant investigations already undertaken
	(select one)
	• medication list (select one)
	socio-psychological factors (select one)
Numerator/denominator.or	
answer choices	• yes
	• do not know
Unit of measurement	
Rationale	The delivery of coordinated health services depends on the accessibility and
Rationale	and a services depends on the accessionity and a services depends on the accessionity and a services depends on the accessionity and
	use of referral letters can facilitate this (64). Information regarding the content
	of the referral letter is important in assessing the quality of a referral, which
	impacts the quality of care. Good communication can avoid problems related to
	polypharmacy, duplication of investigations, etc.
Preferred data sources	review of national health policies
	WHO Global Country Capacity and Response Survey on
	Noncommunicable Diseases Survey 2017
	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care design
Feature	Referral system
Indicator/question title	Reply and discharge protocol from higher levels of care to primary care (des1q57)
Indicator/question	a. Is there a structured <u>reply letter</u> required when a specialist medical

Numerator/denominator or	yes, country-wide
answer choices	 yes, in some regions (please specify)
	 yes, is only being piloted
	• no
	• do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question	b. If the structured <u>reply letter</u> is required, is the following information
definition or question	included?
	 assessment of current problem (select one)
	 investigation undertaken (select one)
	 medication prescribed (select one)
	 next steps in the care of the individual (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	• yes
answer choices	• no
	• do not know
Indicator/question	c. Is there a structured <u>discharge letter</u> required when the hospital discharges
definition or question	an individual from their care to primary care? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	 yes, country-wide
answer choices	 yes, in some regions (please specify)
	 yes, is only being piloted
	• no
	do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question	d. If a <u>discharge letter</u> is required, is the following information included?
definition or question	 assessment of current problem (select one)
	 investigation undertaken (select one)
	medication prescribed (select one)
	next steps in the care of the individual (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	• yes
answer choices	• no
	do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question	e. Is <u>discharge planning</u> required upon discharge from hospital (select one)?
definition or question	
Numerator/denominator or	• yes, country-wide
answer choices	• yes, in some regions (please specify)
	 yes, is only being piloted
	• no
	do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question	f. Based on need, is there an <u>integrated health and social care plan</u> required
definition or question	upon discharge from hospital (select one)?
Numerator/denominator or	• yes, country-wide
answer choices	• yes, in some regions (please specify)
	• yes, is only being piloted
	• no
	do not know
Pationalo	The delivery of coordinated health convises depends on the processibility and
Rauonale	a vehance of information among those involved in the case of an individual. The
	exchange of information among those involved in the care of an individual. The
	use or referral letters can facilitate this (04). A field in and social care pian (in
	improve the rehabilitation, re-enablement and recovery experience for the
	individual and their carers. Its existence is associated with improved health
	outcomes and care experiences and thus lower re-hospitalisation rates
	(115-116).

Preferred data sources	review of national health policieskey informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care design
Feature	Care pathways
Indicator/question title	Shared care pathways (des2q58)
Indicator/question	For the following conditions, are <u>care pathways</u> spanning different levels of care
definition or question	defined?
	cardiovascular diseases (select one)
	 diabetes type 2 (select one)
	 cancer – breast (select one)
	cancer – cervical (select one)
	cancer – colorectal (select one)
	asthma (select one)
	chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (select one)
	tuberculosis (select one)
	 latent tuberculosis infection (select one)
	depression (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	 yes, national care pathways guidelines
answer choices	 yes, regional care pathways guidelines
	 yes, included in national <u>clinical practice protocols</u>
	no guidelines exist
	other, please specify
	do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	Clearly designed care has also been found to contribute to improvements in
	services provision including minimizing discrepancies in core services in terms of
	both what is provided and how care is delivered. Care pathways have also been
	found to support the delivery of relevant services in a timely manner, to reduce
	complications and to enable better discharge planning (98).
Preferred data sources	Health Systems in Transition series
	review of national health policies
	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care design
Feature	Flexible access modes
Indicator/question title	Different access modes (des3q59)
Indicator/question definition or question	 Percent of primary care providers that offer the following modes of care individuals can telephone their regular primary care provider or support staff for questions or a consultation individuals can email their regular primary care provider or support staff for questions or a consultation make home visits a member of the primary care team contacts individuals with multiple chronic conditions or complex needs between visits to monitor their condition

Numerator/denominator or	Exact percent reported in survey analysis
answer choices	
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
Unit of measurement	exact percent if available, otherwise categorical
Rationale	The accessibility of primary care for persons with multiple chronic conditions
	can be improved by providing multiple access modes. This has been
	associated with reductions in demands for home health care and nursing
	facility admissions, improved quality of care, reduced family caregiver strain,
	increased physician satisfaction with care provided, reduced unnecessary
	emergency visits, hospitalisation and admissions, reduced hospital costs and
	improved quality of life (64, 114, 117-224).
Preferred data sources	Commonwealth Fund International Survey of Primary Care Physicians
	in 10 Nations
	 survey – health professionals
	expert consensus
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care design
Feature	Shared care plans
Indicator/question title	Developing shared care plans (des4q60)
Indicator/question definition or question	Percent of primary care health professionals who engage with relevant specialists in the development of <u>care plans</u> for persons with multiple chronic conditions and receive care from more than one provider (select one)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	Exact percent reported in survey analysis
	 70% or more more than 50% but less than 70% 10% to 50% less than 10% not applicable
Unit of measurement	exact percent, if available, or category
Rationale	Persons with multiple chronic conditions require care that is targeted around their individual needs, capabilities and resources. This should be planned and formalized in a care plan that is developed and shared with the patient and their (informal) caregivers as well as their regular care providers. Comprehensive and holistic assessments of needs, including the development of personalized care plans, have been associated with greater patient satisfaction, improved care coordination and reduced costs of care in older people and those with complex care needs (67).
Preferred data sources	 survey – health professionals expert consensus
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care workforce organization
Feature	Practice population
Indicator/question title	Choice of generalist medical practitioner (org1q61)
Indicator/question	a. Are individuals free to choose their primary care provider? (select one)
definition or question	
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 yes, the individual is free to choose the provider yes, the individual is free to choose the provider, but the choice is limited (e.g. to a small geographical area, or to a specific network of providers) yes, the individual is free to choose any provider, but have financial incentives (e.g. reduced co-payments) to choose certain ones
	 no, the individual is assigned to a specific provider (e.g. a health centre serving a geographical area) do not know comments or clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question	b. Are individuals free to choose their generalist medical practitioner within the
definition or question	chosen or assigned provider/practice? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	 yes, the individual is free to choose the generalist medical practitioner
answer choices	within the chosen/assigned practice
	• no, the individual is assigned to a specific general medical practitioner
	within the chosen/assigned practice
	 not relevant (primary care services are predominantly provided by
	physicians in solo practice)
	do not know
Unit of massurement	
Pationalo	Calegorical
Rationale	relationship relative to an assigned practitioner. The evidence is strong
	regarding the benefits of a continuous relationship with a specific provider
	rather than with a specific place or no place at all (64)
Preferred data sources	OFCD Health Committee Survey on Health Systems
	Health Systems in Transition series
	 policy and programme documents
	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care workforce organization
Feature	Practice population
Indicator/question title	Patient list system (org1q62)
Indicator/question	Do generalist medical practitioners have a <u>patient list</u> ? (select one)
definition or question	
Numerator/denominator or	• yes
answer choices	• no
	• do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	Having a defined practice population by means of a patient list system creates
	an incentive for primary care providers as well as the population to provide and
	receive services on a continuous basis (64). Registering with a specific
	practitioner has been found to contribute to accountability by making clear who
	is responsible for service coordination (98).

Preferred data sources	Health Systems in Transition series
	 policy and programme documents
	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care workforce organization
Feature	Practice population
Indicator/question title	Primary care health professionals' density (org1q63)
Indicator/question	Number of generalist medical practitioners working in primary care per 100,000
definition or question	population
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: number of practising generalist medical practitioners (the number
answer choices	should be at the end of the calendar year) x 100,000
	Denominator: resident population for the same calendar year
Unit of measurement	ratio
Rationale	Patient load can negatively influence the accessibility of providers and their job
	satisfaction as well as the experience of patient's with health services (64).
Preferred data sources	WHO European database on human and technical resources for health
	(numerator) (3)
	 population data from United Nations Population Division's world
	population prospects database (denominator) (22)
	Health Systems in Transition series
	 database – human resources
Disaggregation	rural-urban
Limitations	Data reported to the WHO European database on human and technical
	resources for health does not include paediatricians for countries of the
	Commonwealth of Independent States. 2013 is the latest year for which data is
	reported.

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care workforce organization
Feature	Practice population
Indicator/question title	Caseload of generalist medical practitioner (org2q64)
Indicator/question	What is the average number of <u>outpatient visits</u> seen by a full-time <u>generalist</u>
definition or question	medical practitioner per day?
Numerator/denominator or	Database data:
answer choices	Numerator: total number of <u>outpatient visits</u> conducted by a <u>generalist</u>
	medical practitioner (during 12-month reference period)
	Denominator: total number of practising generalist practitioners (full time
	equivalent) (the number should be at the end of the calendar year) x number of
	working days in the year
	Survey data:
	Exact average number of outpatient visits per generalist medical practitioner
	per day from facility survey analysis
Unit of measurement	average number of visits per day
Rationale	Provider caseload can have critical impacts on service quality: a shortage of
	providers may cause caseload to rise and potentially compromise service
	quality and lead to provider burnout. Conversely, low caseloads may impact
	provider motivation, absenteeism and the practice of skills and procedures (78).
	Low rates can also be indicative of poor availability and quality of services. For
	example, several countries have demonstrated that outpatient department

	rates go up when constraints to using such health services are removed, such as
	by bringing services closer to the people or reducing user fees. In contrast,
	once rates exceed an uncertain threshold, the number of visits is no longer an
	indicator of the strength of the health services (55).
Preferred data sources	health information system
	 survey – health facilities
Disaggregation	rural-urban
Limitations	Caseload does not measure the full workload experienced by a provider, which
	includes administrative work and other non-clinical activities. It also does not
	capture quality of care (78). The accuracy and completeness of reporting need
	to be consistent over time and between populations to allow assessment of
	trends and comparisons (55).

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care workforce organization
Feature	After-hours care
Indicator/question title	Opening hours in primary care (org2q65)
Indicator/question	a. Do primary care providers have a required number of opening hours and
definition or question	days? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	 yes, obliged legally
answer choices	 yes, standard formulated by professional organisations
	 yes, decided by the employer
	• no
	 do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question	b. If yes, how many hours or days?
definition or question	
Numerator/denominator or	 hours/day, please specify
answer choices	 days/week, please specify
	 hours/week, please specify
Unit of measurement	hours
Rationale	A minimum number of opening hours or days ensures primary care services
	have a certain predictability for the population as well as physicians (64).
	Opening hours is often used as a measure of the accessibility of services or
	health practitioners (80).
Preferred data sources	Health Systems in Transition series
	 policy and programme documents
	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care workforce organization
Feature	After-hours care
Indicator/question title	Out-of-hours primary care (org2q66)
Indicator/question definition or question	 Are the following arrangements in place in primary care for individuals to see a generalist medical practitioner or nurse when the practices are closed without going to the hospital emergency room or department? generalist medical practitioners available in-person for their own patients (select one) group of generalist medical practitioners available on a rota basis (select one) primary care centres (mini injury units, urgent care centres) available

	 (select one) general practitioners' cooperatives available (select one) other arrangements, please specify (select one)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 yes, country-wide yes, in some regions (please specify) yes, is only being piloted no do not know
Unit of measurement	N/A
Unit of measurement	N/A
Rationale	Primary care is well placed to assess acute episodes of chronic conditions to implement informed shared decision-making. The availability of 24/7 care with effective out-of-hours arrangements can help primary care to ensure effective triage to specialists. Systems without out-of-hours care can fuel unnecessary hospitalisation and non-urgent visits (125).
Preferred data sources	 OECD Survey on Health systems characteristics key informant
Disaggregation	rural-urban
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care workforce organization
Feature	Primary care teams
Indicator/question title	Types of primary care facilities (org3q153)
Indicator/question	a. If the following facilities provide ambulatory health care services, select the
definition or question	types of primary care health professionals working there. Please answer
	according to regulation. If no regulation is in place, please specify in general.
	 <u>offices of single general medical practitioners – solo practices</u> (e.g.
	general medical practitioner solo practice) (select all that apply)
	 offices of general medical practitioners - ambulatory group practices
	(e.g. walk-in offices/centres of multiple general medical practitioners) (select
	all that apply)
	 ambulatory multi-profile (specialty) group practices/polyclinics (select
	all that apply)
	 <u>nurses and midwives offices</u> (e.g. health posts) (select all that apply)
	 <u>offices of other medical specialists</u> (e.g. practices of independent
	offices of cardiologists, ophthalmologists, paediatricians of specialised
	care, etc.) (select all that apply)
	• <u>other ambulatory health care centres</u> (e.g. family planning centres,
	free-standing ambulatory surgery centres, dialysis care centres) (please
	specify) (select all that apply)
	dental practices (select all that apply)
	• providers of home health care services (e.g. community nurses and
	domiciliary nursing care, home health care agencies, in-home hospice care
	services, etc.) (select all that apply)
Numerator/denominator or	generalist medical practitioner
answer choices	nurse/midwife/feldscher/paramedical practitioner
	narrow specialist
	• specialist
	• other in primary care (please specify)
	do not know (exclusive choice)
Unit of measurement	
Indicator/question	b. Are primary health care / ambulatory services being delivered in the
definition or question	following settings? Please answer according to regulation. If there no

	regulation is in place, please specify in general.
	• <u>outpatient departments of hospitals</u> (general hospitals providing out-
	patient, day care services) (select one)
	 residential long-term care facilities (e.g. long-term nursing care
	facilities) (select one)
	 providers of ancillary services (e.g. medical and diagnostic
	laboratories) (select one)
	• pharmacies, retailers and other providers of medical goods (e.g.
	pharmacies, suppliers of medical goods and medical appliances,
	patient transportation) (select one)
	• providers of preventive care (e.g. health promotion and protection
	agencies, public health institutes) (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	• yes
answer choices	• no
	do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	Delivery settings describe the arrangement of providers in the various facilities,
	units or organizations where health services are delivered for a defined
	population. The way in which delivery settings are organized has been
	attributed to measures of performance including the accessibility of services
	(85).
Preferred data sources	 policy and programme documents
	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care workforce organization
Feature	Primary care teams
Indicator/question title	Shared practices in primary care (org3q67)
Indicator/question definition or question	 Percent of primary care <u>providers</u> that are: staffed only by a nurse/mid-wife/feldsher (no generalist medical practitioner) one generalist medical practitioner (solo) 2 or 3 generalist medical practitioners in the same building without specialist medical practitioners 4 or more generalist medical practitioners in the same building without specialist medical practitioners mixed practice with generalist medical practitioners and specialist medical practitioners
Numerator/Denominator or	Numerator: number of providers with the specified characteristic
answer choices	Denominator: total number of <u>providers</u>
Unit of measurement	percent
Rationale	Group practices and teams with a greater occupational diversity are associated with a higher quality of care. Close involvement of generalist clinicians in specialty care leads to more cost-effective services and better outcomes (64). The organization of health services supply potentially influences the accessibility to health services, their effectiveness, efficiency and quality, as well as provider and patient satisfaction. Generally, group practices are found to increase accessibility to care and professional working conditions, as well as the effectiveness and efficiency of health services delivery as several health professionals work together in collaboration (<i>81</i>).

Preferred data sources	Health Systems in Transition series
	 policy and programme documents
	 registries of health professionals
Disaggregation	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care workforce organization
Feature	Primary care teams
Indicator/question title	Coordination within primary care (org3q68)
Indicator/question	Percent of generalist medical practitioners that have regular meetings with the
definition or question	following professionals?
	 other generalist medical practitioners
	• nurse
	social worker
	• psychologist
	• dietician
	• pharmacist
	public health professional
	Note: regular meetings include face-to-face, phone, or virtual discussions at
	least once per month
Numerator/denominator or	Exact percent reported in survey analysis
answer choices	
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
Unit of measurement	exact percent if available, otherwise categorical
Rationale	Close collaboration between different primary care health professionals
	optimizes the treatment of individuals and therefore increases the strength of
	primary care. Regardless of the mode of teamwork that is applied there should
	be some form of structural communication among primary care health
	professionals treating the same individual (64).
Preferred data sources	Health Systems in Transition series
	 policy and programme documents
	 survey – health professionals
	expert consensus
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care workforce organization
Feature	Primary care teams
Indicator/question title	Existence of care coordinator (org3q70)
Indicator/question definition or question	Percent of primary care providers that use a <u>care coordinator</u> (nurses or <u>case</u> <u>managers</u>) to monitor and manage care for individuals with chronic conditions that need regular follow-up care
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	Exact percent reported in survey analysis Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	 70% or more more than 50% but less than 70% 10% to 50%

	less than 10%
	not applicable
Unit of measurement	exact percent if available, otherwise categorical
Rationale	Continuity in the relationship with health professionals is associated with
	improved communication and coordination of care, fewer emergency visits,
	hospitalisations and readmissions, reduced health care utilization, reduced
	hospital costs, better preventative care, fewer duplicative medications,
	improved patient outcomes and patient satisfaction, and more efficient use of
	resources (117–119, 126, 127). Care coordinators or care managers can
	support the continuity of services through the management of patients and
	coordination of services across the continuum of care, overtime.
Preferred data sources	Commonwealth Fund International Survey of Primary Care Physicians
	in 10 Nations (40)
	 policy and programme documents
	survey – health professionals
	expert consensus
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care workforce organization
Feature	Collaboration of primary care with other professionals
Indicator/question title	Cooperation with specialist medical practitioners (org4q73)
Indicator/question	a. Percent of generalist medical practitioners who engage in the following
definition or question	forms of cooperation with specialist medical practitioners
	 specialist medical practitioners visit a primary care practice to provide
	outpatient consultations/visits normally provided in hospital (replaced
	specialist care)
	• specialist medical practitioners visit a primary care practice to provide
	joint outpatient consultations/visits with generalist medical
	practitioners
	specialist medical practitioners
Numerator/denominator.or	Exact percent reported in survey analysis
answer choices	
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
Unit of measurement	exact percent if available, otherwise categorical
Indicator/question	b. Percent of generalist medical practitioners who ask advice (e.g. e-mail, in-
definition or question	person, telephone, skype, etc.) from specialist medical practitioners (e.g.
	paediatricians, internists, gynaecologists, surgeons, cardiologists,
	pulmonologists, endocrinologists, etc.)?
Numerator/denominator or	Exact percent reported in survey analysis
answer choices	
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	• more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
Unit of measurement	exact percent it available, otherwise categorical
Rationale	Shared care arrangements between primary and secondary care providers
	stimulates mutual education, promotes cooperation across levels, improves guideline-consistent care, reduces the use of inpatient services and improves appropriate prescribing and medication adherence and contributes to improved health outcomes (64).
------------------------	---
Preferred data sources	 survey – health professionals expert consensus
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care workforce organization
Feature	Collaboration of primary care with other professionals
Indicator/question title	Coordination across sectors (org4q69)
Indicator/question	Percent of professionals from different sectors (incl. community health, mental
definition or question	health, social care, primary and hospital care) who are integrated in a care
	team with a shared governance model to care for individuals with multiple
	chronic conditions or complex needs
Numerator/denominator or	Exact percent reported in survey analysis
answer choices	
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
Unit of measurement	exact percent if available, otherwise categorical
Rationale	Care teams can range from the basic unit of general medical practitioners and
	nurses, to larger, multi-sector teams that engage health and social care
	workers. Across-sector teams can allow for improved collaboration and
	knowledge exchange between providers working in different settings (98).
Preferred data sources	Health Systems in Transition series
	 policy and programme documents
	 survey – health professionals
	expert consensus
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care services management
Feature	Primary care staffing
Indicator/question title	Autonomy in staffing of medical staff (man1q74)
Indicator/question	What is the level of autonomy for <u>managing</u> primary care facilities with respect
definition or question	to:
	 recruitment and hiring of medical staff (select one)
	 remuneration level of medical staff (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	complete autonomy
answer choices	 must negotiate with local authorities
	 central or subnational government decides
	 other arrangements, please specify in comments
	 do not know
	comments or clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical

Rationale	Autonomy of managers is a key predictor of the degree to which services and
	their arrangements are tailored to the community's needs. A manager's
	autonomy to ensure that the right people are in the right jobs is critical to
	ensure resources are used optimally (80).
Preferred data sources	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care services management
Feature	Managing primary care facilities
Indicator/question title	Degree of autonomy in budgeting (man2q75)
Indicator/question	a. Do primary care facilities have an autonomous <u>budgeting</u> process? (select
definition or question	one)
Numerator/denominator or	 yes, country-wide
answer choices	 yes, in some regions (please specify)
	 yes, is only being piloted
	• no
	• do not know
	comments or clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question	b. If yes, do primary care managers use <u>scenario planning</u> ? (select one)
definition or question	
Numerator/denominator or	 yes, country-wide
answer choices	 yes, in some regions (please specify)
	 yes, is only being piloted
	• no
	 do not know
	comments or clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question	c. If yes (question a), do primary care managers have the autonomy to transfer
definition or question	funds between budget lines? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	 yes, for the whole budget
answer choices	 yes, for a portion of the budget
	• no
	 do not know
	comments or clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question	d. If yes (question a), do primary care managers have the autonomy to invest
definition or question	savings? (e.g. new services, invest in technology, bonuses, etc.) (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	 yes, country-wide
answer choices	 yes, in some regions (please specify)
	 yes, is only being piloted
	• no
	do not know
	comments or clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical

Rationale	Managing services refers to the oversight of operations, to bring about order and consistency in their day-to-day delivery; the ability to do so being vital to cope with complexity and guide operations in the production process to secure optimal outcomes. Autonomy over resource management is linked to the allocation of resources and introduction of innovative resources. The investment of managers in primary care has been shown to contribute to the provision of health promotion and prevention services, improvements in planning and monitoring and the ability to identify high-risk individuals for more targeted care (80).
Preferred data sources	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care services management
Feature	Managing primary care facilities
Indicator/question title	Health care technology management (man2q76)
Indicator/question	Is a <u>maintenance programme</u> for all available <u>medical equipment</u> organized at
definition or question	facility level in primary care? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	 yes, country-wide
answer choices	 yes, in some regions (please specify)
	 yes, is only being piloted
	• no
	do not know
	comments or clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	Planning a maintenance programme is part of a broader effort to establish a
	comprehensive programme for healthcare technology management. The
	planning process includes considerations of inventory, identifying the method
	by which maintenance will be provided to the items included in the
	programme, and allocating resources (financial, physical and human resources)
	to the programme (54).
Preferred data sources	 survey – facilities
	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care services management
Feature	Strategic planning
Indicator/question title	Population health management (man3q77)
Indicator/question	a. Are <u>health services</u> planned at the facility level based on the needs of the
definition or question	<u>catchment area</u> ? (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	yes, country-wide
answer choices	 yes, in some regions (please specify)
	 yes, is only being piloted
	• no
	do not know
	comments or clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question	b. Are meetings to review progress against annual plans held on a quarterly
definition or question	basis at the facility level? (select one)

Numerator/denominator or	yes, country-wide
answer choices	• yes, in some regions (please specify)
	yes, is only being piloted
	• no
	do not know
	comments or clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question	c. Are clinical patient records from generalist medical practitioners used to
definition or question	identify health needs or priorities for health policy at the following levels of
	planning?
	practice/network level (select one)
	regional level (select one)
	country-wide (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	routinely (health statistics)
answer choices	incidentally
	• seldom
	• never
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	A clear mandate and authority to plan care for a defined population has been
	shown to be a key predictor for the degree to which national plans are tailored
	to apply to a specific context. Managing planning processes subnationally has
	supported the strength of local partnerships, bringing unique and meaningful
	links across sectors for service provision. Moreover, adopting a results-
	orientation ensures the management of services purposefully promotes a high
	standard of care through the critical review of clinical and managerial
	processes (80). The effect of primary care on improving equity on health
	depends on the availability of information about the needs in the various areas
	in which primary care practices are located. Targeting services around locally
	defined needs is effective in improving the quality and responsiveness of
	primary care (64).
Preferred data sources	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of care
Subdomain	Primary care quality improvement
Feature	National or regional primary care performance assessment
Indicator/question title	Accountability for performance (imp1q78)
Indicator/question	a. Is primary care performance assessment carried out? (select one)
definition or question	nationally
	regionally
Numerator/denominator or	yes, recurrently
answer choices	 yes, one-off/occasionally
	• no
	do not know
	comments or clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question	b. If yes, please provide the following information and upload the relevant
definition or question	document
Numerator/denominator or	• name
answer choices	type of assessment
Unit of measurement	document upload
Rationale	Reports on performance and health system monitoring influence health service
	quality (128-129).
Preferred data sources	Health Systems Performance Assessment Working Group on Primary

	 Care Questionnaire Health Systems in Transition series policy and programme documents
	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care quality improvement
Feature	National or regional primary care performance assessment
Indicator/question title	Patient experience measures (imp1q79)
Indicator/question	Are patient experiences measured? (select one)
definition or question	
Numerator/denominator or	• regularly, country-wide
answer choices	incidentally, country-wide
	regularly at local or regional level
	incidentally at local or regional level
	regularly at facility-level
	 incidentally at facility-level
	• no
	 do not know
	comments or clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	Surveys of patient satisfaction and utilization of health services are useful tools
	for obtaining information on the quality and responsiveness of health services.
	Such surveys may measure inputs (including whether facilities are properly
	equipped with essential medicines), processes (including whether waiting times
	are reasonable and treatment protocols are followed) and outcomes (including
	whether medical interventions reduce morbidity and mortality). Hence, an
	indicator that measures whether consumer satisfaction is considered in the
	assessment of health services reflect the responsiveness of the system (55).
Preferred data sources	Availability of national health services delivery data across the WHO
	European Region: scanning survey results
	Health Systems in Transition series
	 policy and programme documents
	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care quality improvement
Feature	National or regional primary care performance assessment
Indicator/question title	Job satisfaction (imp1q84)
Indicator/question	Has job satisfaction of primary care providers been measured and reported?
definition or question	(select one)
Numerator/denominator or	regularly, country-wide
answer choices	 incidentally, country-wide
	 regularly at local or regional level
	 incidentally at local or regional level
	regularly at facility-level
	 incidentally at facility-level

	• no
	do not know
	comments or clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	Job satisfaction has been found linked to levels of productivity, recruitment and
	retention, absenteeism and overall levels of quality of care (75). Measures to
	assess the satisfaction of health professionals are a recognized tool to support
	competency-based practice environments.
Preferred data sources	Health Systems Performance Assessment Working Group on Primary
	Care
	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care quality improvement
Feature	Practice level quality improvement mechanisms
Indicator/question title	Quality of care processes (imp2q80)
Indicator/question	a. Is there a national policy/ <u>strategy</u> /order that requires the following <u>quality</u>
definition or question	of care processes to be implemented in primary care?
	 <u>quality improvement teams</u> (select one)
	 <u>periodic health audits</u> (select one)
	 <u>patient complaints systems</u> (select one)
	 <u>peer review meetings</u> (select one)
	 <u>incident reporting</u> (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	 yes, specify policy/<u>strategy</u>/order
answer choices	do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question	b. Are the following processes assuring <u>quality of care</u> implemented?
definition or question	 <u>quality improvement teams</u> (select one)
	 periodic health audits (select one)
	 <u>patient complaints systems</u> (select one)
	 <u>peer review meetings</u> (select one)
	<u>incident reporting</u> (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	 yes, country-wide
answer choices	 yes, in some regions (please specify)
	yes, in some facilities
	 yes, is only being piloted
	• no
	• do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	Processes to assure that care is in accordance with defined standards are
	essential for systematically examining services across the care pathway,
	mapping clinical processes to identify gaps, causes of variation and to test
	improvements necessary. Feedback on clinical practice has an important
	impact on the ability of health professionals to modify their practice where
	evaluations show inconsistencies with a desired target (80).
Preferred data sources	Health Systems in Transition series
	 policy and programme documents
	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care quality improvement
Feature	Practice level quality improvement mechanisms
Indicator/question title	Safety incidents reporting (imp2q81)
Indicator/question definition or question	 Are primary care health professionals and/or patients encouraged to report on safety incidents, near misses and safety concerns in primary care? primary care health professionals (select one) patients (select one)
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 yes no do not know comments or clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	A continuous and iterative reflection process to care contrasts with approaches that direct blame for medical errors and compromise patient safety onto individual health professional and their performance. Creating a system of reporting and learning promotes a culture of learning and ensures basic standards of care are maintained (76-80).
Preferred data sources	Health Systems in Transition seriespolicy and programme documentskey informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care quality improvement
Feature	External accountability for quality of care
Indicator/question title	External accountability for quality of care delivered by generalist medical
	practitioners (imp3q82)
Indicator/question	a. Is the activity of generalist medical practitioners monitored at least once a
definition or question	year for the following?
	 volume of activity (select one)
	 volume of prescriptions (select one)
	 compliance with guidelines (select one)
	 performance targets (select one)
	other (please specify)
Numerator/denominator or	• yes
answer choices	• no
	• do not know
	comments and clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question	b. Do <u>stakeholders</u> receive this information? (select one)
definition or question	
Numerator/denominator or	• yes
answer choices	• no
	 do not know
	comments or clarifications
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	Standardized approaches for the measurement of quality of care across levels
	of care have been found to resolve sub-optimal performance from across the
	service continuum and not simply moving them downstream. Clinical
	governance ensures the impact of services is assessed and the cycle of review
	and reflection adds to a culture of innovation and learning (80).

Preferred data sources	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Model of primary care
Subdomain	Primary care quality improvement
Feature	Continuous professional development
Indicator/question title	Continuous professional development opportunities (imp4q83)
Indicator/question	a. Have the following cadres attended any continuous professional
definition or question	development in the previous 12-months?
	 generalist medical practitioners (select one)
	 managers working in primary care (non-clinical professional
	development) (select one)
	 nurses working in primary care (select one)
	 narrow specialists working in primary care (select one)
	 other working in primary care, please specify (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	• yes
answer choices	• no
	do not know
Unit of measurement	category
Indicator/question	b. Percent of health professionals who attended any continuous professional
definition or question	development in the previous 12-months
	generalist medical practitioners
	 managers working in primary care
	nurses working in primary care
	 <u>narrow specialists</u> working in primary care
	 other working in primary care, specified in point a
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: number of health professionals in the denominator who attended
answer choices	any <u>continuous professional development</u>
	Denominator: number of <u>practising health professionals</u> in the respective
	category (the number should be at the end of the calendar year)
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
	do not know
Unit of measurement	percent or category
Rationale	Continuous professional development is the most widely used approach to
	effectively improve clinical practice. There is substantial evidence that
	investments in different types of clinical education lead to improvements in
	services delivery, the consolidation of taught knowledge and skills from initial
	education and ultimately, improved health outcomes (80).
Preferred data sources	registries of health professionals
	health facility staffing routine data
	expert consensus
Disaggregation	and a second s
Disaggregation	none specified

Performance of primary care

Care contact

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	Utilization
Feature	Consultation rate
Indicator/question title	Overall utilization of primary care services (utl1q85)
Indicator/question	a. Average number of outpatient consultations with a generalist medical
definition or question	<u>practitioner</u> per person per year
Numerator/denominator or	Administrative data:
answer choices	Numerator: total number of <u>outpatient consultations</u> with a <u>generalist medical</u>
	practitioner by an adult (15+ years) during the 12-month reference period
	(excluding telephone and email contacts, visits for prescribed laboratory tests,
	and visits to perform prescribed and scheduled treatment procedures, e.g.
	injections, physiotherapy, etc.)
	Denominator: resident population (15+ years)
Unit of measurement	number of contacts with generalist medical practitioner per person per year
Indicator/question	b. Percent of population that consulted a primary health care team member at
definition or question	least once during the year (at least one outpatient consultation)
Numerator/denominator or	Administrative data:
answer choices	Numerator: total number of individuals (15+ years) who consulted a primary
	health care team member at least once during the year (excluding telephone
	and email contacts, visits for prescribed laboratory tests, and visits to perform
	prescribed and scheduled treatment procedures e.g. injections, physiotherapy,
	etc.)
	Denominator: resident population (15+ years)
	Reported survey data:
	less than 1 year as self-reported time elapsed since last <u>outpatient consultation</u>
	with a primary health care team member
Unit of measurement	percent
Indicator/question	c. Percent of population attached to a primary care facility that consulted a
definition or question	primary health care team member at least once during the year
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: total number of individuals in the denominator who consulted a
answer choices	primary care team member at least once during the year (excluding telephone
	and email contacts, visits for prescribed laboratory tests, and visits to perform
	prescribed and scheduled treatment procedures, e.g. injections, physiotherapy,
	etc.)
	Denominator: number of adult individuals (15+ years) attached to a primary
	care facility (attachment can be either based on geographical area or on a list of
	enrolled patients)
Unit of measurement	percent

Rationale	Average number of outpatient consultations per person per year is part of the
	list of WHO recommended core indicators to evaluate health services delivery
	(55). The value of the indicator is two-fold: one, it identifies outliers in the
	Region for which further inquiry will reveal the particular situation; and
	comparisons across time within countries will help to ascertain the effects of
	reforms or other changes. As well, the consumption of care (in terms of
	outpatient consultations/visits) is an indication of accessibility of services which
	is associated with improvements in the level of population health.
Preferred data sources	health information system
	 survey – population
	 Eurostat (hlth_ehis_am1e for part b.)
	UN World Population Prospects for denominator
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	Administrative sources tend to estimate higher average values compared to
	surveys because of incorrect recall. While this is an important measure of
	efficiency of the primary care workforce performance, the interpretation of
	levels across countries is ambiguous. For example, at national level, the
	frequency of outpatient consultations/visits will be a function of several factors
	including the density generalist medical practitioners in the population, the
	mechanism for reimbursing the generalist medical practitioner i.e. fee-for-
	service payments will likely result in higher average number of outpatient
	consultations/visits, and the availability of other health professionals in the
	health workforce i.e. nurses and generalist medical practitioner assistants may
	fulfil basic generalist medical practitioner functions in some countries.

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	Utilization
Feature	Preventive care and diagnostic services
Indicator/question title	Influenza vaccination coverage (utl2q86)
Indicator/question definition or question	 Percent of at risk population who received an annual influenza vaccination: pregnant women clinical risk groups residents of long-term care facilities population 65+ years Note: the question should be answered if the answer to the indicator Model of care/proventive convices/influenza is "vos"
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 Exact percent from programme/survey data Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available: 70% or more more than 50% but less than 70% 10% to 50% less than 10% do not know
Unit of measurement	percent of target population or category

Rationale	Vaccines are safe, effective and the principal measure for preventing influenza
	and reducing the impact of epidemics. Increasing seasonal influenza vaccination
	uptake among these groups (high risk groups) is a key strategy to reduce the
	burden of influenza in the WHO European Region (130). This measures
	effectiveness and quality of primary health care and preventive services.
	Focusing on targeted groups presents delivery and coordination challenges
	since some may be more difficult to reach if they are not accessing health
	services. On the other hand, if there is any interface with health or social
	services then effective coordination would ensure high rates of vaccination
	coverage. There is some evidence that influenza vaccine reduces exacerbations
	in chronic obstructive pulmonary disease individuals (131).
Preferred data sources	European Centre for Disease Prevention and Control – Seasonal
	influenza vaccination in Europe Technical Report for 2014–2015
	 European Core Health Indicators – influenza vaccination rates for
	people 65+ years
	 OECD Data – influenza vaccination rates for people 65+ years
	health information system
	Health Systems in Transition series
	expert consensus
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	Unfortunately, this information is not collected for the entire WHO European
	Region, and it is not disseminated on the HFA-DB.

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	Utilization
Feature	Preventive care and diagnostic services
Indicator/question title	HPV vaccination coverage (utl2q87)
Indicator/question	Percent of population targeted by the national HPV vaccination programme
definition or question	who were successfully vaccinated (select one)
	Note: the question should be answered if the answer to the indicator Model of
	care/Preventive services/HPV vaccination is "yes". The percentage reflect the
	target population of the national HPV vaccination programme – boys and girls,
	or only girls.
Numerator/denominator or	Exact percent from survey/programme data
answer choices	
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
	do not know
Unit of measurement	percent of target population or category
Rationale	As part of a more comprehensive approach to cervical cancer prevention and
	control, HPV vaccination plays an important role in protecting adolescent girls
	and young women (131).
Preferred data sources	 WHO Global Country Capacity and Response Survey on
	Noncommunicable Diseases Survey 2017
	health information system
	expert consensus
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	The target population varies by country.

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	Utilization
Feature	Preventive care and diagnostic services
Indicator/question title	Diabetic education (ult2q88)
Indicator/question	Percent of individuals registered for diabetes treatment who were referred for
definition or question	diabetic education
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: number of cases in the denominator who were referred for
answer choices	diabetic education
	Denominator: number of individuals registered for treatment of diabetes
	during the quarter that ended 6 months previously
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
	 do not know
Unit of measurement	percent or category
Rationale	Training for self-management strategies in people with diabetes type 2 is
	effective in improving fasting blood glucose levels, glycated hemoglobin and
	diabetes knowledge and in reducing systolic blood pressure levels, body weight
	and the requirement for diabetes medication.
Preferred data sources	health information system
	 survey – population
	expert consensus
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	Utilization
Feature	Preventive care and diagnostic services
Indicator/question title	Counselling services for tobacco cessation (utl2q89)
Indicator/question	Percent of population who are smokers who were advised by a primary care
definition or question	health professional to quit smoking in the previous 12-months
Numerator/denominator or	Exact percent reported in survey analysis
answer choices	
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
Unit of measurement	percent of target population
Rationale	Evidence-based support to quit tobacco use (tobacco dependence treatment)
	includes methods from simple medical advice to pharmacotherapy, along with
	quit lines and counselling. However, tobacco users have low levels of
	awareness of the evidence about these tobacco dependence treatment
	interventions. This indicator would measure the ability of preventive care
	efforts to reach the population intended (132).
Preferred data sources	WHO STEPwise approach to surveillance survey
	 survey – population
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	Utilization
Feature	Preventive care and diagnostic services
Indicator/question title	National cancer screening programmes targeting the general population
	(utl2q90)
Indicator/question	a. Percent of target female population who had cervical cancer screening
definition or question	Note: Cervical cancer screening includes a Papanicolau test, an HPV test or a
	visual inspection with acetic acid; target population according to screening
	frequencies corresponding to national cancer screening programme and
	policies
Numerator/denominator or	Exact percent from programme/survey data
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question	b. Percent of target female population who were screened for breast cancer
definition or question	Note: Breast cancer screening includes bilateral mammography; target
	population according to screening frequencies corresponding to <u>national</u>
	cancer screening programme and policies
Numerator/denominator or	Exact percent from programme/survey data
answer choices	
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
	do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Indicator/question	c. Percent of target population who were screened for colon cancer
definition or question	Note: colon cancer screening includes faecal test or a
	colonoscopy/sigmoidoscopy; target population according to screening
	frequencies corresponding to national cancer screening programme and
	policies
Numerator/denominator or	Exact percent from programme/survey data
answer choices	
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	• more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	• less than 10%
	do not know
Unit of measurement	
Rationale	The cervical cancer screening indicator is indicator 25 of the NCD Global
	ivionitoring Framework for noncommunicable diseases which will track the
	Implementation of the honcommunicable diseases action plan through
	The 25 indicators and the Qualuntary clabal targets of the framework provide
	a versal direction and the action plan provides a read man for reaching the
	overall direction and the action plan provides a road map for reaching the
	calculation is available at http://www.who.int/omb/ocd.tools/indicator25/on/
Proferred data courses	WHO Global Country Conscitution d Porporate Survey on
	Noncommunicable Diseases Survey 2017
	health information system
Disaggregation	none specified
Disaggregation	

Limitations	Data not specific to primary care. WHO Member States agreed to an indicator regarding monitoring the proportion of women between the ages 30-49 years screened for cervical cancer at least once, or more often, and lower or higher age groups according to national programmes and policies (133). The WHO Noncommunicable country capacity survey collects information on screening coverage according to national programmes and policies without imposing an age bracket or frequency (101). OECD reports programme and survey data for cervical cancer screening for women 20-69 years, within the past 3 years (or according to the specific screening frequency recommended in each country)
	(60).

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	Utilization
Feature	Preventive care and diagnostic services
Indicator/question title	Individual risk assessments (utl2q91)
Indicator/question	Percent of population, age 40-64, with cardiovascular disease risk assessment
definition or question	
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: number of individuals in the denominator whose records include a
answer choices	cardiovascular disease risk assessment/screening
	Denominator: number of individuals aged 40-64 years
	 Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available: 70% or more more than 50% but less than 70% 10% to 50% less than 10% do not know
Unit of measurement	percent of population aged 40-64 years or category
Rationale	Cardiovascular risk assessment is one of the three individual level priority
	interventions in the Action Plan for Prevention and Control of
	Noncommunicable Diseases in the WHO European Region (107, 131).
Preferred data sources	health information system
	expert consensus
Disaggregation	service provided in primary care/outside of primary care
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	Utilization
Feature	Preventive care and diagnostic services
Indicator/question title	Tuberculosis preventive care and diagnostic services (utl2q91)
Indicator/question	Percent of risk groups with systematic screening for active tuberculosis and
definition or question	latent tuberculosis infection among tuberculosis risk groups
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: actual number of people screened for tuberculosis and/or latent
answer choices	tuberculosis infection in a defined period
	Denominator: total number of people at risk eligible for screening according to
	the national guidelines, in the same period
Unit of measurement	percent
Rationale	This is an indicator from the Roadmap to implement the tuberculosis action
	plan for the WHO European region, with full coverage target (134). Systematic
	screening is one of the four components of pillar 1 of the End TB strategy
	focused on integrated, person-centred care and prevention (135). The
	screening tests, examinations or other procedures should efficiently distinguish
	persons with a high probability of having tuberculosis (that is, with suspected

	TB) from those who are unlikely to have TB. Among those whose screening is
	positive, the diagnosis needs to be established by using one or several
	diagnostic tests and additional clinical assessments, which together have high
	accuracy (136).
Preferred data sources	data reported in WHO Global Tuberculosis Report 2017
Disaggregation	 age groups (0-4 years, 5-14 years and 15+ years)
	 risk factors: people living with HIV (PLHIV), prisoners, migrants, other
	according to national guidelines.
Limitations	Indiscriminate mass screening should be avoided. The prioritization of risk groups for screening should be based on assessments made for each risk group of the potential benefits and harms, the feasibility of the initiative, the acceptability of the approach, the number needed to screen, and the cost effectiveness of screening. The choice of algorithm for screening and diagnosis is country specific and should be based on an assessment of the accuracy of the algorithm for each risk group considered, as well as the availability, feasibility and cost of the tests.

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	Utilization
Feature	Preventive care and diagnostic services
Indicator/question title	WHO recommended rapid test as the initial diagnostic test for tuberculosis
	(utl2q93)
Indicator/question	Percent of notified new and relapse tuberculosis cases tested with a WHO
definition or question	recommended rapid test as the initial diagnostic test
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: number of notified new and relapse tuberculosis cases tested with
answer choices	a <u>WHO recommended rapid diagnostic test</u> as the initial test during the
	reference period
	Denominator: number of notified new and relapse tuberculosis cases during
	the reference period
Unit of measurement	percent
Rationale	This indicator is in line with the recommendation of WHO to replace by 2017
	the initial diagnostic test for all people with signs and symptoms of tuberculosis
	with a new point of care WHO-recommended rapid diagnostics with sensitivity
	similar to that of liquid culture. WHO will monitor this indicator in low- and
	middle-income countries. a target of 100% should be reached by the end of
	2018 for people living with HIV and people at risk of DR-TB. This indicator is
	also included as one of the top 10 priority indicators for monitoring the
	implementation of the End tuberculosis Strategy (99, 135, 137-138).
Preferred data sources	 data reported in WHO Global tuberculosis report 2017; indicator
	available in country profiles as "% tested with rapid diagnostics at time
	of diagnosis"
Disaggregation	Where electronic registers or periodic surveys allow stratification, national-level
	monitoring of this indicator should be stratified by patient risk group.
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	Continuity of primary care
Feature	Treatment
Indicator/question title	Hypertension treatment coverage (con1q94)
Indicator/question	Percent of hypertensive individuals with controlled blood pressure
definition or question	

Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: cumulative number of registered patients with controlled blood
answer choices	pressure (SBP<140 and DBP<90) at all health facilities, aged 18+
	Denominator: estimated number of individuals aged 18+ years with a diagnosis
	of hypertension
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
	• do not know
Unit of measurement	percent of target population or category
Rationale	This indicator is part of the Systems for monitoring of the HEARTS Technical
	package for cardiovascular disease management in primary health care. Its
	purpose is to measure the coverage of the programme to treat and control
	hypertension (51).
Preferred data sources	 health information system (numerator)
	 registers for hypertension (numerator)
	• STEPwise approach to surveillance or similar survey (denominator)
	expert consensus
Disaggregation	initial treatment prescribed in primary care/outside of primary care
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	Continuity of primary care
Feature	Treatment
Indicator/question title	Tuberculosis treatment coverage (con1q95)
Indicator/question	Percent of estimated number of incident tuberculosis cases that were notified
definition or question	and treated
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: number of new and relapse cases that were notified and treated
answer choices	Denominator: estimated number of incident tuberculosis cases in the same
	year
Unit of measurement	percent
Rationale	This indicator measures the capacity of health system to ensure anti-
	tuberculosis treatment and assure rapid and quality care. In low resources
	settings and with weak tuberculosis governance as well with gaps in
	pharmaceutical management detected tuberculosis cases remain in the waiting
	lists for and when available treatment. The target for coverage is 90% or more.
Preferred data sources	 data reported in WHO Global tuberculosis report 2017, country
	profile "TB treatment coverage (notified/estimated incidence)"
Disaggregation	all tuberculosis
	HIV-status
	 rifampicin resistant/multidrug resistant tuberculosis
	conf_rrmdr_tx/conf_rrmdr
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	Continuity of primary care
Feature	Treatment
Indicator/question title	Depression treatment coverage (con1q96)
Indicator/question	Percent of population aged 18+ years with a diagnosis of depression who were
definition or question	offered antidepressant drug treatment or referral to a mental health
	professional

Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: number of individuals in the denominator who were diagnosed
answer choices	and offered psychological or antidepressant drug treatment or referral to a
	mental health professional by a generalist medical practitioner in the previous
	12-months.
	Denominator: estimated prevalence of depression (number of individuals aged
	18+ years)
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	• less than 10%
	do not know
Unit of measurement	percent of target population or category
Rationale	WHO Mental Health Action Plan 2013-2020 objective number 2 sets out to
	provide comprehensive, integrated and responsive mental health and social
	care services in community-based settings. Among the actions suggested is the
	reorganization of services to shift the locus of care away from long-stay mental
	hospitals towards non-specialized health settings, with increasing coverage of
	evidence based interventions which can be delivered, among other settings, in
	primary care (139).
Preferred data sources	health information system
	expert consensus
Disaggregation	N/A
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	Continuity of primary care
Feature	Follow-up care
Indicator/question title	Hypertension follow-up (con2q97)
Indicator/question	Percent of hypertensive individuals aged 18+ years who had a follow-up
definition or question	<u>consultation</u> in primary care (excluding visits only for medication re-fill) in the
	12-month reference period
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: number of individuals in the denominator who had a <u>follow-up</u>
answer choices	<u>consultation</u> with a generalist medical practitioner in the 12-month reference
	period
	Denominator: estimated number of individuals aged 18+ years with a diagnosis
	of hypertension
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
	do not know
Unit of measurement	percent of target population or category
Rationale	Measuring this gap reflects the health system's continuity, including the
	system's ability to capture and follow-up with patients.
Preferred data sources	health information system
	 STEPwise approach to surveillance (denominator)
	expert consensus
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	Continuity of primary care
Feature	Follow-up care
Indicator/question title	Diabetes monitoring (con2q98)
Indicator/question	Percent of diabetic type 2 population aged 18+ years who were monitored in
definition or question	primary care in the previous year by receiving the following tests:
	• foot exam
	• eye exam
	urine protein test
	blood pressure measurement
	overweight screening
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	 Numerator: number of individuals in the denominator who received the respective exams/tests during a visit with a primary care professional in the 12-month reference period or otherwise specified Denominator: number of individuals aged 18+ years diagnosed with diabetes type 2 Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available: 70% or more more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	• less than 10%
	• do not know
Unit of measurement	percent of target population or category
Rationale	Diabetes is a primary care sensitive condition. The provision of a wide range of services provided by primary care health professionals is associated with better health outcomes at lower costs. These are part of the essential package of interventions for diabetic patients from WHO-PEN (foot exam, and eye exam) (57). Early detection and treatment of complications (at intervals recommended by national and international guidelines) is an important part of managing diabetes in primary care (107).
Preferred data sources	health information system
	expert consensus
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	Continuity of primary care
Feature	Follow-up care
Indicator/question title	Chronic obstructive pulmonary disease follow-up (con2q99)
Indicator/question	Percent of individuals aged 18+ years with chronic obstructive pulmonary
definition or question	disease who had a <u>follow-up consultation</u> with a generalist medical practitioner
	in the previous 12- months
	general follow-up consultation
	lung function measurement

Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: number of individuals in the denominator who had a follow-up
answer choices	consultation, including a lung function measurement, with a generalist medical
	practitioner for chronic obstructive pulmonary disease in the 12-month
	reference period
	Denominator: number of individuals aged 18+ years diagnosed with chronic
	obstructive pulmonary disease
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
	• do not know
Unit of measurement	percent of target population or category
Rationale	Measuring this gap reflects the health system's continuity, including the
	system's ability to capture and follow-up with patients.
Preferred data sources	health information system
	expert consensus
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	Continuity of primary care
Feature	Follow-up care
Indicator/question title	Post-natal care (con2q100)
Indicator/question	Percent of women who received a post-natal health check
definition or question	 between days 7-14 post delivery
	6-weeks post delivery
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	Numerator: number of women in the denominator who received a health check in primary care during the specified intervals post-delivery, in the 12-month reference period: ICD-10 Z39.2 - encounter for routine postpartum follow-up
	Denominator: number of women, age 15 to 49, who had a delivery in the 12- month reference period
	 Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available: 70% or more more than 50% but less than 70% 10% to 50% less than 10% do not know
Unit of measurement	percent of women who had a delivery in the 12-month reference period or category
Rationale	In 2013, there was a notable change to existing WHO guidance on postnatal check-up for mothers to include 4 postnatal check-ups: full assessment during the first day, and three check-ups: on day 3 (48-72 hours), between days 7-14, and 6 weeks after birth. These contacts can be made at home or in health facility, depending on the context and the provider. Additional contacts may be needed to address issues or concerns (27).
Preferred data sources	health information systemexpert consensus
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	Continuity of primary care
Feature	Follow-up care
Indicator/question title	Depression treatment follow-up (con2q101)
Indicator/question	Percent of population aged 18+ years with depression who received
definition or question	psychological treatment or were prescribed anti-depressant drug treatment by
	a generalist medical practitioner and who had a follow-up <u>consultation</u> with the
	generalist medical practitioner
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: number of individuals in the denominator who had a <u>follow-up</u>
answer choices	<u>consultation</u> with a generalist medical practitioner for review within two to four
	weeks of initiating psychological or antidepressant drug treatment
	Denominator: number of individuals aged 18+ years with depression who
	started anti-depressant drug treatment in the 12-month reference period under
	the supervision of a generalist medical practitioner
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
	do not know
Unit of measurement	percent of target population or category
Rationale	In adult individuals with depressive episode/disorders who have benefited from
	psychological or initial antidepressant treatment, the psychological or
	antidepressant treatment should not be stopped before 9-12 months after
	recovery. Treatment should be regularly monitored, with special attention to
	treatment adherence. Frequency of contact should be determined by the
	adherence, severity and by local feasibility issues (26).
Preferred data sources	health information system
	expert consensus
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	WHO mental health guidelines focus on treatment for moderate to severe
	depression, and not mild depression.

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	Continuity of primary care
Feature	Longitudinal continuity of care
Indicator/question title	Stability of patient-generalist medical practitioner relationship (con3q102)
Indicator/question	Percent of population who report visiting their usual generalist medical
definition or question	practitioner for their common health problems
Numerator/denominator or	Exact percent reported in survey analysis
answer choices	
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
Unit of measurement	percent of population
Rationale	The existence of an ongoing relationship with a particular generalist medical
	practitioner rather than with a particular place or no place at all, is beneficial
	for the quality of care (64).
Preferred data sources	survey – population

Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	Continuity of primary care
Feature	Informational continuity of care
Indicator/question title	Medical record keeping (con4q103)
Indicator/question	Percent of generalist medical practitioners with complete medical records for
definition or question	all patients
Numerator/denominator or	Exact percent reported in survey analysis
answer choices	
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
	• do not know
Unit of measurement	percent of practitioners or category
Rationale	Systematically keeping medical records is an important measure to achieve
	informational continuity of care and to facilitate personalized care provision.
	Both are important for the quality of care (64).
Preferred data sources	Commonwealth Fund International Survey of Primary Care Physicians
	in 10 Nations
	 survey – health professionals
	expert consensus
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	Continuity of primary care
Feature	Informational continuity of care
Indicator/question title	Incoming clinical information procedures (con4q104)
Indicator/question	Percent of generalist medical practitioners who receive information/notification
definition or question	when their patients have contacted out-of-hours services, including
	emergency care
Numerator/denominator or	Exact percent reported in survey analysis
answer choices	
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
Unit of measurement	exact percent if available, otherwise categorical
Rationale	To safeguard the quality of care it is important that the generalist medical
	practitioner receives feedback on patient results of the visits to other care
	providers, during or after office hours. Besides the necessity for generalist
	medical practitioners to stay up to date on the progress of their patients,
	individuals find it easier to obtain information from their regular source of care
	compared to a specialist medical practitioner (64).
Preferred data sources	Commonwealth Fund - International survey of primary care physicians
	in 10 nations
	 survey – health professionals
	expert consensus

Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	Continuity of primary care
Feature	Informational continuity of care
Indicator/question title	Generalist-specialist medical practitioner communication (con4q105)
Indicator/question	Percent of generalist medical practitioners who always receive a report/reply
definition or question	letter back from specialist medical practitioner with all relevant health
	information
Numerator/denominator or	Exact percent reported in survey analysis
answer choices	
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
Unit of measurement	exact percent if available, otherwise categorical
Rationale	To safeguard the quality of care it is important that the generalist medical
	practitioner receives feedback on patient results of the visits to other health
	professionals, during or after office hours. Besides the necessity for primary
	care health professionals to stay up to date on the progress of their patients,
	individuals find it easier to obtain information from their regular source of care
	compared to a specialist medical practitioner (64).
Preferred data sources	Commonwealth Fund – International survey of primary care physicians
	in 10 nations
	 survey – health professionals
	expert - consensus
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	Continuity of primary care
Feature	Informational continuity of care
Indicator/question title	Generalist medical practitioner-social services (con4q106)
Indicator/question	Percent of generalist medical practitioners who coordinate care with social
definition or question	services or other community providers at least once per month
Numerator/denominator or	Exact percent reported in survey analysis
answer choices	
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
Unit of measurement	exact percent if available, otherwise categorical
Rationale	When different types of health professionals are involved in a person's care
	complete and timely information sharing will ensure safe and prompt care.
Preferred data sources	Commonwealth Fund - International survey of primary care physicians
	in 10 nations
	 existing surveys – health professionals and assessments
	expert consensus
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	Coordination of care across settings
Feature	Transition management
Indicator/question title	Referral feedback to primary care (cor1q108)
Indicator/question	Percent of generalist medical practitioners that receive information needed to
definition or question	continue managing the individual upon discharge from hospital (including
	recommended follow-up care) within 4 days
Numerator/denominator or	Exact percent reported in survey analysis
answer choices	
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
Unit of measurement	exact percent if available, otherwise categorical
Rationale	Generalist medical practitioners depend on the feedback on clinical findings
	and further care required to care for returning patients effectively. Lack of such
	feedback can lead to poor efficiency and care that is not cost effective.
Preferred data sources	Commonwealth Fund - International survey of primary care physicians
	in 10 nations
	 survey – health professionals
	expert consensus
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	Comprehensiveness of primary care
Feature	Resolution capacity of generalist medical practitioners
Indicator/question title	Generalist medical practitioner consultations without referral (cop1q110)
Indicator/question	Percent of total consultations handled solely by generalist medical practitioners
definition or question	without referrals to other health professionals
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: number of consultations in the denominator prescribed a referral
answer choices	Denominator: number of first-contact consultations (include only the first
	consultations and exclude consultations that are for the same course of
	treatment)
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
Unit of measurement	exact percent if available, otherwise categorical
Rationale	First contact care by generalist medical practitioners is essential to address the
	wide variety and often very basic needs existing in the community. Having a
	generalist medical practitioner rather than a specialist medical practitioner as a
	regular source of care has been associated with better health outcomes and
	lower health care costs (64). Studies have shown that in countries where
	generalist medical practitioners had a strong role as the doctor of first contact
	they treated more than 90% of all patient contacts without referral (62).
Preferred data sources	health information system
	expert consensus
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	People-centeredness of primary care
Feature	Patient experience
Indicator/question title	Patient satisfaction (pcc1q111)
Indicator/question	Percent of population who are overall satisfied with primary care services
definition or question	
Numerator/denominator or	Exact percent reported in survey analysis
answer choices	
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
Unit of measurement	exact percent if available, otherwise categorical
Rationale	The quality of the personal relationship between patients and their generalist
	medical practitioners, which should be characterized by a sense of
	responsibility for the delivery of coordinated and comprehensive care and a
	mutual feeling of trust and loyalty, leads to better quality of care (64).
Preferred data sources	Health Systems in Transition series
	survey – population
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	People-centeredness of primary care
Feature	Shared decision-making
Indicator/question title	Care and treatment shared decision-making (pcc2q112)
Indicator/question	Percent of population reporting the generalist medical practitioner involved
definition or question	them as much as they wanted to be in decisions about their care and treatment
Numerator/denominator or	Exact percent reported in survey analysis
answer choices	
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
Unit of measurement	exact percent if available, otherwise categorical
Rationale	Patient-reported experience measures (PREMs) with primary care are an
	important marker of primary care quality from the point of view of those most
	concerned – patients themselves.
Preferred data sources	 OECD Health Care Quality Indicators - patient experience
	 STEPwise approach to surveillance survey, optional module
	Health Systems in Transition
	 survey – population
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	Target population of the STEPS noncommunicable diseases risk factor survey
	be all adults aged 18 to 69 (133). OECD Health Care Quality Indicators report
	data from 16+ years age group.

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	People-centeredness of primary care
Feature	Patient engagement
Indicator/question title	Patient reporting opportunity to ask questions (pcc3q113)
Indicator/question	Percent of population reporting generalist medical practitioner giving
definition or question	opportunity to ask questions or raise concerns about recommended treatment
Numerator/denominator or	Exact percent reported in survey analysis
answer choices	
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
Unit of measurement	exact percent if available, otherwise categorical
Rationale	Patient-reported experience measures (PREMs) with primary care are an
	important marker of primary care quality from the point of view of those most
	concerned – patients themselves. The quality of the personal relationship
	between patients and their generalist medical practitioner, which should be
	characterized by a sense of responsibility for the delivery of coordinated and
	comprehensive care and a mutual feeling of trust and loyalty, leads to better
	quality of care (64).
Preferred data sources	 OECD Health Care Quality Indicators - patient experience
	 STEPwise approach to surveillance survey, optional module
	survey – population
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	Target population of the STEPS noncommunicable diseases risk factor survey
	be all adults aged 18 to 69 (133). OECD Health Care Quality Indicators report
	data from 16+ years age group.

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	People-centeredness of primary care
Feature	Patient engagement
Indicator/question title	Patient reporting enough time with doctor (pcc3q114)
Indicator/question	Percent of population reporting the generalist medical practitioner spending
definition or question	enough time with them during the consultation
Numerator/denominator or	Exact percent reported in survey analysis
answer choices	
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
Unit of measurement	exact percent if available, otherwise categorical
Rationale	Patient-reported experience measures (PREMs) with primary care are an
	important marker of primary care quality from the point of view of those most
	concerned – patients themselves. The quality of the personal relationship
	between patients and their generalist medical practitioner, which should be
	characterized by a sense of responsibility for the delivery of coordinated and
	comprehensive care and a mutual feeling of trust and loyalty, leads to better
	quality of care (64).
Preferred data sources	 OECD Health Care Quality Indicators - patient experience
	 STEPwise approach to surveillance survey, optional module
	 survey – population

Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	Target population of the STEPS noncommunicable diseases risk factor survey be all adults aged 18 to 69 (133). OECD Health Care Quality Indicators report data from 16+ years age group.

Domain	Care contact
Subdomain	People-centeredness of primary care
Feature	Patient engagement
Indicator/question title	Patient reporting easy to understand explanations (pcc3q115)
Indicator/question	Percent of population reporting generalist medical practitioner providing easy-
definition or question	to-understand explanations
Numerator/denominator or	Exact percent reported in survey analysis
answer choices	
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
Unit of measurement	exact percent if available, otherwise categorical
Rationale	Patient-reported experience measures (PREMs) with primary care are an
	important marker of primary care quality from the point of view of those most
	concerned – patients themselves. The quality of the personal relationship
	between patients and their generalist medical practitioner, which should be
	characterized by a sense of responsibility for the delivery of coordinated and
	comprehensive care and a mutual feeling of trust and loyalty, leads to better
	quality of care (64).
Preferred data sources	 OECD Health Care Quality Indicators - patient experience
	 STEPwise approach to surveillance survey, optional module
	survey – population
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	Target population of the STEPS noncommunicable diseases risk factor survey
	be all adults aged 18 to 69 (133). OECD Health Care Quality Indicators report
	data from 16+ years age group.

Primary care outputs

Domain	Outputs
Subdomain	Access to primary care services
Feature	Availability and affordability of primary care services
Indicator/question title	Same day appointments (acc1q116)
Indicator/question	Percent of population reporting that they could get a same-day or next-day
definition or question	appointment to see a generalist medical practitioner for immediate care for a
	minor health problem
Numerator/denominator or	Exact percent reported in survey analysis
answer choices	
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	• less than 10%
Unit of measurement	exact percent if available, otherwise categorical
Rationale	Access (in general) is the opportunity or ability to both obtain the health
	services people need, while benefitting from financial risk protection. Universal
	health coverage is not possible without universal access. Access has three
	domains: physical accessibility, financial affordability and acceptability. Physical
	accessibility is understood as the availability of good health services within
	reasonable reach of those who need them and of opening hours, appointment
	systems and other aspects of service organization and delivery that allow
	people to obtain the services when they need them (140).
Preferred data sources	 Commonwealth Fund - International profiles of health care systems
	 STEPwise approach to surveillance survey, optional module
	 survey – population
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Outputs
Subdomain	Access to primary care services
Feature	Availability and affordability of primary care services
Indicator/question title	Waiting time for appointment (acc1q117)
Indicator/question	Waiting time to see a generalist medical practitioner in the facility for a booked
definition or question	appointment
Numerator/denominator or	Average number of minutes individuals waited to see a generalist medical
answer choices	practitioner in the facility for a booked appointment (reported in the survey
	analysis)

Unit of measurement	minutes
Rationale	Access (in general) is the opportunity or ability to both obtain the health services people need, while benefitting from financial risk protection. Universal health coverage is not possible without universal access. Access has three domains: physical accessibility, financial affordability and acceptability. Physical accessibility is understood as the availability of good health services within reasonable reach of those who need them and of opening hours, appointment systems and other aspects of service organization and delivery that allow people to obtain the services when they need them (140)
Preferred data sources	STEPwise approach to surveillance survey, optional module
	Health Systems in Transition series
	survey – population
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Outputs
Subdomain	Access to primary care services
Feature	Availability and affordability of primary care services
Indicator/question title	Access barriers due to treatment costs (acc2q119)
Indicator/question definition or question	 Percent of population that reported needing a medical service but skipped them due to costs: outpatient consultation/visits with a generalist medical practitioner follow-up care and treatment (not medication) prescribed in primary
	care • medicine prescribed in primary care
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	Exact percent reported in survey analysis
	 Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available: 70% or more more than 50% but less than 70% 10% to 50% less than 10%
Unit of measurement	exact percent if available, otherwise categorical
Rationale	Access (in general) is the opportunity or ability to both obtain the health services people need, while benefitting from financial risk protection. Universal health coverage is not possible without universal access. Access has three domains: physical accessibility, financial affordability and acceptability. Financial affordability to primary care services is a key feature of a strong primary care system. Financial access, a measure of people's ability to pay for services without financial hardship, is a critical component of health service access. Analysing it, considers not only the price of health services, but also indirect and opportunity costs (e.g. the costs of transportation to and from facilities and of taking time away from worked). All European countries endorse equity of access to health care for all people as an important policy objective. One method of gauging to what extent this objective is achieved is through assessing reports of unmet needs for health care. The problems that people report in obtaining care when they are ill often reflect significant barriers to care (141).
Preferred data sources	 OECD Health Care Quality Indicators STEPwise approach to surveillance survey, optional module
	survey – population
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	Target population of the STEPS noncommunicable diseases risk factor survey be all adults aged 18 to 69 (133). OECD Health care quality indicators reports

data from 16+ years age group.
This indicator may not be available for primary care only, and is reported
differently across data sources:
 WHO STEPS optional module separates these three services and is
reported specifically for primary care.
• OECD's question captures doctor, nurse, or allied health professional.
It is not specific to primary care. It groups medical tests, treatment
and follow-up. There is a separate question on prescriptions.
European Core Health Indicators report unmet need grouping
together reasons: financial barriers, waiting time and travelling
distance.

Domain	Outputs
Subdomain	Access to primary care services
Feature	Availability and affordability of primary care services
Indicator/question title	Access to essential medicines (acc2q154)
Indicator/question	Proportion of health facilities that have a core set of relevant essential
definition or question	medicines available and affordable on a sustainable basis
Numerator/Denominator or	As reported for the SDG 3.b.3 indicator
answer choices	For detailed computation method and methodology please refer to the
	metadata of indicator SDG 3.b.3 (97).
Unit of measurement	percent
Rationale	This is indicator is corresponds to SDG 3.b.3 and a detailed rational can be
	found in its metadata. Access to medicines in general is an integral part of the
	Universal Health Coverage movement and indispensable to the delivery of
	quality health care. Measuring and monitoring access to medicines is integral to
	understanding whether essential medicines are available and attordable. This
	indicator combines both dimensions into a single evaluation.
Preferred data sources	as reported to the SDG monitoring (data collection through Health
	Action International Project supported by the WHO, The Service
	Availability and Readiness Assessment survey or the WHO Medicines
	Price and Availability Monitoring mobile application)
Disaggregation	as reported to the SDG; the calculation proposed for the SDG 3.b.3 allows for
	the following disaggregation:
	public/private facilities
	 geography – rural/urban areas
	therapeutic group
	facility type (pharmacy/hospital)
	medicine
Limitations	The 28 medicines identified for the SDG indicator cover tracers conditions
	relevant to the PHC-IMPACT (non-communicable diseases, mental health
	conditions, palliative care and anti-infective) as well as mother and child health,
	and antiretroviral, therefore a disaggregation by therapeutic group, if available,
	should be reported.
	For further limitations to this indicator please refer to the metadata of SDG
	3.6.3 (97).

Domain	Outputs
Subdomain	Access to primary care services
Feature	Acceptability
Indicator/question title	Patient reported acceptability of primary care services (acc3q120)
Indicator/question	No indicator identified. Flagged for further development.

definition or question	
Numerator/denominator or	To be confirmed.
answer choices	
Unit of measurement	To be confirmed.
Rationale	In the Tanahashi model, acceptability is defined as the capacity of health
	services to be appealing and sought by people. It includes factors related to
	culture, beliefs, religion, gender, confidentiality, and age-appropriateness as
	well as perceptions related to the value of health services. It is influenced by
	people's perceptions, previous experiences and interactions with the health
	system, and expectations. Systematic barriers arise from health personnel's
	discriminatory attitudes towards certain groups. Health workforce
	characteristics and ability (e.g. sex, language, culture, age, etc.) to treat all with
	dignity, create trust and promote demand for services (142). This indicator
	captures people's willingness to seek services. Acceptability is low when
	patients perceive services to be ineffective or when social and cultural factors
	such as language or the age, sex, ethnicity or religion of the health
	professional discourage them from seeking services (140). All European
	countries endorse equity of access to health services for all people as an
	important policy objective. One method of gauging to what extent this
	objective is achieved is through assessing reports of unmet needs for health
	care. The problems that people report in obtaining care when they are in often
Due forme de de terre a company	reflect significant barriers to care (141).
Preterred data sources	survey – population
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Outputs
Subdomain	Responsiveness of primary care
Feature	Resolving capacity of primary care
Indicator/question title	Composite measure (res1q121)
Indicator/question	Suggested to use a composite measure. Indicator construction flagged for
definition or question	further development.
Numerator/denominator or	To be confirmed.
answer choices	
Unit of measurement	To be confirmed.
Rationale	To be confirmed.
Preferred data sources	Analysis of responses across indicators.
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Outputs
Subdomain	Safety of primary care
Feature	Medical errors
Indicator/question title	Correct diagnosis (saf1q122)
Indicator/question definition or question	Percent of population with cardiovascular disease risk estimated correctly
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	Exact percent from survey analysis
	 Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available: 70% or more more than 50% but less than 70% 10% to 50%

Unit of measurement	exact percent if available, otherwise categorical
Rationale	It is recommended that therapeutic decisions should be based on
	cardiovascular risk, however there is evidence that risk is often estimate
	inaccurately even when guidelines are followed. generalist medical practitioners and specialist medical practitioners tend to underestimate the cardiovascular risk in daily clinical practice, mainly in very high-risk individuals (61, 63). This indicator would help isolate issues related to medical errors that lead to poor health outcomes.
Preferred data sources	existing assessments
	expert consensus
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Outputs
Subdomain	Safety of primary care
Feature	Medical errors
Indicator/question title	Incident reporting (saf1q123)
Indicator/question	How many incidents were reported in primary care (audit data)?
definition or question	
Numerator/denominator or	Average number of incidents reported per facility per month
answer choices	
Unit of measurement	number of incidents
Rationale	Reporting is crucial to reducing the incidence of medical errors even in cases where no harm had occurred to patients since it leads to positive changes in overall care (76). The World Health Report 2010 identified 10 leading sources of inefficiency in the use of key health service resources. This indicator helps assess inefficiencies of health care services in terms of medical errors and suboptimal quality of care (143).
Preferred data sources	 existing assessments quality inspections expert consensus
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Outputs
Subdomain	Safety of primary care
Feature	Medicine safety
Indicator/question title	Prescription safeguards (saf2q125)
Indicator/question	Percent of primary care facilities with a protocol in place to ensure that a
definition or question	current medication and problem list is recorded in the health records (e.g.
	interactions, allergies, etc.)
Numerator/denominator or	Exact percent from survey analysis.
answer choices	
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
Unit of measurement	exact percent if available, otherwise categorical
Rationale	Patients' problem and medication lists support continuity of care between
	health professionals. Properly updated problem and medication lists facilitate
	the prevention of errors (61).

Preferred data sources	• survey – facility
	expert consensus
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Outputs
Subdomain	Safety of primary care
Feature	Medicine review and reconciliation
Indicator/question title	Overall volume of antibiotics prescribed (saf2q127)
Indicator/question	a. Defined Daily Dose of antibiotics per 1,000 population per day (all ATC J01
definition or question	prescriptions) in primary care
Numerator/Denominator or answer choices	As reported by the WHO AMC Network and the OECD Health Care Quality Indicator database
	Numerator: sum of DDDs ATC J01 prescriptions in the primary care prescription database for the reference year x 1000 Denominator: 365 x number of people covered by the database as of 1 January of the reference year
Unit of measurement	DDDs per 1,000 population per day
Indicator/question definition or question	b. Relative use of quinolones and cephalosporin with respect to total consumption of systemic antibiotics
Numerator/Denominator or answer choices	As reported by the WHO AMC Network and the OECD Health Care Quality Indicator database
	Numerator: sum of DDDs of only ATC J01D and J01M prescriptions in the primary care prescription database for the reference year x 1000 Denominator: sum of all DDDs ATC J01 prescriptions in the primary care prescription database in the reference year
Unit of measurement	ratio
Rationale	Excessive antibacterial consumption leads to wasted financial resources and contributes to the development of antimicrobial resistance. Antibiotics should be prescribed only when there is an evidence-based need, to reduce the risk of resistant strains. The use of second-line antibiotics (e.g. quinolones and cephalosporin) should be restricted to ensure availability of effective second-line therapy should first-line antibiotics fail. Their volume as a percent of the total volume of antibiotics prescribed has been validated as a marker of quality in the primary care setting (144).
Preferred data sources	 WHO AMC Network data 2011 to 2014– estimates on consumption OECD Health Care Quality Indicators health information system
Disaggregation	N/A
Limitations	Data on DDD of antibiotics is available in OECD Health Care Quality Indicators which refers to primary care only. If data is not available on prescription, estimates on consumption are available from WHO AMC Network data – but this does not link to primary care exclusively. WHO AMC data is based on import records, while OECD Health Care Quality Indicators are based on prescribing databases.

Domain	Outputs
Subdomain	Safety of primary care
Feature	Medicine safety
Indicator/question title	Medication review (saf3q128)
Indicator/question	Are the following medication review practices implemented in primary care?
definition or question	 pharmacists actively medically review prescriptions (select one)
	• members of the primary care team (e.g. primary care practitioner or
	nurse) actively performs medication reconciliation of patients (e.g. after
	hospital discharge) (select one)
Numerator/denominator or	• yes
answer choices	• no
	do not know
Unit of measurement	categorical
Rationale	Medication review is a process of patients` medicines evaluation to improve the
	health outcomes and mitigate the drug-related problems. A systematic review
	of 38 studies of primary care interventions designed to reduce medication
	related adverse events found that most successful interventions included a
	medication review conducted by a pharmacist or other clinicians, or focused on
	multicomponent interventions, which had a medication review by a primary
	care professional as one component. Studies showed that pharmacist-led
	medication reviews reduced hospital admissions (145).
Preferred data sources	key informant
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Outputs
Subdomain	Effectiveness of primary care services
Feature	Effective management and control of diseases
Indicator/question title	Control of blood pressure among people treated for hypertension (eff1q129)
Indicator/question definition or question	Percent of population registered for hypertensive treatment who had <u>controlled blood pressure</u> 6-months after treatment initiation
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	Numerator: number of individuals in the denominator with controlled blood pressure (SBP <140 and DBP <90 mmHg) at the last clinical visit in the most
Unit of measurement	exact percent if available, otherwise categorical

Rationale	This indicator is part of the Systems for monitoring of the HEARTS Technical
	package for cardiovascular disease management in primary health care. Its
	purpose is to measure the effectiveness of clinical series in the programme to
	control blood pressure among cohorts of treated individuals (51). Hypertension
	is a common disorder and has substantial effects on morbidity and mortality,
	but adequate treatment has been shown to prevent long-term complications.
	Hypertension alone is symptomless and can only be discovered if it is
	measured, but it is an important risk factor for cardiovascular diseases, both
	ischaemic heart disease and cerebrovascular disease. This indicator can be
	used to understand if the primary care network is functioning effectively to
	ensure early detection of disease. If more than 60% of estimated cases with
	high blood pressure are identified in primary care the coverage of individual
	services for cardiovascular disease in terms of detection and management of
	hypertension can be deemed extensive (107). These indicators contribute to
	the population-based approach to evaluation of the effectiveness of
	hypertension management which requires distinction of 'awareness' (the
	proportion of all patients with hypertension report to have a medical diagnosis
	of hypertension), 'treatment' (the proportion of patients with hypertension
	reporting receiving blood pressure-lowering medication) and 'control' (the
	proportion of patients with hypertension having an average blood pressure
	reading under the limits) (146).
Preferred data sources	health information system
	 register of hypertension patients
	expert consensus
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Outputs
Subdomain	Effectiveness of primary care services
Feature	Effective management and control of diseases
Indicator/question title	Control of blood glucose among people treated for diabetes (eff1q130)
Indicator/question	Percent of individuals registered for diabetic treatment whose blood glucose is
definition or question	controlled 6-months after treatment initiation
Numerator/denominator or answer choices	Numerator: number of individuals in the denominator with blood glucose control (HbA1C measurement <7 mg %) at the last clinical visit in the most recent quarter (just before the reporting quarter) Denominator: number of individuals registered for treatment of diabetes during the quarter that ended 6-months previously Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available: • 70% or more • more than 50% but less than 70% • 10% to 50% • less than 10%
Unit of measurement	exact percent if available, otherwise categorical
Rationale	Diabetes is an ambulatory care sensitive condition. The provision of a wide range of services provided in primary care is associated with better health outcomes at lower costs. The management of registered diabetic patients' blood glucose over an extended period of time is a reflection of the effectiveness of follow-up services provided by primary health care.
Preferred data sources	 nealth information system register for diabetes expert consensus

Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Outputs
Subdomain	Effectiveness of primary care services
Feature	Effective management and control of diseases
Indicator/question title	Tuberculosis detection and treatment (eff1q131)
Indicator/question	a. Case detection as percent of tuberculosis cases detected (diagnosed and
definition or question	reported to the national health authority) among the total number of
	tuberculosis cases estimated to occur countrywide during a 12-months period
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: total number of notified tuberculosis cases
answer choices	Denominator: total number of estimated tuberculosis cases
Unit of measurement	percent
Indicator/question	b. Notification rate as number of all new tuberculosis and relapses notified in
definition or question	the reporting period per 100,000 population
Numerator/denominator or	as reported in WHO TB database
answer choices	
Unit of measurement	rate
Indicator/question	c. Tuberculosis treatment success rate - percentage of a cohort of tuberculosis
definition or question	cases registered in a specified period that successfully completed treatment
	with outcomes "cured" and "treatment completed"
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: tuberculosis cases registered in a specified period that were
answer choices	successfully treated during the reference period
	Denominator: total number of tuberculosis cases registered in the reference
	period
Unit of measurement	percent
Rationale	Case detection measures the national tuberculosis program's integration in the
	health system, and its ability to diagnose and notify tuberculosis cases. The
	target is 90% and more. Notification coverage measures the under-notification
	of detected by laboratory network. In low resources settings and with weak
	tuberculosis governance some detected tuberculosis patients are not notified
	by the national tuberculosis program. A stronger interoperable link between
	laboratory network, private and public mixes heath care providers should be
	established to exclude under-notification. Coverage should be 95% or more.
	Notification rate indirectly measures trend of the tuberculosis epidemic.
	Monitoring of this indicator over time may indirectly indicate the impact of the
	programme intervention to tuberculosis epidemic. In low resource settings, a
	substantial investment in health system strengthening (tuberculosis diagnosis,
	integration in primary care, communication campaign, intensified active
	tuberculosis case finding in risk groups) may result on the increasing
	notification rate. This trend will stabilize and then decrease in a short time (2-3
	vears).
	High-quality tuberculosis care is essential to prevent suffering and death from
	tuberculosis and to cut transmission. This indicator measures a program's
	capacity to retain patients through a complete course of tuberculosis treatment
	regimens with a favourable clinical result. It is an outcome indicator, and it is
	noteworthy because it is the only outcome indicator that can (and should) be
	used at all levels. There is a direct and immediate link between this outcome of
	treatment success and the impact of reduced tuberculosis mortality.

Preferred data sources	 data reported in WHO Global tuberculosis report 2017
	 for a: tuberculosis reporting system, WHO estimates from
	http://www.who.int/tb/country/data/profiles/en/
	 for b: laboratory register or other relevant patient management
	primary records (patient card) or the basic medical unit register or
	national tuberculosis database
	 for d: Global Health Observatory data
	http://apps.who.int/gho/data/view.main.57200
Disaggregation	 all new tuberculosis and relapses
	• sex
	 age groups (e.g.<15 years, >65 years)
	HIV-status
	 rifampicin/multidrug resistant tuberculosis
Limitations	The quality of this indicator is affected by many tuberculosis cases with
	treatment outcome "not evaluated".

Domain	Outputs
Subdomain	Effectiveness of primary care services
Feature	Effective management and control of diseases
Indicator/question title	Cancer survival rates (eff2q155)
Indicator/question definition or question	Age-standardised 5-year net survival for adults diagnosed with: breast cancer cervical cancer colon cancer rectal cancer
answer choices	As reported by the CONCORD-3 study (0)
Unit of measurement	percent with 95% Cl
Rationale	Cancer survival rate enables a comparison of the effectiveness of health systems (15). Analysing survival following diagnoses can link the efforts put in place to strengthen health systems in terms of effective and timely diagnoses and referrals from primary care with reductions in cancer mortality (147).
Preferred data sources	CONCORD-3 study
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified
Health system outcomes

Domain	Health system outcomes
Domain	Health system outcomes
Subdomain	Quality
Feature	Quality of care for chronic conditions
Indicator/question title	Avoidable hospital admissions (qly1q133)
Indicator/question	Age-standardized acute care hospitalisation rate for conditions where
definition or question	appropriate <u>ambulatory care</u> may prevent or reduce the need for admission to
	hospital, per 100,000:
	• asthma
	chronic obstructive pulmonary disease
	congestive heart failure
	hypertension
	• diabetes
	• pneumonia
	kidney, urinary infection
	• angina
	depression
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: number of hospitalisations with a diagnosis of (exclusions:
answer choices	individual died before discharge):
	• asthma (ICD-10 J450, J451, J458, J459, J46 excluding diagnosis codes
	cystic fibrosis and anomalies of the respiratory system)
	chronic obstructive pulmonary disease (ICD-10 J40 with secondary
	diagnosis J41, J43, J44, J47; J410, J411, J418, J42, J430-432, J438-
	441, J448-449, J47)
	• congestive heart failure (ICD-10 I110, I130, I132, I500, I501, I509)
	 hypertension (ICD-10 I10, I119, I129, I139)
	 diabetes (ICD-10 codes: E10, E11, E13,E14)
	• pneumonia (J13, J14, J153, J154, J157, J159, J168, J180, J181, J188)
	 kidney, urinary infection (N10, N110, N300, N390)
	 angina (I200, I201, I208, I209, I240, I248, I249)
	 depression (F320, F321, F322, F328, F329, F330, F331, F332, F334,
	F338, F339, F341)
	Denominator: population age 15+, for the same calendar year x 100,000 (age
	adjusted).
Unit of measurement	age group 15+; age standardized rate per 100,000 population per year
Rationale	Asthma, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease, congestive heart failure, and
	diabetes are four widely prevalent long-term conditions. Common to all these
	conditions is the fact that the evidence base for effective treatment is well
	established and much of it can be delivered at the primary care level. A high-
	performing primary care system can reduce acute deterioration in people living
	with asthma, chronic obstructive pulmonary disease or congestive heart failure
	and prevent their admission to hospital (141).
	Bacterial pneumonia, kidney/urinary infection, and angina are among the top
	ambulatory care sensitive conditions (ACSCs) in the countries of the WHO European
	Region for which a report on ACSCs has been developed (46). Depression is the
	leading cause of disability worldwide and is a major contributor to the overall global
	burden of disease (148). Avoidable hospitalisations occur for this condition that can
	be identified and treated by non-specialists at the primary care level (149).
	Mental health and primary health care are strongly intertwined and as such
	primary care can offer the right setting to manage patients.

Preferred data sources	OECD Health Care Quality Indicators
	health information system
Disaggregation	gender
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Health system outcomes
Subdomain	Quality
Feature	Quality of care for chronic conditions
Indicator/question title	Avoidable complications (qly1q134)
Indicator/question	a. Percent of population, age 15+, with established diabetes mellitus who had a
definition or question	major lower extremity amputation
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: number of admissions with a procedure code of major lower
answer choices	extremity amputation and a diagnosis code of diabetes in any field in a
	specified year
	Denominator: estimated population with diabetes, age 15+
Unit of measurement	percent or category
Indicator/question	b. Percent of population, age 15+, who had a major lower extremity
definition or question	amputation
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: number of admissions with a procedure code of major lower
answer choices	extremity amputation in a specified year
	Denominator: total population, age 15+
Unit of measurement	percent
Rationale	Poor control of the level of glucose in the blood over the short term can lead to
	vomiting, dehydration and even cause coma, whereas sustained high levels of
	blood glucose over several years can result in serious diseases with ongoing
	consequences for a person's health and wellbeing. For example, diabetes can
	cause nerve damage and poor blood circulation over time (89).
Preferred data sources	OECD Health Care Quality Indicators
	health information system
Disaggregation	gender
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Health system outcomes
Subdomain	Quality
Feature	Quality of care for chronic conditions
Indicator/question title	Notified tuberculosis cases lost to follow-up (qly1q135)
Indicator/question	Percent of all tuberculosis cases registered in a specified period that were lost
definition or question	to follow-up treatment for more than two consecutive months
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: number of tuberculosis cases registered in a specified period who
answer choices	did not start treatment or whose treatment was interrupted for two consecutive
	months or more
	Denominator: total number of tuberculosis cases that were notified in the
	reporting period
Unit of measurement	percent
Rationale	This indicator is part of the Roadmap to prevent and combat drug-resistant
	tuberculosis (150), and the Companion handbook to the WHO guidelines for
	the programmatic management of drug-resistant tuberculosis (150). WHO
	recommends tuberculosis treatment is given under direct and supportive
	observation (151) for tuberculosis treatment success. Currently WHO defines
	DOT as any person observing the patient taking medications in real-time. Direct
	treatment observer does not need to be a health professional. If effectively
	integrated into primary care they can make a significant contribution to the
	reduction of percentage tuberculosis patients who are lost to follow-up. The
	target for this indicator is 5% and less. Loss to follow-up may decrease when

	engaging communities and civil societies in supporting health professionals/health associate professionals to patient/people needs oriented tuberculosis care delivery.
Preferred data sources	 data reported in WHO Global tuberculosis report 2017
Disaggregation	 By 5 main cohorts: new and relapse cases other retreatments multidrug-resistant-tuberculosis (all started treatment with second-line drugs) tuberculosis/HIV children under 15 (group 1: 0-4 and group 2, 5-14 years of age)
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Health system outcomes
Subdomain	Quality
Feature	Quality of care for chronic conditions
Indicator/question title	Stage at diagnosis for cancer (qly2q136)
Indicator/question	Stage at diagnosis for:
definition or question	breast cancer
	cervical cancer
	colorectal cancer
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: total number of cases from the denominator diagnosed in a certain
answer choices	stage
	Denominator: total number of respective cancer diagnosed in the 12-month
	reference period
Unit of measurement	stage of cancer (T1-4, N1-3, M1)
Rationale	Stage of diagnosis for cancer is a good indicator of effectiveness of patient
	pathways across levels of care and overall communication mechanisms across
	facilities (primary care, labs, 2nd 3rd level). Cancer stage at diagnosis is highly
	correlated to overall effectiveness of health systems, whereas the cancer
	screening is developed or not. Stage data is readily available and highly
	comparable across regions/countries.
Preferred data sources	EUROCARE-05
	cancer registries
	 health information system - tertiary care level or pathology service
	level monitoring systems
Disaggregation	age, gender
Limitations	While being collected in EUROCARE-05, stage diagnosis data may be
	incomplete and accuracy needs to improve in order to fulfil the role in cancer
	control (152).

Domain	Health system outcomes
Subdomain	Quality
Feature	Prescribing in primary care
Indicator/question title	Secondary prevention/high-risk control (qly3q138)
Indicator/question	Percent of eligible individuals (defined as age 40+ years with a 10-year
definition or question	cardiovascular disease risk \geq 30%, including those with existing cardiovascular
	disease) receiving drug therapy and counselling (including glycaemic control) to
	prevent heart attacks and strokes
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: number of eligible surveyed individuals who are receiving drug
answer choices	therapy and counselling
	Denominator: total number of eligible survey participants (defined as aged 40+
	years with a 10-year cardiovascular risk \geq 30%, including those with existing
	cardiovascular disease)
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
	do not know
Unit of measurement	percent or category
Unit of measurement Rationale	percent or category This indicator is part of the Systems for monitoring of the Technical package for
Unit of measurement Rationale	percent or category This indicator is part of the Systems for monitoring of the Technical package for cardiovascular disease management in primary health care. Its purpose is to
Unit of measurement Rationale	percent or category This indicator is part of the Systems for monitoring of the Technical package for cardiovascular disease management in primary health care. Its purpose is to measure the population-level CVD-risk management (51). This is indicator 18
Unit of measurement Rationale	percent or category This indicator is part of the Systems for monitoring of the Technical package for cardiovascular disease management in primary health care. Its purpose is to measure the population-level CVD-risk management (51). This is indicator 18 corresponding to target 9 of the NCD Global Monitoring Framework for
Unit of measurement Rationale	percent or category This indicator is part of the Systems for monitoring of the Technical package for cardiovascular disease management in primary health care. Its purpose is to measure the population-level CVD-risk management (<i>51</i>). This is indicator 18 corresponding to target 9 of the NCD Global Monitoring Framework for noncommunicable diseases which will track the implementation of the
Unit of measurement Rationale	percent or category This indicator is part of the Systems for monitoring of the Technical package for cardiovascular disease management in primary health care. Its purpose is to measure the population-level CVD-risk management (<i>51</i>). This is indicator 18 corresponding to target 9 of the NCD Global Monitoring Framework for noncommunicable diseases which will track the implementation of the noncommunicable diseases action plan through monitoring and reporting on
Unit of measurement Rationale	percent or category This indicator is part of the Systems for monitoring of the Technical package for cardiovascular disease management in primary health care. Its purpose is to measure the population-level CVD-risk management (<i>51</i>). This is indicator 18 corresponding to target 9 of the NCD Global Monitoring Framework for noncommunicable diseases which will track the implementation of the noncommunicable diseases action plan through monitoring and reporting on the attainment of the global targets in 2015-2020. The 25 indicators and the 9
Unit of measurement Rationale	percent or category This indicator is part of the Systems for monitoring of the Technical package for cardiovascular disease management in primary health care. Its purpose is to measure the population-level CVD-risk management (<i>51</i>). This is indicator 18 corresponding to target 9 of the NCD Global Monitoring Framework for noncommunicable diseases which will track the implementation of the noncommunicable diseases action plan through monitoring and reporting on the attainment of the global targets in 2015-2020. The 25 indicators and the 9 voluntary global targets of the framework provide overall direction and the
Unit of measurement Rationale	percent or category This indicator is part of the Systems for monitoring of the Technical package for cardiovascular disease management in primary health care. Its purpose is to measure the population-level CVD-risk management (<i>51</i>). This is indicator 18 corresponding to target 9 of the NCD Global Monitoring Framework for noncommunicable diseases which will track the implementation of the noncommunicable diseases action plan through monitoring and reporting on the attainment of the global targets in 2015-2020. The 25 indicators and the 9 voluntary global targets of the framework provide overall direction and the action plan provides a road map for reaching the targets (<i>56</i>). More information
Unit of measurement Rationale	percent or category This indicator is part of the Systems for monitoring of the Technical package for cardiovascular disease management in primary health care. Its purpose is to measure the population-level CVD-risk management (<i>51</i>). This is indicator 18 corresponding to target 9 of the NCD Global Monitoring Framework for noncommunicable diseases which will track the implementation of the noncommunicable diseases action plan through monitoring and reporting on the attainment of the global targets in 2015-2020. The 25 indicators and the 9 voluntary global targets of the framework provide overall direction and the action plan provides a road map for reaching the targets (<i>56</i>). More information specifically on this indicator and methods for calculation is available at
Unit of measurement Rationale	percent or category This indicator is part of the Systems for monitoring of the Technical package for cardiovascular disease management in primary health care. Its purpose is to measure the population-level CVD-risk management (<i>51</i>). This is indicator 18 corresponding to target 9 of the NCD Global Monitoring Framework for noncommunicable diseases which will track the implementation of the noncommunicable diseases action plan through monitoring and reporting on the attainment of the global targets in 2015-2020. The 25 indicators and the 9 voluntary global targets of the framework provide overall direction and the action plan provides a road map for reaching the targets (<i>56</i>). More information specifically on this indicator and methods for calculation is available at <u>http://www.who.int/nmh/ncd-tools/indicator18/en/</u> and
Unit of measurement Rationale	percent or category This indicator is part of the Systems for monitoring of the Technical package for cardiovascular disease management in primary health care. Its purpose is to measure the population-level CVD-risk management (<i>51</i>). This is indicator 18 corresponding to target 9 of the NCD Global Monitoring Framework for noncommunicable diseases which will track the implementation of the noncommunicable diseases action plan through monitoring and reporting on the attainment of the global targets in 2015-2020. The 25 indicators and the 9 voluntary global targets of the framework provide overall direction and the action plan provides a road map for reaching the targets (<i>56</i>). More information specifically on this indicator and methods for calculation is available at <u>http://www.who.int/nmh/ncd-tools/indicator18/en/</u> and http://www.who.int/nmh/ncd-tools/target9/en/.
Unit of measurement Rationale Preferred data sources	 percent or category This indicator is part of the Systems for monitoring of the Technical package for cardiovascular disease management in primary health care. Its purpose is to measure the population-level CVD-risk management (<i>51</i>). This is indicator 18 corresponding to target 9 of the NCD Global Monitoring Framework for noncommunicable diseases which will track the implementation of the noncommunicable diseases action plan through monitoring and reporting on the attainment of the global targets in 2015-2020. The 25 indicators and the 9 voluntary global targets of the framework provide overall direction and the action plan provides a road map for reaching the targets (<i>56</i>). More information specifically on this indicator and methods for calculation is available at http://www.who.int/nmh/ncd-tools/indicator18/en/ and http://www.who.int/nmh/ncd-tools/target9/en/.
Unit of measurement Rationale Preferred data sources	 percent or category This indicator is part of the Systems for monitoring of the Technical package for cardiovascular disease management in primary health care. Its purpose is to measure the population-level CVD-risk management (<i>51</i>). This is indicator 18 corresponding to target 9 of the NCD Global Monitoring Framework for noncommunicable diseases which will track the implementation of the noncommunicable diseases action plan through monitoring and reporting on the attainment of the global targets in 2015-2020. The 25 indicators and the 9 voluntary global targets of the framework provide overall direction and the action plan provides a road map for reaching the targets (<i>56</i>). More information specifically on this indicator and methods for calculation is available at http://www.who.int/nmh/ncd-tools/indicator18/en/ and http://www.who.int/nmh/ncd-tools/target9/en/.
Unit of measurement Rationale Preferred data sources	 percent or category This indicator is part of the Systems for monitoring of the Technical package for cardiovascular disease management in primary health care. Its purpose is to measure the population-level CVD-risk management (<i>51</i>). This is indicator 18 corresponding to target 9 of the NCD Global Monitoring Framework for noncommunicable diseases which will track the implementation of the noncommunicable diseases action plan through monitoring and reporting on the attainment of the global targets in 2015-2020. The 25 indicators and the 9 voluntary global targets of the framework provide overall direction and the action plan provides a road map for reaching the targets (<i>56</i>). More information specifically on this indicator and methods for calculation is available at http://www.who.int/nmh/ncd-tools/indicator18/en/ and http://www.who.int/nmh/ncd-tools/target9/en/.
Unit of measurement Rationale Preferred data sources Disaggregation	 percent or category This indicator is part of the Systems for monitoring of the Technical package for cardiovascular disease management in primary health care. Its purpose is to measure the population-level CVD-risk management (51). This is indicator 18 corresponding to target 9 of the NCD Global Monitoring Framework for noncommunicable diseases which will track the implementation of the noncommunicable diseases action plan through monitoring and reporting on the attainment of the global targets in 2015-2020. The 25 indicators and the 9 voluntary global targets of the framework provide overall direction and the action plan provides a road map for reaching the targets (56). More information specifically on this indicator and methods for calculation is available at http://www.who.int/nmh/ncd-tools/indicator18/en/ and http://www.who.int/nmh/ncd-tools/target9/en/. WHO STEPwise approach to surveillance survey population survey expert consensus
Unit of measurement Rationale Preferred data sources Disaggregation Limitations	percent or categoryThis indicator is part of the Systems for monitoring of the Technical package for cardiovascular disease management in primary health care. Its purpose is to measure the population-level CVD-risk management (51). This is indicator 18 corresponding to target 9 of the NCD Global Monitoring Framework for noncommunicable diseases which will track the implementation of the noncommunicable diseases action plan through monitoring and reporting on the attainment of the global targets in 2015-2020. The 25 indicators and the 9 voluntary global targets of the framework provide overall direction and the action plan provides a road map for reaching the targets (56). More information specifically on this indicator and methods for calculation is available at http://www.who.int/nmh/ncd-tools/indicator18/en/ and http://www.who.int/nmh/ncd-tools/target9/en/.•WHO STEPwise approach to surveillance survey • population survey • expert consensusnone specifiedThis is feasible in settings that have a comprehensive population-based survey
Unit of measurement Rationale Preferred data sources Disaggregation Limitations	percent or categoryThis indicator is part of the Systems for monitoring of the Technical package for cardiovascular disease management in primary health care. Its purpose is to measure the population-level CVD-risk management (51). This is indicator 18 corresponding to target 9 of the NCD Global Monitoring Framework for noncommunicable diseases which will track the implementation of the noncommunicable diseases action plan through monitoring and reporting on the attainment of the global targets in 2015-2020. The 25 indicators and the 9 voluntary global targets of the framework provide overall direction and the action plan provides a road map for reaching the targets (56). More information specifically on this indicator and methods for calculation is available at http://www.who.int/nmh/ncd-tools/indicator18/en/ and http://www.who.int/nmh/ncd-tools/target9/en/.•WHO STEPwise approach to surveillance survey • population survey • expert consensusnone specifiedThis is feasible in settings that have a comprehensive population-based survey with behavioural parameters along with physical and biochemical

Domain	Health system outcomes
Subdomain	Quality
Feature	Prescribing in primary care
Indicator/question title	Tuberculosis and rifampicin/multidrug resistant tuberculosis treatment in
	primary care (qly3q139)
Indicator/question	Percent of individuals diagnosed with tuberculosis and rifampicin/multidrug
definition or question	resistant tuberculosis initiating treatment in primary care (at ambulatory facility /
	specialised outpatient treatment facility)
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: number of patients starting treatment at primary care level
answer choices	(ambulatory/outpatient)
	Denominator: total number of individuals enrolled in treatment
Unit of measurement	percent

Rationale	This is a new indicator, integrated in the global tuberculosis data collection system to monitor the universal health coverage. It reflects the people-centred model of tuberculosis care, and monitors its implementation (109). Target for tuberculosis and multidrug resistant tuberculosis should reflect country epidemiological context and prevalence of social determinates; however, an average target is the following: drug-sensitive tuberculosis=50%, rifampicin/multidrug resistant tuberculosis=30%, extensively drug-resistant tuberculosis=none.
Preferred data sources	 data reported in WHO Global tuberculosis report 2017 not available for primary care level
Disaggregation	tuberculosis and rifampicin/multidrug resistant tuberculosis
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Health system outcomes
Subdomain	Quality
Feature	Prescribing in primary care
Indicator/question title	Access to palliative care (qly3q140)
Indicator/question	Access to palliative care assessed by morphine-equivalent consumption of
definition or question	strong opioid analgesics (excluding methadone) per death from cancer
Numerator/denominator or	Numerator: total morphine-equivalent consumption of strong opioid analgesics
answer choices	(excluding methadone) in mg for the 12-month reference period
	Denominator: number of deaths from cancer during the 12-month reference
	period
Unit of measurement	rate
Rationale	This is indicator 20 of the NCD Global Monitoring Framework to track the
	implementation of the noncommunicable diseases action plan through
	monitoring and reporting on the attainment of the global targets in 2015-2020.
	The 25 indicators and the 9 voluntary global targets of the framework provide
	overall direction and the action plan provides a road map for reaching the
	targets (56). More information on this indicator including methods to calculate
	it is available at http://www.who.int/nmh/ncd-tools/indicator20/en/.
Preferred data sources	International Narcotics Control Board, Annual report, statistics for
	2015 – table XIVe for the numerator
	 International Agency for Research on Cancer, WHO – GLOBOCAN –
	for the denominator
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	Potential limitations include incomplete administrative records and incomplete
	or unusable death registration data.

Domain	Outputs
Subdomain	Equity
Feature	Equitable delivery of primary care services
Indicator/question title	Composite measure (eqt1q141)
Indicator/question	Suggested use of composite measure. Indicator construction flagged for
definition or question	further development.
Numerator/denominator or	To be confirmed
answer choices	
Unit of measurement	To be confirmed
Rationale	To be confirmed
Preferred data sources	To be confirmed
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	none specified

Domain	Health system outcomes
Subdomain	Efficiency
Feature	Unnecessary procedures
Indicator/question title	Unnecessary duplication of medical tests (efc1q142)
Indicator/question	Percent of generalist medical practitioners who repeated medical tests
definition or question	because previous results were unavailable
Numerator/denominator or	Exact percent reported in survey analysis
answer choices	
	Alternate answer choices if exact data is not available:
	• 70% or more
	 more than 50% but less than 70%
	• 10% to 50%
	less than 10%
Unit of measurement	percent
Rationale	The inappropriate duplication of medical tests is disruptive to the patient and
	adds an unnecessary cost burden to the health system. It can also reflect
	problems with coordination if test results are not available at point of care
	(154).
Preferred data sources	Commonwealth Fund International Survey of Primary Care Physicians
	in 10 Nations
	 survey – health professionals
	expert consensus
Disaggregation	none specified
Limitations	Not reported in surveys in the WHO European Region.

Impact of primary care

Health outcomes

Domain	Health outcomes
Subdomain	Health status and well-being
Feature	Burden of disease and risk factors
Indicator/question title	Risk factors – smoking (hsw1q145)
Indicator/question	Age-standardized prevalence of current tobacco use among people aged 15+
definition or question	years
	Note: tobacco use includes cigarettes, cigars, pipes or any other tobacco
	products. Current use includes both daily and non-daily or occasional use.
Numerator/denominator or	as reported in the Global Health Observatory data repository, prevalence of
answer choices	smoking any tobacco product.
Unit of measurement	percent
Rationale	This indicator monitors target 5 of the NCD Global Monitoring Framework for
	noncommunicable diseases which will track the implementation of the
	noncommunicable diseases action plan through monitoring and reporting on
	the attainment of the global targets in 2015-2020. The 25 indicators and the 9
	voluntary global targets of the framework provide overall direction and the
	action plan provides a road map for reaching the targets (56). More information
	specifically on this indicator and methods for calculation is available at
	http://www.who.int/nmh/ncd-tools/target5/en/. Voluntary global targets by
	2025 include 30% reduction in the prevalence of current tobacco use in persons
	aged 15+ years (107). Smoking is a contributing factor to several chronic
	disease conditions including respiratory diseases, coronary heart disease,
	stroke, diabetes, cancers, and other diseases. While it is an entirely avoidable
	risk factor (and it is the largest avoidable risk factor for health), the levels of
	smoking are influenced by several social, economic and individual factors. The
	public and preventive health services have an important role to play in
	educating and thus dissuading individuals from smoking. In this sense, it is a
	measure of effectiveness of the primary care and preventive services.
Preferred data sources	WHO Global Health Observatory
Disaggregation	gender
Limitations	Estimates are calculated for 2015, 2020 and 2025. Standardization is done to
	the WHO global population.

Domain	Health outcomes
Subdomain	Health status and well-being
Feature	Burden of disease and risk factors
Indicator/question title	Risk factors – alcohol (hsw1q146)
Indicator/question	Per capita alcohol consumption among people aged 15+ years within a
definition or question	calendar year (litres of pure alcohol)
Numerator/denominator or	As reported in the Global Health Observatory data repository, recorded alcohol
answer choices	per capita consumption
Unit of measurement	rate - total, litres/capita (aged 15+ years)

Rationale	Alcohol consumption is a causal factor in certain cardiovascular diseases and cancers, among some 200 diseases and injuries. Countries have a responsibility in formulating, implementing, monitoring and evaluating public policies to reduce the harmful use of alcohol, and specifically the health system in implementing screening and intervention programs (<i>155 - 156</i>). Alcohol use is associated with numerous harmful health and social consequences, including an increased risk of a range of noncommunicable diseases: cancers, cardiovascular diseases, etc. (<i>89</i>). This is indicator 3 monitoring target 2 of the NCD Global Monitoring Framework for noncommunicable diseases which will track the implementation of the noncommunicable diseases action plan through monitoring and reporting on the attainment of the global targets in 2015-2020. The 25 indicators and the 9 voluntary global targets of the framework provide overall direction and the action plan provides a road map for reaching the targets (<i>56</i>). More information specifically on this indicator and methods for calculation is available at http://www.who.int/nmh/ncd-tools/target2/en/.
Preferred data sources	Global Health Observatory
Disaggregation	age, gender
Limitations	Latest year reported in WHO Global Health Observatory is 2016 as of May 2018 update. Standardization is done to the WHO global population.

Domain	Health outcomes
Subdomain	Health status and well-being
Feature	Burden of disease and risk factors
Indicator/question title	Risk factors – overweight and obesity (hsw1q147)
Indicator/question	Age-standardized prevalence in people aged 18+ years of:
definition or question	• overweight (defined as $BMI \ge 25 \text{ kg/m2}$) and
	• obesity (defined as $BMI \ge 30 \text{ kg/m2}$)
Numerator/denominator or	as reported in the WHO Global Health Observatory data repository
answer choices	
Unit of measurement	percent of population, age standardised rate
Rationale	This is indicator 14 monitoring target 7 of the NCD Global Monitoring
	Framework while will track the implementation of the noncommunicable
	diseases action plan through monitoring and reporting on the attainment of the
	global targets in 2015-2020. The 25 indicators and the 9 voluntary global
	targets of the framework provide overall direction and the action plan provides
	a road map for reaching the targets (56). More information specifically on this
	indicator and methods for calculation is available at
	http://www.who.int/nmh/ncd-tools/indicator14/en/ and
	http://www.who.int/nmh/ncd-tools/target7/en/. Obese adults are at increased
	risk of adverse metabolic outcomes including increased blood pressure,
	cholesterol, triglycerides, and insulin resistance. Subsequently, an increase in
	BMI exponentially increases the risk of noncommunicable diseases such as
	coronary heart disease, ischemic stroke and type-2 diabetes mellitus (157).
Preferred data sources	WHO Global Health Observatory
	 OECD – self-reported and measured
	European Health Interview Survey 2015 (2019-forthcoming)
Disaggregation	age, gender
Limitations	Issues of comparability may arise if data is reported from different secondary
	sources since WHO Health 2020 data comes from surveys while OECD presents
	both self-reported and measured data separately. Standardization is done to
	the WHO global population.

Domain	Health outcomes
Subdomain	Health status and well-being
Feature	Burden of disease and risk factors
Indicator/question title	Morbidity (hsw1q148)
Indicator/question	a. Age-standardized estimate prevalence of raised blood pressure among
definition or question	persons aged 18+ years (SBP \geq 140 or DBP \geq 90 mmHG)
Numerator/denominator or	As reported in the Global Health Observatory
answer choices	Input data and methods are described in the NCD-RisC analysis (158)
Unit of measurement	percent
Indicator/question	b. Age-standardized estimate prevalence of raised blood glucose/diabetes
definition or question	among persons aged 18+ years (defined as fasting plasma glucose
	concentrations ≥7.0 mmol/l (126 mg/dl) or history of diagnosis with diabetes or
	use of insulin or oral hypoglycaemic drugs)
Numerator/denominator or	as reported in the Global Health Observatory
answer choices	Input data and methods are described in the NCD-RisC analysis (158 - 159).
Unit of measurement	percent
Rationale	These are indicators 11 and 12 corresponding to monitoring targets 6 and 7 of
	the NCD Global Monitoring Framework which will track the implementation of
	the noncommunicable diseases action plan through monitoring and reporting
	on the attainment of the global targets in 2015-2020. The 25 indicators and the
	9 voluntary global targets of the framework provide overall direction and the
	action plan provides a road map for reaching the targets (56). More information
	specifically on these indicator and methods for calculation is available at
	http://www.who.int/nmh/ncd-tools/en/.
Preferred data sources	WHO Global Health Observatory
	NCD-RisC
Disaggregation	age, gender, socioeconomic status
Limitations	Latest available data in the Global Health Observatory is for 2014 for blood
	glucose and 2015 for raised blood pressure. Standardization is done to the
	WHO global population.

Domain	Health outcomes
Subdomain	Health status and well-being
Feature	Burden of disease and risk factors
Indicator/question title	Disability adjusted life years (hsw1q149)
Indicator/question	Disability adjusted life years per 100,000 population
definition or question	hypertensive heart disease
	diabetes type 2
	breast cancer
	cervical cancer
	colorectal cancer
	chronic obstructive pulmonary disease
	• asthma
	tuberculosis
	depressive disorder
	• self-harm
Numerator/denominator or	estimated by WHO reported in the Global Health Estimates; at this time more
answer choices	recent data can be used from the Global Burden of Disease Study 2017,
	Institute for Health Metrics and Evaluation (160).
Unit of measurement	years per 100,000 population
Rationale	The Disability Adjusted Life Year or DALY is a health gap measure that extends
	the concept of potential years of life lost due to premature death (PYLL) to
	include equivalent years of 'healthy' life lost by being in a state of poor health
	or disability. DALYs for a disease or health condition are calculated as the sum
	of the years of life lost due to premature mortality (YLL) in the population and

	the years lost due to disability (YLD) for incident cases of the health condition (157).
Preferred data sources	 WHO Global Health Estimates Global Burden of Disease Study 2017, Institute for Health Metrics and Evaluation
Disaggregation	gender
Limitations	Standardization is done to the WHO global population.

Domain	Health outcomes
Subdomain	Health status and well-being
Feature	Mortality
Indicator/question title	Standardized death rates (hsw2q150)
Indicator/question	Estimated standardized death rates per 100,000 population from the following
definition or question	diseases:
	hypertensive heart disease
	diabetes type 2
	breast cancer
	cervical cancer
	colorectal cancer
	chronic obstructive pulmonary disease
	• asthma
	• tuberculosis
	• self-harm
Numerator/denominator or	reported in the WHO Global Health Estimates; at this time more recent data
answer choices	can be used from the Global Burden of Disease Study 2017, Institute for Health
	Metrics and Evaluation (160).
Unit of measurement	deaths per 100,000 population
Rationale	A death is amenable if, in the light of medical and technology at the time of
	death, all or most deaths from that cause could be avoided through good
	quality health care (161). Measuring the level of amenable mortality rates
	should provide insights into the quality of service delivery.
Preferred data sources	WHO Global Health Estimates
	 Global Burden of Disease Study 2017, Institute for Health Metrics and
	Evaluation
Disaggregation	gender
Limitations	There is not consensus on the exact causes of amenable mortality, and these
	causes may change over time as new medical interventions become available.
	Some studies have also indicated a weak and inconsistent link between
	amenable mortality and indicators of health services delivery. Standardization is
	done to the WHO global population.

Domain	Health outcomes
Subdomain	Health status and well-being
Feature	Mortality
Indicator/question title	Premature mortality (hsw2q152)
Indicator/question	Age-standardized overall premature mortality rate from 30-69 years for four
definition or question	major non-communicable diseases (cardiovascular diseases, cancer, diabetes
	and chronic respiratory diseases)
Numerator/denominator or	As reported in the Health 2020 dataset
answer choices	
Unit of measurement	percent

Rationale	This indicator is part of the joint monitoring framework for Health 2020, the
	Sustainable Development Goals and NCD indicators to facilitate reporting in
	Members States and to enable a consistent and timely way for measuring
	progress (162). This is indicator 1 corresponding to target 1 of the NCD Global
	Monitoring Framework to track progress towards global targets between 2015-
	2020. The 25 indicators and the 9 voluntary global targets of the framework
	provide overall direction and the action plan provides a roadmap for reaching
	the targets (56). More information specifically on this indicator and methods for
	calculation is available at <u>http://www.who.int/nmh/ncd-tools/indicator1/en/</u> and
	http://www.who.int/nmh/ncd-tools/target1/en/.
Preferred data sources	WHO Health for All: Health 2020 indicators
Disaggregation	gender
Limitations	Standardization is done to the WHO European population.

References

- 1. Barbazza E, Kringos D, Kruse I, Klazinga N, Tello J. Creating performance intelligence for primary health care strengthening in Europe; forthcoming.
- 2. Glossary of terms: WHO European Primary Health Care Impact, Performance and Capacity Tool. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2019.
- 3. European database on human and technical resources for health. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2016.
- 4. Hurst J, Jee-Hughes M. Performance measurement and performance management in OECD health systems. Paris: OECD; 2001.
- 5. Global Health Expenditure Database Geneva: World Health Organization; 2018 (http://apps.who.int/ nha/database, accessed 14 August 2019).
- Allemani C, Matsuda T, Di Carlo V, Harewood R, Matz M, Nikšić M, et al. Global surveillance of trends in cancer survival 2000–14 (CONCORD-3): analysis of individual records for 37 513 025 patients diagnosed with one of 18 cancers from 322 population-based registries in 71 countries. The Lancet. 2018;391(10125):1023-75.
- 7. Health 2020 indicators. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2018 (https://gateway.euro. who.int/en/datasets/health-2020-indicators/, accessed 14 August 2019).
- 8. Antimicrobial medicines consumption data 2011-2014. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2017.
- Morbidity, disability and hospital discharges [online database]. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2018 (https://gateway.euro.who.int/en/datasets/european-health-for-alldatabase/#morbidity-disability-and-hospital-discharges, accessed 14 August 2019).
- 10. Universal health coverage portal [online database]. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2018 (http://apps.who.int/gho/portal/uhc-overview.jsp, accessed 14 August 2019).
- WHO Essential Medicines and Health Products Price and Availability Monitoring Mobile Application. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2019 (https://www.who.int/medicines/areas/policy/monitoring/ empmedmon/en/, accessed 14 August 2019).
- 12. Global tuberculosis report 2018. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2018.
- 13. International Agency for Research on Cancer. Estimate number of deaths in 2018–2019 (http://gco.iarc.fr/today/online-analysis-table?v=2018&mode=cancer&mode_population=continents&population=900&populations=994&key=asr&sex=0&cancer=39&type=1&statistic=5&prevalence=0&population_group=0&ages_group%5B%5D=0&ages_group%5B%5D=17&nb_items=5&group_cancer=1&include_nmsc=1&include_nmsc_other=1#collapse-group-1-3-3, accessed 14 August 2019).
- 14. Eurostat database [online database]. Brussels: European Commission; 2018 (https://ec.europa.eu/ eurostat/data/database, accessed 14 August 2019).

- 15. CONCORD Programme. London: London School of Hygiene and Tropical Medicine; 2019 (https://csg.lshtm.ac.uk/research/themes/concord-programme/, accessed 14 August 2019).
- 16. European Core Health Indicators (ECHI). Brussels: European Commission; 2018 (https://ec.europa. eu/health/indicators_data/echi_en, accessed 14 August 2019).
- 17. Narcotic drugs 2017: Estimated world requirements for 2018. Vienna: International Narcotics Control Board; 2017.
- 18. The health systems and policy monitor. European Observatory on Health Systems and Policies; 2019 (https://www.hspm.org/mainpage.aspx, accessed 14 August 2019).
- 19. ILOSTAT database [online database]. Geneva: International Labour Organization; 2019 https://labordoc.ilo.org/discovery/search?vid=41ILO_INST:41ILO_V2&lang=en, accessed 14 August 2019).
- 20. OECD Health Statistics 2018. Paris: OECD; 2018 (http://www.oecd.org/els/health-systems/health-data.htm, accessed 14 August 2019).
- Veillard J, Cowling K, Bitton A, Ratcliffe H, Kimball M, Barkley S, et al. Better Measurement for Performance Improvement in Low- and Middle-Income Countries: The Primary Health Care Performance Initiative (PHCPI). Experience of Conceptual Framework Development and Indicator Selection. The Milbank quarterly. 2017;95(4):836-83.
- 22. World population prospects [online database]. United Nations; 2017 (https://population.un.org/ wpp/).
- 23. Action plan for the prevention and control of noncommunicable diseases in the WHO European Region 2016-2025. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2016.
- 24. Global Action Plan for the Prevention and Control of NCDs 2013–2020. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2013.
- 25. The European Mental Health Action Plan 2013–2020. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2015.
- 26. WHO recommendations on mental health: duration of antidepressant treatment. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2012.
- 27. WHO recommendations on: postnatal care of the mother and newborn. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2013.
- 28. Resolution WHA64.6 on health workforce strengthening. Resolutions and decisions, annexes. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2011.
- 29. Resolution WHA69.19 on global strategy on human resources for health: workforce 2030. Resolutions and decisions, annexes. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2016.
- 30. Assessing national capacity for the prevention and control of noncommunicable diseases: report of the 2015 global survey. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2016.
- 31. Availability of national health services delivery data across the WHO European Region: scanning survey results. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2018.
- 32. Farrington JL, Stachenko S. Country capacity for noncommunicable disease prevention and control in the WHO European Region. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2010.

- 33. Self-assessment tool for the evaluation of essential public health operations in the WHO European Region. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2015.
- 34. Third global survey on eHealth. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2015.
- 35. The WHO STEPwise approach to noncommunicable disease risk factor surveillance (STEPS). Geneva: World Health Organization; 2017.
- 36. European Health Interview Survey (EHIS). Eurostat; 2015 (https://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/web/ microdata/european-health-interview-survey).
- 37. Expert Panel on effective ways of investing in health. Tools and methodologies for assessing the performance of primary care. Brussels: European Commission; 2018.
- 38. OECD Health System Characteristics Survey. Paris: OECD; 2016 (https://www.oecd.org/els/health-systems/characteristics.htm).
- 39. Strengthening health information infrastructure for health care quality governance. Paris: OECD; 2013.
- 40. 2015 Commonwealth Fund International Survey of Primary Care Physicians in 10 Nations. Washington, DC: The Commonwealth Fund; 2015.
- 41. Seasonal influenza vaccination in Europe. Vaccination recommendations and coverage rates in the EU Member States for eight influenza seasons: 2007–2008 to 2014–2015. Stockholm: European Centre for Disease Prevention and Control; 2017.
- 42. Oderkirk J. Readiness of electronic health record systems to contribute to national health information and research. Paris: OECD Health Working Papers; 2017. Contract No.: No. 99.
- 43. Medicines reimbursement policies in Europe. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2018.
- 44. Schafer WL, Boerma WG, Kringos DS, De Maeseneer J, Gress S, Heinemann S, et al. QUALICOPC, a multi-country study evaluating quality, costs and equity in primary care. BMC Fam Pract. 2011;12:115.
- 45. Wendt D, Bouchet Y-SL, Nanda L, Noriega S, Rakhmanova N, Searle S. Health system rapid diagnostic tool. Durham, NC: FHI 360. 2013.
- 46. Assessing health services delivery performance with hospitalizations for ambulatory care sensitive conditions. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2016.
- 47. Health systems response to NCDs: country assessments. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2018 (http://www.euro.who.int/en/health-topics/Health-systems/health-systems-response-to-ncds/publications/country-assessments, accessed 14 August 2019).
- 48. Universal health coverage: financial protection country reviews. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2019 (http://www.euro.who.int/en/health-topics/Health-systems/health-systems-financing/publications/clusters/universal-health-coverage-financial-protection/universal-health-coverage-financial-protection-country-reviews, accessed 14 August 2019).
- 49. Health system reviews (HiT series). Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe, European Observatory on Health Systems and Policies; 2018 (http://www.euro.who.int/en/about-us/partners/ observatory/publications/health-system-reviews-hits, accessed 14 August 2019).

- 50. NCD Risk Factor Collaboration. NCD-RisC; 2017 (http://ncdrisc.org/index.html).
- 51. HEARTS Technical package for cardiovascular disease management in primary health care: systems for monitoring. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2018.
- 52. Human resources for health information system: minimum data set for health workforce registry. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2015.
- 53. List of medical devices by health care facility. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2015.
- 54. Medical equipment maintenance programme overview. WHO medical device technical series. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2011.
- 55. Monitoring the building blocks of health systems: a handbook of indicators and their measurement strategies. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2010.
- 56. Noncommunicable diseases global monitoring framework: indicator definitions and specifications. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2014.
- 57. Package of essential noncommunicable (PEN) disease interventions for primary health care in low-resource settings. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2010.
- Planning, implementation and assessment: assessment of capacity (sample questionnaire). Tools for implementing WHO PEN (Package of essential noncommunicable disease interventions). Geneva: World Health Organization; 2010.
- 59. Health Systems 20/20. The Health System Assessment Approach: a how-to manual; Version 2.0. 2012.
- 60. Health Statistics. Definitions, sources and methods. Cervical cancer screening, survey data and programme data. Paris: Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development; 2017.
- 61. Bruckert E, Bonnelye G, Thomas-Delecourt F, Andre L, Delaage PH. Assessment of cardiovascular risk in primary care patients in France. Arch Cardiovasc Dis. 2011;104(6-7):381-7.
- 62. Kringos D, Boerma WGW, Hutchinson A, Saltman RB. Building primary care in a changing Europe. Observatory Studies Series. United Kingdom: European Observatory on Health Systems and Policies, WHO; 2015.
- 63. Barrios V, Escobar C, Calderon A, Echarri R, Gonzalez-Pedel V, Ruilope LM, et al. Cardiovascular risk profile and risk stratification of the hypertensive population attended by general practitioners and specialists in Spain. The CONTROLRISK study. J Hum Hypertens. 2007;21(6):479-85.
- 64. Kringos DS, Boerma WG, Bourgueil Y, Cartier T, Hasvold T, Hutchinson A, et al. The European primary care monitor: structure, process and outcome indicators. BMC Fam Pract. 2010;11:81.
- 65. Flocke S. Measuring attributes of primary care: development of a new instrument J Fam Pract. 1997;45(1):64-74.
- 66. Flocke SA. Measuring attributes of primary care: development of a new instrument. J Fam Pract. 1997;45(1):64-74.
- 67. Goodwin N, Dixon A, Anderson G, Wodchis W. Providing integrated care for older people with complex needs: lessons from seven international case studies. London: The King's Fund; 2014.

- 68. Scholz S, Ngoli B, Flessa S. Rapid assessment of infrastructure of primary health care facilities a relevant instrument for health care systems management. BMC Health Serv Res. 2015;15:183.
- 69. Maier CB, Aiken LH. Task shifting from physicians to nurses in primary care in 39 countries: a crosscountry comparative study. Eur J Public Health. 2016;26(6):927-34.
- 70. Pollard L, Agarwal S, Harrad F, Lester L, Cross A, Wray P, et al. The impact of patient participation direct enhanced service on patient reference groups in primary care: a qualitative study. Qual Prim Care. 2014;22(4):189-99.
- 71. A better way to manage chronic disease. Self-Management Resource Center; 2019 (https://www. selfmanagementresource.com/about/, accessed 14 August 2019).
- 72. Barbazza E, Tello JE. A review of health governance: definitions, dimensions and tools to govern. Health Policy. 2014;116(1):1-11.
- 73. Boston J, Gill D. Joint or shared accountability: issues and options. Institute of Policy Studies Working Papers. Wellington, New Zealand: School of Government, Victoria University of Wellington; 2011.
- 74. European action plan for strengthening public health capacities and services. Regional Committee for Europe Sixty-second session. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2012.
- 75. Borgermans L, Langins M. Strengthening a competent health workforce for the provision of coordinated/integrated health services. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2015.
- 76. Patient engagement. Technical series on safer primary care. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2016.
- 77. Patients' rights [website]. Geneva: World Health Organization (http://www.who.int/genomics/public/ patientrights/en/, accessed 14 August 2019).
- 78. Methodology note. Washington, DC: Primary Health Care Performance Initiative; 2015.
- 79. Everybody business: strengthening health systems to improve health outcomes: WHO's framework for action. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2007.
- 80. Tello J, Barbazza E. Health services delivery: a concept note. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2015.
- 81. Paris V, M. Devaux and L. Wei. Health systems institutional characteristics. Paris: OECD Publishing; 2010.
- 82. OECD health committee survey on health systems characteristics questionnaire. Paris: Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development; 2016.
- Cashin C, Chi YL, Smith P, Borowitz M, Thomson S. Paying for performance in health care: implications for health system performance and accountability. Maidenhead, Berkshire, England: McGraw Hill Education, Open University Press; 2014.
- 84. Health 2020: a European policy framework and strategy for the 21st century. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2013.
- 85. Tello J, Barbazza E. Health services delivery: a concept note. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2015.

- 86. Dolea C. Increasing access to health workers in remote and rural areas through improved retention: global policy recommendations. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2010.
- 87. Strengthening people-centred health systems in the WHO European Region: framework for action on integrated health services delivery. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2016.
- 88. Barbazza E, Langins M, Kluge H, Tello J. Health workforce governance: Processes, tools and actors towards a competent workforce for integrated health services delivery. Health Policy. 2015.
- 89. Health at a glance. Paris: Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development; 2015.
- 90. Akturk Z, Set T, Tastan K, Dagdeviren N, Sahin EM, Ozer C. The role of family medicine in undergraduate medical education. The World Book of Family Medicine European Edition Wonca Europe, the World Organization of National Colleges, Academies and Academic Associations of General Practitioners/ Family Physicians; 2015.
- 91. Zarbailov N, Wilm S, Tandeter H, Carelli F, Brekke M. Strengthening general practice/family medicine in Europe-advice from professionals from 30 European countries. BMC Fam Pract. 2017;18(1):80.
- 92. Wonca global standards for postgraduate family medicine education. Wonca Working Party on Education: The World Organization of National Colleges Academies and Academic Associations of General Practitioners/Family Physicians; 2013.
- 93. Strengthening health information infrastructure for health care quality governance: good practices, new opportunities and data privacy protection challenges. Paris: Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development; 2013.
- 94. Preparing a health care workforce for the 21st century. The challenge of chronic conditions. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2005.
- 95. Peterson CB, Hamilton C, Hasvold P. From innovation to implementation: eHealth in the WHO European Region. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2016.
- 96. Making it easy: A health literacy action plan for Scotland. Edinburgh: Government of Scotland; 2014.
- 97. Metadata for indicator 3.b.3 Proportion of Health facilities that have a core set of relevant essential medicines available and affordable on a sustainable basis. New York: United Nations Statistics Division; 2018 (https://unstats.un.org/sdgs/metadata/files/Metadata-03-0B-03.pdf, accessed 14 August 2019).
- 98. People-centred and integrated health services: an overview of the evidence. Interim report. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2015.
- 99. Framework of indicators and targets for laboratory strengthening under the End TB Strategy. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2016.
- 100. Primary Health Care Performance Initiative: Methodology Note. Washington, DC: Primary Health Care Performance Initiative; 2015.
- 101. Assessing national capacity for the prevention and control of noncommunicable diseases. Global survey. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2015.
- 102. Global action plan for the prevention and control of noncommunicable diseases 2013-2020. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2013.

- 103. Seasonal influenza vaccination in Europe vaccination recommendations and coverage rates for eight influenza seasons. Stockholm: European Centre for Disease Prevention and Control; 2017.
- 104. Rechel B, Kennedy C, McKee M, Rechel B. The Soviet legacy in diagnosis and treatment: Implications for population health. J Public Health Policy. 2011;32(3):293-304.
- Primary Health Care Classification Consortium. International Classification of Primary Care 2: WONCA International Classification Committee; 2017 (https://class.who-fic.nl/browser.aspx, accessed 14 August 2019).
- 106. Calouste Gulbenkian Foundation, World Health Organization. Improving access to and appropriate use of medicines for mental disorders. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2017.
- 107. Better noncommunicable disease outcomes: challenges and opportunities for health systems. Assessment Guide. Copenhagen: World Health Organization Regional Office for Europe; 2014.
- 108. Guidelines for treatment of drug-susceptible tuberculosis and patient care, 2017 update. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2017.
- 109. A people-centred model of TB care. Blueprints for EECA countries. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2017.
- 110. Ferrer L. Engaging patients, carers and communities for the provision of coordinated/integrated health services: strategies and tools. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2015.
- 111. Kickbusch I, Pelikan JM, Apfel F, Tsouros AD. Health literacy: the solid facts. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2013.
- 112. Sykes S, Wills J, Rowlands G, Popple K. Understanding critical health literacy: a concept analysis. BMC Public Health. 2013;13:150.
- Bayliss EA, Bosworth HB, Noel PH, Wolff JL, Damush TM, McIver L. Supporting self-management for patients with complex medical needs: recommendations of a working group. Chronic Illn. 2007;3(2):167-75.
- 114. Boult C, Wieland GD. Comprehensive primary care for older patients with multiple chronic conditions: "Nobody rushes you through". JAMA. 2010;304(17):1936-43.
- 115. Integrated care models: an overview. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2016.
- 116. Ham C. Working together for health: achievements and challenges in the Kaiser NHS Beacon sites programme. University of Birmingham Health Services Management Centre policy papers. 2010;6.
- 117. Bielaszka-DuVernay C. The 'GRACE' model: in-home assessments lead to better care for dual eligibles. Health Aff (Millwood). 2011;30(3):431-4.
- 118. Bayliss EA, Edwards AE, Steiner JF, Main DS. Processes of care desired by elderly patients with multimorbidities. Fam Pract. 2008;25(4):287-93.
- 119. Boeckxstaens P, De Graaf P. Primary care and care for older persons: position paper of the European Forum for Primary Care. Qual Prim Care. 2011;19(6):369-89.
- 120. Bleijenberg N, Ten Dam VH, Steunenberg B, Drubbel I, Numans ME, De Wit NJ, et al. Exploring the expectations, needs and experiences of general practitioners and nurses towards a proactive and structured care programme for frail older patients: a mixed-methods study. J Adv Nurs. 2013;69(10):2262-73.

- 121. Boult C, Reider L, Leff B, Frick KD, Boyd CM, Wolff JL, et al. The effect of guided care teams on the use of health services: results from a cluster-randomized controlled trial. Arch Intern Med. 2011;171(5):460-6.
- 122. Bonifas R, Gammonley D, Simons K. Gerontological social workers' perceived efficacy for influencing client outcomes. J Gerontol Soc Work. 2012;55(6):519-36.
- 123. Counsell SR, Callahan CM, Clark DO, Tu W, Buttar AB, Stump TE, et al. Geriatric care management for low-income seniors: a randomized controlled trial. JAMA. 2007;298(22):2623-33.
- 124. Callahan CM, Boustani MA, Weiner M, Beck RA, Livin LR, Kellams JJ, et al. Implementing dementia care models in primary care settings: the aging brain care medical home. Aging Ment Health. 2011;15(1):5-12.
- 125. Report of the first meeting: Primary Health Care Advisory Group. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2017.
- 126. Cheng SH, Chen CC. Effects of continuity of care on medication duplication among the elderly. Med Care. 2014;52(2):149-56.
- 127. Boeckxstaens P, Peersman W, Goubin G, Ghali S, De Maeseneer J, Brusselle G, et al. A practicebased analysis of combinations of diseases in patients aged 65 or older in primary care. BMC Fam Pract. 2014;15:159.
- 128. Expert Group on Health Systems Performance Assessment Primary Care Assessment. Primary care performance assessment draft questionnaire. European Commission. Health systems, medical products and innovation. Performance of national health systems; 2017.
- 129. Caring for quality in health: lessons learnt from 15 reviews of health care quality. Paris: Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development; 2017.
- 130. Influenza vaccination. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2017 (http://www.euro.who. int/en/health-topics/communicable-diseases/influenza/vaccination, accessed 14 August 2019).
- 131. Action plan for the prevention and control of noncommunicable diseases in the WHO European Region 2016–2025. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2016.
- Tobacco Free Initiative. Quitting tobacco: what kind of support is available. Copehagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2017 (http://www.who.int/tobacco/quitting/background/en/index2.html, 14 August 2019).
- 133. The WHO STEPwise approach to noncommunicable disease risk factor surveillance. Manual. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2017.
- 134. Roadmap to implement the tuberculosis action plan for the WHO European Region 2016-2020. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2016.
- 135. Global tuberculosis report 2017. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2017.
- 136. Data visualizations [Internet]. Institute for Health Metrics and Evaluation. 2013 (http://www.healthdata. org/results/data-visualizations, accessed 14 August 2019).
- 137. Revision of Automated real-time nucleic acid application technology for rapid and simultaneous detection of tuberculosis and rifampicin resistance: Xpert MTB/RIF system. Policy statement. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2013.

- 138. The use of loop-mediated isothermal amplification (TB-LAMP) for the diagnosis of pulmonary tuberculosis: policy guidelines. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2016.
- 139. Mental health action plan: 2013-2020. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2013.
- 140. Evans DB, Hsu J, Boerma T. Universal health coverage and universal access. Bull World Health Organ. 2013;91(8):546-A.
- 141. OECD and European Commission. Health at a glance: Europe. Paris: OECD Publishing; 2016.
- 142. Global Health Workforce Alliance. What do we mean by availability, accessibility, acceptability and quality (AAAQ) of the health workforce? Geneva: World Health Organization (http://www.who.int/ workforcealliance/media/qa/04/en/, accessed 14 August 2019).
- 143. McIntyre D, Kutzin J. Health Financing Guidance no 1. Health financing country diagnostic: a foundation for national strategy development. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2016.
- 144. Ensuring balance in national policies on controlled substances: guidance for availability and accessibility of controlled medicines. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2011.
- 145. Medication errors. Technical series on safer primary care. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2016.
- 146. Mackenbach JP, McKee M. Successes and failures of health policy in Europe: four decades of divergent trends and converging challenges. Maidenhead, Berkshire: McGraw Hill Education: Open University Press; 2013.
- 147. Health at a Glance: Europe 2018. Paris: OECD; 2018.
- 148. Depression: key facts [website]. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2018 (https://www.who.int/en/ news-room/fact-sheets/detail/depression, accessed 14 August 2019).
- 149. Depression: definition [website]. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2019 (http://www. euro.who.int/en/health-topics/noncommunicable-diseases/pages/news/news/2012/10/depressionin-europe/depression-definition, accessed 14 August 2019).
- 150. Roadmap to prevent and combat drug-resistant tuberculosis. The consolidated action plan to prevent and combat multi drug- and extensively drug-resistant tuberculosis in the WHO European Region, 2011-2015. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2011.
- 151. Balicer RD, Shadmi E, Lieberman N, Greenberg, Dotan S, Goldfracht M, Jana L, et al. Reducing health disparities: strategy planning and implementation in Israel's largest health care organization. Health services research. 2011;46(4):1281-99.
- 152. Minicozzi P, Innos K, Sanchez MJ, Trama A, Walsh PM, Marcos-Gragera R, et al. Quality analysis of population-based information on cancer stage at diagnosis across Europe, with presentation of stage-specific cancer survival estimates: A EUROCARE-5 study. Eur J Cancer. 2017;84:335-53.
- 153. International Narcotics Control Board. Report 2016. Estimated World Requirements for 2017. Statistics for 2015. New York: United Nations Publications; 2016.
- 154. Pan-Canadian primary health care indicators: pan-Canadian primary health care indicator development project, report 1. Ottawa: Canadian Institute for Health Information; 2006.
- 155. Global status report on alcohol and health. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2014.

- 156. Rehm J, Mathers C, Popova S, Thavorncharoensap M, Teerawattananon Y, Patra J. Global burden of disease and injury and economic cost attributable to alcohol use and alcohol-use disorders. Lancet. 2009;373(9682):2223-33.
- 157. Indicator definitions and metadata [website]. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2017 (http://apps. who.int/gho/data/node.wrapper.imr?x-id=1, accessed 14 August 2019).
- 158. Worldwide trends in diabetes since 1980: a pooled analysis of 751 population-based studies with 4.4 million participants. Lancet. 2016;387(10027):1513-30.
- 159. Roglic G. Global health report on diabetes: 2016. Geneva: World Health Organization; 2016.
- 160. Global burden of disease study. Seattle: Institute for Health Metrics and Evaluation; 2017.
- 161. Eurostat. Amenable and preventable deaths statistics. Luxembourg: European Commission; 2017 (http://ec.europa.eu/eurostat/statistics-explained/index.php/Amenable_and_preventable_deaths_ statistics, accessed 14 August 2019).
- 162. Fact sheets on sustainable development goals: health targets. Noncommunicable diseases. Copenhagen: WHO Regional Office for Europe; 2017.

The WHO Regional Office for Europe

The World Health Organization (WHO) is a specialized agency of the United Nations created in 1948 with the primary responsibility for international health matters and public health. The WHO Regional Office for Europe is one of six regional offices throughout the world, each with its own programme geared to the particular health conditions of the countries it serves.

Member States

Albania Andorra Armenia Austria Azerbaijan Belarus Belgium Bosnia and Herzegovina Bulgaria Croatia Cyprus Czechia Denmark Estonia Finland France Georgia Germany Greece Hungary Iceland Ireland Israel Italy Kazakhstan Kyrgyzstan Latvia Lithuania Luxembourg Malta Monaco Montenegro Netherlands North Macedonia Norway Poland Portugal Republic of Moldova Romania **Russian Federation** San Marino Serbia Slovakia Slovenia Spain Sweden Switzerland Tajikistan Turkey Turkmenistan Ukraine United Kingdom Uzbekistan

World Health Organization Regional Office for Europe

UN City, Marmorvej 51, DK-2100 Copenhagen Ø, Denmark Tel.: +45 45 33 70 00 Fax: +45 45 33 70 01 E-mail: contact@euro.who.int Website: www.euro.who.int